
 
 

 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
20 July 2021 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 
A meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Council Chamber, 
Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ on Wednesday, 28th July, 
2021 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to attend. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

2 Apologies for Absence  

3 Declarations of Interest  

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-
pecuniary) in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 

 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in 
respect of which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of 
such interest.  Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or 
non-pecuniary interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

 

4 Audit Findings Report  

 (Report of the External Auditors) 
 

5 Management Representation Letter  

 (Grant Thornton) 
 

6 Annual Statement of Accounts & Report 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 182) 

 (Report of the Executive Director, Finance) 
 

7 Risk Management quarterly update (Pages 183 - 212) 

 (Report of the Assistant Director, Finance) 
 

8 Internal Audit Progress Update Report 2021/22 (Quarter 1) (Pages 213 - 228) 

 (Report of the Audit Manager) 
 

9 Audit and Governance Committee Timetable (Pages 229 - 234) 

 (Discussion Item) 
 

10 Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 To consider excluding the Press and Public from the meeting by passing the 
following resolution:- 
 
“That in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 
and Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest 
in withholding the information outweighs the public  interest in disclosing the 
information to the public” 
 
At the time this agenda is published no representations have been received that 
this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 



11 Removal of Risk Based Verification in the Administration of Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Support (Pages 235 - 238) 

 (Report of the Assistant Director, Finance) 
 

A Private Meeting of the Members and the external and internal auditors will 
follow this meeting 
 
 

 

  _____________________________________ 

Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about being filmed, please contact a member 

of Democratic Services before selecting a seat 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To Councillors: M Summers, R Ford, J Chesworth, A Cooper, M J Greatorex, 

Dr S Peaple and P Thurgood 

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 9th JUNE 2021 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor M Summers (Chair), Councillors R Ford (Vice-Chair), 

J Chesworth, A Cooper, M J Greatorex, Dr S Peaple and 
P Thurgood 

 
Officers Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Lynne Pugh 

(Assistant Director Finance) and Tracey Pointon (Legal 
Admin & Democratic Services Manager) 

 

Visitors             Mark Stocks from Grant Thornton 

 

 

 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence 
 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 23rd March 2021 were approved and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor M Summers no seconder due to change of Committee 
Members) 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Interest. 
 

4 ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
Presentation given by Mark Stocks from Grant Thornton on the Role of the Audit 
Committee 
 

5 UPDATE FROM EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Audit and Governance 
Committee 

9 June 2021 

 

 

2 
 

Verbal update received from Mark Stocks from Grant Thornton, the external 
auditors.    Mark informed the committee that the Audit of Final Accounts will be 
starting and carried out remotely. 
 
Committee thanked the team for their hard work in producing the accounts.     
 

6 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATIVE POWERS ACT 2000  
 
The report of the Assistant Director – Partnerships to present the Committee with 
the annual reports to demonstrate to elected members that the Council is 
complying with its own Code of Practice when using RIPA as specified in the 
Council’s Code of Practice for carrying out surveillance under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)  
 
RESOLVED:  That 

 
 The Audit and Governance Committee endorsed the RIPA 

monitoring report for 2020/21  
 

 (Moved by Councillor M Summers and seconded by 
Councillor John Chesworth) 

 
7 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT (INCLUDING QUARTER 4 PROGRESS 

RESULTS)  
 
The report of the Principal Auditor to update the Committee on the Internal Audit’s 
Annual Report (Appendix 1), which includes results for the quarter 4 to 31 March 
2021. 
 
Chair sought clarification on the ICT Assurance Summary (pg 42) regarding 
access to the council’s systems by non-managed devices via secure VPN. 
 
CE will provide a  response to the Committee 
  
 
RESOLVED: That 

 
 the Committee noted the Internal Audit’s Annual Report 

which included the results for the quarter 4 to 31 March 
2021. 
 
 

 (Moved by Councillor J Chesworth and seconded by 
Councillor R Ford) 

 
8 PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS / QUALITY ASSURANCE & 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME  
 

Page 6



Audit and Governance 
Committee 

9 June 2021 

 

 

3 
 

To report on Internal Audit’s compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) and the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 
(QAIP). 
 
RESOLVED: That  

 
1. the Committee endorsed the Internal Audit’s compliance 

with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and; 
 

2. endorsed the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme 
 

 (Moved by Councillor M Greatorex and seconded by 
Councillor P Thurgood) 
 
A third recommendation was agreed that the Committee 
congratulate the Internal Audit team on the professionalism 
shown in compiling this report   
 
(Moved by Councillor S Peaple and seconded by Councillor 
M Summers) 

 
9 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT & CODE OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE  
 
Report of the Chief Executive to submit the refreshed Annual Governance 
Statement and Code of Corporate Governance for Audit & Governance 
Committee’s approval. 
 
RESOLVED: That  

 
1. Committee approved The Annual Governance Statement (for 

inclusion in the annual statement of accounts) and; 
 

2. Approved the Code of Corporate Governance 
 

 (Moved by Councillor S Peaple  and seconded by Councillor 
A Cooper) 

 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE  

 
Report of the Assistant Director Finance to report on the Risk Management 
process and progress for the 2020/21 financial year. 
 
After a discussion the committee asked for clarification if ‘Brexit’ is still a risk and 
could it now be removed from the Risk Register.  CE confirmed the risk may be 
lowered on the next quarterly update report.   
 
Chair sought clarification on the risk note stating there was a higher than normal 
staff turnover.  CE to update 

Page 7



Audit and Governance 
Committee 

9 June 2021 

 

 

4 
 

 
Chair asked whether the system access note on emergency planning was still 
relevant. CE to update.   
 
RESOLVED: That  

 
  the Committee endorsed the Corporate Risk Register 

 
 (Moved by Councillor M Summers and seconded by 

Councillor M Greatorex) 
 

11 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TIMETABLE  
 
The Committee reviewed the timetable. 
 
The Chair requested a private meeting to be arranged with the external auditors 
and the Audit & Governance Committee after the next meeting. 
 
 

  

 Chair  
 

 

Page 8



 1 

 
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
28th July 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FINANCE 

 
ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS & REPORT 2020/21 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To approve the Statement of Accounts (the Statement) for the financial year ended 
31st March 2021 following completion of the external audit. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Members: 
 

1. approve the Annual Statement of Accounts 2020/21; 
2. delegate authority to the Chair of the Audit and Governance 

Committee to approve any changes and re-sign the accounts, if 
necessary, once we have received assurance from Staffordshire 
County Council’s external auditors in relation to the Staffordshire 
Pension Fund. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Legislation detailed in Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, requires 
the Council to prepare a Draft Statement of Accounts by 31st May (approved by the 
Council’s Chief Finance Officer - the Executive Director Finance), a Committee of 
the Council to approve the Statement by 31st July and for the Council to publish the 
Statement together with the Auditors’ opinion by 31st July.  
 
However, because of the impact of the covid-19 virus on local authorities’ ability to 
have prepared their draft statement of accounts by the end of May, the 
requirement has been amended again for 2021, with the deadline to publish its 
unaudited accounts moved from 31st May to 31st July and the deadline for 
publishing audited statements being pushed back from 31st July 2020 to 30th 
September. 
 
To meet the original deadlines, the Finance team planned to bring forward the 
completion date for the Statutory Accounts – with a target completion date of 31st 
May. An initial draft was prepared following a period of quality assurance and due 
diligence checks and circulated for review on 1st June. 
 
The final draft accounts as signed by the Executive Director Finance, were issued 
to the External Auditor, the Members of this Committee and published on the 
Council’s website on 2nd June 2021. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 2 

 
As part of the annual audit process for 2020/21, the Council’s external auditors, 
Grant Thornton, have prepared their Audit Findings Report (to be considered 
separately on this agenda) for consideration prior to issue of their opinion, 
conclusion & certificate. 
 
It has previously been reported to Members that as a result of the need to close 
the accounts earlier (and sometimes rely on estimates in doing so) it is more likely 
that there will be changes required to the draft accounts before they are finalised. 
This is the case this year as there has been a material (c.£2m) change between 
the draft figures provided by the Actuary in April 2021 and the final report received 
in June 2021 – relating mainly to the estimated return on the pension fund 
investments. This has reduced the net pension fund liability on the balance sheet 
from £52m to £50m. 

 
Following identification as part of the audit, a number of amendments to the Draft 
(as published on the website and circulated to the Audit & Governance Committee 
on 1st June 2021) have been discussed & agreed with Grant Thornton.  
 
The agreed changes have been actioned within the Final Statement of Accounts 
for 2020/21 as attached at Appendix 1. It is important to note that, other than the 
pension fund changes, these adjustments relate to presentational or disclosure 
issues and have not changed the figures within the main financial statements and 
the associated notes and do not have any impact on the reported outturn position 
and net balances of the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account or Collection 
Fund. 
 
Regulations require the Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee meeting to 
sign and date the Statement of Accounts with the intention that the Chair’s 
signature formally represents the completion of the Council’s approval process of 
the accounts. 
 
However, whilst the External Auditors have concluded the vast majority of their 
work on the accounts, we have been advised that assurance from Staffordshire 
County Council’s external auditors in relation to the Staffordshire Pension Fund is 
not yet available. For this reason it is proposed to delegate authority to the Chair to 
approve any changes and re-sign the accounts, if necessary, once this assurance 
is provided and the audit can be concluded. Members of Audit and Governance 
Committee will be advised of any significant changes at the earliest available 
opportunity. 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
For 2020/21, a revenue budget underspend for the General Fund of £2.194m is 
reported with an increase in General Fund closing balances of £1.120m compared 
to the budgeted/planned reduction of £1.075m.  
It should be noted that the Medium Term Financial Strategy, approved in February 
2021, identified estimated budgeted General Fund balances of £6.753m (at 1st 
April 2021) compared to the actual closing balances of £8.002m - additional 
balances of £1.249m.  There has been no material change from the Provisional 
Outturn forecast closing balances of £8.037m. 
 

Page 10



 3 

The main variances for the year include: 
 

Variance between Budget & Actual Outturn £000 £000 

      

Increased / Non-Budgeted Income     

COVID-19 income support grant (1,108)   

Additional Commercial property rental income (97)   

Additional investment and property fund income (79) (1,284) 

      

Shortfalls in Income     
Car Parking income - revised budget £400k (original budget  
£800k) 

 
69 

      

Savings / Underspends     

NDR Levy reduced due to lower level of NDR income (446)   

Joint Waste arrangements (92) (538) 

      

Other Variances - Net (Underspends) / Overspends   (441) 

      

Total (Favourable) / Unfavourable Variance   (2,194) 

 
The Housing Revenue Account reports an underspend of £0.696m with a reduction 
in Housing Revenue Account closing balances of £0.641m. For the HRA balances 
of £4.866m were forecast at 1st April 2021 compared to the actual closing balances 
of £5.611m - additional balances of £0.745m.  There has been no material change 
from the Provisional Outturn forecast closing balances of £5.518m. 
 
The main variances for the year include: 
 

Variance between Budget & Actual Outturn   £000 £000 

        

Increased / Non-Budgeted Income       

Leaseholder Service Charges due   
 

(161) 

        

Non-Budgeted Expenditure / Overspends       
Housing Repairs - additional costs associated 
with response to COVID-19 including payments 
made under the Government guidance note 
PPN02/20   

1,001 

  
Housing Repairs - increased costs associated with void 
properties 82 1,083 

        

Savings / Underspends       

Housing Repairs - reduced responsive repairs 
arising from 
restricted 
access to 
properties 
due to the 
impact of 
COVID-19  

(554) 
  

Housing Repairs - reduced planned maintenance (1,258) 
  

Contribution to Reserves - Surveys planned for 
2020/21 delayed  

275 
  

Contingency Budget not required   (130) (1,667) 

        

Other Variances - Net (Underspends) / Overspends   49 
        

Total (Favourable) / Unfavourable Variance     (696) 

Page 11



 4 

 
The outturn for the 2020/21 capital programme identifies an underspend of 
£29.848m against the approved budget of £39.377m. The actual spend was 
£9.529m (no change since the Provisional Outturn).   
 
It has been approved that £27.545m of scheme spend be re-profiled into 2021/22.  
This will result in an overall underspend of £2.303m for the 2020/21 capital 
programme. 
 
Deferred Capital Expenditure £000 £000 

      

Housing Capital Programme     

Enhancements to Council Dwellings 3,819   

Regeneration of Tinkers Green and Kerria 103   

Acquisition of Council Dwellings 8,075 11,997 

      

General Fund Services     

Property Funds 8,131   

Solway Tamworth LTD LATC 4,000   

Gungate Development 718   

Castle Mercian Trail 96   

Gateways 424   

Community Woodland Cycleway 199   

Amington Community Woodland 232   

Indoor and Outdoor Sports Feasibility 100   

Disabled Facilities Grant 817   

Other Capital Schemes 831 15,548 

      

Total   27,545 

 
 
LEGAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legislation detailed in Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, requires 
the draft statement of accounts to be prepared by 31st May and for a Committee of 
the Council to approve the audited Statement and for the Council to publish the 
Statement together with the Auditors’ opinion by 31st July.  
 
However, because of the impact of the covid-19 virus on local authorities’ ability to 
have prepared their draft statement of accounts by the end of May, the 
requirement has been amended again for 2021, with the deadline to publish its 
unaudited accounts moved from 31st May to 31st July and the deadline for 
publishing audited statements being pushed back from 31st July 2021 to 30th 
September. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Stefan Garner, Executive Director Finance 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 5 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Capital Outturn Report 2020/21 - Cabinet, 8th July 2021 
 
Quarter Four 2020/21 Performance Report (including Provisional Outturn Report 
2020/21) – Corporate Scrutiny Committee, 23rd June 2021 and Cabinet, 8th July 
2021 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Tamworth Borough Council 

Statement  
of Accounts 2020/21 
 

 
 

Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Tamworth Borough Council,  

  Marmion House,  

  Lichfield Street,  

  Tamworth,  

  Staffordshire  

  B79 7BZ  

  Tel: 01827 709709  

  Email: enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk  

  Website: www.tamworth.gov.uk 

Page 16

mailto:enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk


 

    1 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 

2020/21 
 

Contents 

 Page 
Number 

 
The Narrative Report 2 
  
The Statement of Responsibilities 28 
  
The Core Financial Statements  
  

 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement 

 
29 
 

32 
  
Balance Sheet 35 
  
Cash Flow Statement 37 
  
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 38 
  
Approval of Accounts 127 
  
The Supplementary Financial Statements  
  
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

128 

  
Statement of Movement on Housing Revenue Account Balance  129 
  
Notes to the Housing Revenue Account  130 
  
Collection Fund – Income and Expenditure Statement 135 
  
Notes to the Collection Fund 137 
  
Annual Governance Statement 140 
  
Glossary 
 

157 

Appendix to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

163 

   
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Tamworth 
Borough Council (to be included following audit) 

165 

Page 17



 

    2 

THE NARRATIVE REPORT 
 

The aim of this Narrative Report is to provide a context to the accounts by 
presenting a clear and simple summary of the Authority’s financial position and 
performance for the year and its prospects for future years. 
 
The statement of accounts presents the financial position and performance of 
the Authority for the year ended 31st March 2021. This narrative report describes 
the nature and purpose of each of the statements which follow and highlights the 
most significant matters which are contained within the accounts and the major 
influences affecting the Authority’s income, expenditure and cash flows. 
 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Annual Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021 has been 
prepared in accordance with the guidelines contained within the latest Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for 2020/21.   
 
The Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and 
has been developed by the CIPFA/Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory 
Committee (LASAAC) Code Board overseen by the Financial Reporting Advisory 
Board.  
 
The Authority's accounts for 2020/21 are set out on pages 29 to 139 and consist 
of the following: 
 
Core Financial Statements: 

 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account (CIES): shows the 

accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be 
funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in 
accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. 
The net effect to the Council taxpayer is shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  
 
A deficit of £6.6m is reported for 2020/21 (£13.1m surplus 2019/20). This is 
mainly explained by a re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability 
relating to the pension fund which resulted in a deficit of £9.7m (a surplus of 
£12.9m was reported in 2019/20) resulting mainly from financial assumption 
changes.  
 
It also included a £8.6m gain on Revaluation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment Assets, as well as a deficit on the provision of services of £5.4m. 

   
 Movement in Reserves Statement: shows the movement in the year on the 

different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. 
those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and 
other reserves.  

 

Page 18



 

    3 

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows a net General Fund surplus of 
£1.1m for the year. This equates to a favourable variance of £2.2m (the 
planned transfer from balances at the start of the year in the original budget 
was £1.1m) and has resulted in General Fund Balances of £8.0m (£6.9m – 
2019/20). Earmarked General Fund Reserves have increased by £8.7m to 
£18.1m resulting in total General Fund Reserves of £26.1m (£16.3m – 
2019/20) and reflect the risks and uncertainties facing the Authority over the 
medium term.  

 
 Balance Sheet: shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets 

and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority 
(assets less liabilities) are £197.5m (£204.2m 2019/20) which are matched 
by the reserves held by the Authority.  
 
Key items are: 

 
Long Term Assets 
 
The Authority holds property, plant and equipment assets of £224.6m 
(£223.0m 2019/20) – mainly due to Council dwellings of £198.1m (£187.1m 
2019/20). 

 
Working Capital 

 
Net working capital has reduced to £40.9m (£43.6m 2019/20) mainly due to 
an increase of £5.0m in long term investments. 
 
Provisions, Usable Reserves and Balances 
 
The working balances as at 31st March 2021 are £65.9m (£52.8m 2019/20) 
and comprise provisions, earmarked reserves, revenue balances and the 
unused element of capital receipts. 
 

31st March 2020 Provisions, Usable Reserves and Balances 31st March 2021 

£000   £000 

  
 

  

2,032 Provisions 2,637 

17,176 Earmarked Reserves 29,359 

13,134 Revenue Balances 13,613 

20,431 Unused Capital Receipts & Grants 20,282 

52,773 Total Working Balances 65,891 

 
Working balances of £31.7m (£29.7m 2019/20) relate to capital (including 
the Capital Reserve of £9.6m). Deferred capital expenditure of £27.5m from 
2020/21 and previous years carried forward to 2021/22 will be financed in 
part from these balances (£21.1m 2019/20). 
 

  

Page 19



 

    4 

Borrowing Facilities 
 

The Authority borrows funds where necessary to meet both long term capital 
expenditure commitments and short-term cash flow demands.  Funds are 
borrowed from the Government (Public Works Loan Board - PWLB) and 
from the commercial money market (banks, building societies and other 
lenders).  The Authority’s debt at 31st March 2021 was £63.1m (£63.1m 
2019/20) and was all borrowed from the PWLB. 
 
Pensions 
 

The pension fund deficit has increased in the year to £50.2m (£41.3m 
2019/20) and is required to be shown on the Balance Sheet of the Authority.  
 
The change in financial assumptions adopted for period ending 31st March 
2021 can be approximately broken down as follows: 
 

 Pension Increase Rate – Market derived CPI inflation has risen over 
the period, which has led to a 0.95% increase in this assumption. 
This has served to increase the Employer’s obligations and led to a 
loss of around £21.5m on the balance sheet. 
 

 The change in the CPI inflation assumption is a result of underlying 
changes in market implied RPI, coupled with a change in the 
derivation of the CPI assumption from the previous year (due to the 
government’s RPI reform announcements in November 2020). The 
breakdown of the impact of these components is as follows: 

 
a) Market implied RPI has risen over the period, which has led to a 

0.5% increase in this assumption. This has served to increase the 
Employer's obligations and led to a loss of around £11.3m on the 
balance sheet. 

b) The derived gap between RPI and CPI reduced since the previous 
accounting period, which has led to a 0.45% increase in the pension 
increase assumption. This has served to increase the Employer's 
obligations and led to a loss of around £10.2m on the balance 
sheet. 

 

 Salary Increase Rate – the salary increase assumption has risen 
over the period by 0.95% in line with CPI inflation (as above), which 
underpins the Fund’s standard salary increase assumption. This 
has served to increase the Employer's obligations and led to a loss 
of around £2m on the balance sheet. 
 

 Discount rate – The corporate bond yield (upon which the discount 
rate is derived) has fallen over the period, which has led to a 0.3% 
reduction in this assumption. This has served to increase the 
Employer’s obligations and led to a loss of around £7.5m on the 
balance sheet. 

 
 
 

Page 20



 

    5 

 

 Changes in demographic assumptions (c.£1.8m loss on the balance 
sheet). The longevity assumptions have changed from the previous 
accounting period to reflect the latest available mortality 
improvement tables. This update has served to increase the 
Employer's obligations. 

 

 Other experience (c.£1.3m gain on the balance sheet). ‘Other 
experience’ captures any adjustments made to the roll forward 
approach to allow for actual experience over the period. In the year 
immediately following a triennial funding valuation this item can be 
large as three years of actual membership experience flows through 
the accounts. However, in years 2 (which is the period these 
accounts covers) and 3 following the funding valuation, the roll 
forward calculations do not make allowance for actual experience 
other than those noted below. 

 
a) Actual pension increase order – The actual PI order for April 

2021 was 0.5%, which is lower than the pension increase rate 
assumption of 1.90% built into the obligations at the start of the 
accounting period. The impact of applying this lower increase 
assumption for serves to reduce the obligations by the order of 
1%. 

b) Unfunded pensioners – Where the Council has experienced 
more (or less) unfunded pensioner deaths over the period, this 
will give rise to a (typically small) or experience gain (loss) on 
the balance sheet. 

 

 Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest 
(c.£21.2m gain on the balance sheet). Any excess return (over and 
above the expected accounting return, i.e. the discount rate at the 
start of the accounting period) is recognised in the OCI. The total 
investment return achieved by the Fund over the accounting period 
was 25.0%, compared to an expected accounting return of 2.30%. 

 
It should be noted that there has been no impact on the net cost to the 
taxpayer arising from this - contribution levels remain unchanged (an 
ongoing annual contribution of 16.5% p.a. plus a fixed lump sum element) 
arising from the formal valuation on 31st March 2019 (following the triennial 
review). 

 
 Cash Flow Statement: shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of 

the Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the 
Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash 
flows as operating, investing and financing activities. 

 
  

Page 21



 

    6 

 
 Supplementary Statements: 

 

 Housing Revenue Account: reflects the statutory requirement to maintain 
a separate account for Council Housing. 

The overall revenue financial position relating to Council Housing as given 
on page 129 shows a decrease  in HRA balances for the year of £0.6m 
(£1.8m decrease in 2019/20).  

This equates to an underspend of £0.7m when compared to the approved 
budget for the year. This has resulted in decrease in balances from £6.3m to 
£5.6m to be carried forward to 2021/22. Earmarked HRA Reserves have 
increased by £2.9m (£7.2m reduction – 2019/20) to £9.2m resulting in total 
HRA Reserves of £14.9m (£12.6m – 2019/20). 

 

 The Collection Fund: shows the Council Tax income collected on 
behalf of Staffordshire County Council, the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (OPCC), the Staffordshire Commissioner Fire 
and Rescue Authority and this Authority's General Fund. 

 
The fund also includes Non Domestic Rates income under the Business 
Rates Retention Scheme.  
 
The Collection Fund, subject to collection of outstanding arrears, achieved 
the following: 
 

 Council Tax – surplus of £1.0m (£1.6m – 2019/20, the Authority’s 
share is 10%), of which £0.6m (£0.8m – 2019/20) will be distributed 
to preceptors during 2021/22; 

 NDR – deficit of £20.9m (£0.8m surplus in 2019/20) of which the 
Authority’s share is 40%, mainly as a result of the significant level of 
additional business rates relief of c. £18m for retail, hospitality and 
leisure businesses due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
The deficit relating to the NDR collection fund includes an increased provision 
of £6.6m, (£5.1m – 2019/20) with £2.6m being the Authority’s share (£2.0m – 
2019/20), for appeals outstanding on the 31st March 2021 of £98.9m (£93.6m 
– 2019/20).  
 
This will mean that the deficit will be £8.4m (share for this Authority) for 
2021/22 comparable to a deficit of £7.1m included within the 2021/22 budget. 
It should be noted that this will be funded in 2021/22 through additional 
section 31 Government grants received during 2020/21 (and transferred to 
reserve). 

These accounting statements are supported by appropriate notes to the 
accounts and the General Accounting Policies. For 2020/21, the notes to 
support the primary statements include the relevant accounting policies as 
well as further detail regarding individual transactions. 
 
  

Page 22



 

    7 

CHANGES TO THE ACCOUNTS 2020/21 
 
An updated Code of Practice, applicable for 2020/21 was issued by CIPFA in 
July 2020. 
 
Changes reflected in the 2020/21 updated Code do, on the whole, have to be 
incorporated into the Authority’s accounts but do not necessarily impact on the 
Authority’s accounting policies. This is because the changes are principally 
around additional or changed disclosure notes, points of clarification and 
additional guidance etc.  
 
The key accounting changes applicable to the Authority in the 2020/21 edition 
of the Code include: 
 

a) Amendments to implement and emphasise the application of 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material. For example 
the importance of ensuring that material information is not obscured for 
users is specified in Section 2.1. Reference to this is also made in 
Section 4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment, Section 6.4 Post-
Employment Benefits, and Section 7.3 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosure and Presentation Requirements. 

 

b) Implementation of Amendments to IAS 19 – Plan Amendment, 
Curtailment or Settlement in Section 6.4 Post-Employment Benefits, 
including reference to materiality requirements and specification of 
factors to consider in making an initial proxy assessment of quantitative 
materiality. 

 

c) Reference to arrangements for the application of accounting standards 
arising as a consequence of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the 
European Union. 

 

d) Legislative amendments including the Local Authorities (Capital 
Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 
relating to investments in specified pooled investment funds that are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and back 
payments following unequal pay. 

 

e) Amendment to Section 6.5 Accounting and Reporting by Pensions 
Funds to align specific investment asset line item descriptions in the 
net asset statements with the Pensions SORP. 

 

f) Amendments relating to financial instruments:  

i) fair value through profit or loss financial instrument entries are 
specified as included in the financing and investment income 
and expenditure line 

Page 23



 

    8 

ii) clarification regarding the extent of exemption from impairment 
allowance treatment relating to some balances with other public 
sector bodies 

iii) clarification that the interpretation regarding LOBOs does not 
relate to compound embedded derivatives if separation of the 
exempted derivative is not permitted by IFRS 9 

iv) clarification that the modification of financial liabilities follows the 
principles specified for modification of financial assets 

v) allowance for soft loans to be specified at below zero (ie 
negative) interest rates. 

 

g) Other amendments including: 

i) fees and charges for services under statutory requirements 
specified to include Housing Revenue Account tenancy rental 
income 

ii) references to RICS valuation guidance publications updated  

iii) signage used at the foot of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement should be clearly identified 

iv) recognition that the presentation of a disclosure of movements in 
property, plant and equipment for the year may differ from 
Whole of Government Accounts practices.  

 

An appendix to the Code is included setting out the changes agreed by 
CIPFA/LASAAC in relation to the adoption of IFRS 16, which has been 
deferred to the 2021/22 Code and will apply from 1st April 2021.  

Under the oversight of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board, the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board is in a position to issue mid-year updates to the 
Code. This will only be done in exceptional circumstances.  
 
In England and Wales, the Code constitutes a ‘proper accounting practice’ 
under the terms of Section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003. In 
Scotland, the Code constitutes proper accounting practice under Section 12 of 
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. In Northern Ireland, the status 
and authority of the Code derives from Regulation 2 of the Local Government 
(Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2011 and 
through the relevant accounts direction issued by the Department for 
Communities (Northern Ireland) 
 
 
  

Page 24



 

    9 

RESPONSE TO THE CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC 
 
The Pandemic remains a significant challenge to Councils and the Prime 
Minister, following an impromptu attendance at a Council Leaders & Chief 
Executives briefing, praised Local Authorities for their continued efforts.  
 
The Council continued to support vulnerable people, deliver critical front line 
services and scaled-up its response to COVID-19 during the year including 
the payment of significant levels of grants to local businesses,  individuals 
through the test and trace scheme and expanded businesses rates relief to 
retail, hospitality and leisure businesses. 
 
Importantly, the COVID-19 emergency, tested the Council’s ability to move at 
pace, prioritise its service delivery and demonstrate its core values & purpose. 
Successfully the Council was able to: - 
 

 Continue the delivery of all critical front line services. Specifically bin 
management, cleaning and grounds maintenance were continued  

 Increase residents’ resilience and access to information through 
empowering and working with ‘anchor’ and third sector organisations to 
support our most vulnerable 

 Utilise Council resources effectively, with a significant shift to digital 
working solutions as well as the proactive and dynamic management of 
demand through deployment and combinations of home and agile 
working 

 Re-enforce Tamworth Communities offer through securing an 
intelligence led and positive data sharing platform with major 
stakeholders to support those extremely and / or clinically vulnerable 

 Continue to improve front line service delivery by delivering on 
previously agreed corporate projects such as CCTV shared service 
with the WMCA; de-mobilisation and mobilisation of multi-million pound 
repairs contract(s); implement significant policy changes, including the 
Councils allocation policy 

 Support our most vulnerable through preventing homelessness and 
helping people access suitable housing amidst major Government 
initiatives including the “everyone” in campaign, whilst also pausing 
non-essential moves 

 
  

Page 25



 

    10 

When the Government initiated the lock-down in March 2020, the Council’s 
response was significant and the following diagram evidences the 
continuation of services: 
 

 
 
The government has provided a range of financial support packages 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. These include additional funding to 
support the cost of services or offset other income losses and also grant 
packages to be paid out to support local businesses - administered by local 
billing authorities e.g. the Small Business Grant Fund; Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Grant Fund; multiple Local Restrictions grants i.e. open, closed, 
sector, additional. Billing authorities are responsible for paying over the grants 
to the businesses and are then reimbursed by government using a grant 
under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 (S31). Some of the 
schemes are fully reimbursed, others are a set allocation. 
 
The Council has considered the nature and terms of the various COVID-19 
measures in order to determine whether there is income and expenditure to 
be recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) in 2020/21 with regard to the general principle of whether the authority 
is acting as the principal or agent. 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

    11 

Where the Council is administering the distribution of the grant, is fully 
reimbursed for delivering that funding (and the authority is not liable 
for any overpayments), the amount of the award is predetermined based on 
business rate relief or rateable value, this indicates that the authority is acting 
as an intermediary for the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS) and does not have ‘control’, accounting as an agent would be 
appropriate. Similarly, this is also the case for the Test and Trace grants 
awarded as an agent for the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). 
 
The grant has not been reported as income and expenditure, and balances 
relate only to sums due to or from the authority. 
 
Where the Council has discretion over the businesses to support and the 
amount of the award, it is acting as a principal as opposed to acting as an 
agent, and transactions have been included in the financial statements.  
 
The following table summarises the position for each of the grant support 
schemes. 
 
Grant Government 

Funding 
Grants Paid 

 £'000 £'000 

Small Business Grants Fund (SBGF) (to August 
2020) 

(7,290) 7,240 

Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund (RHLGF) 
(to August 2020) 

(4,300) 4,300 

The Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) 
Addendum (5 January onwards) 

(3,836) 2,865 

Local Restrictions Support 
Grants (LRSG) (closed) (applicable 1

st
 August – 5

th 

November, and also version 2 applicable 2
nd

 
December onwards) 

(369) 167 

Christmas Support Payment (26) 25 

Closed Businesses Lockdown Payment (CBLP) (2,826) 2,013 

Local Restrictions Support Grant (open) – applicable 
1

st
  August – 5

th
 November, and also version 2 

applicable 2
nd

  December onwards 

(43)  

Total Agent (BEIS) (18,690) 16,610 

Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme - Main 
Scheme 

(185) 98 

Test and Trace Support Payment Scheme - 
Discretionary Scheme 

(79) 33 

Total Agent (DWP) (264) 130 

Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) (2,215) 1,018 

Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF) 
(to August 2020) 

(458) 458 

Total Principal (BEIS) (2,673) 1,476 

   

Council tax: COVID-19 hardship fund  (566) 492 

  

Page 27



 

    12 

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK  
 
When Council approved the 2020/21 Budget and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy on 25th February 2020, future levels of funding for the Council were 
uncertain pending the most significant changes in Local Government funding 
for a generation. The reforms were planned to be in place by 2020/21 but 
were deferred until 2021/22. The Government has confirmed that the longer-
term reforms for the local government finance system (including the move to 
75% Business Rates Retention and Fairer Funding Review of Relative 
Needs and Resources) will be deferred again as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, although no timescales have been released. In addition, the next 
planned national Business Rates Revaluation, planned for 2021 has now 
been deferred to 2023. 
 
With regard to the Housing Revenue Account, a 5 year MTFS was approved 
by Council including significant investment in Regeneration projects to meet 
future housing needs and sustain the HRA in the longer term. 
 
On 21st July 2020, the Chancellor launched the 2020 Comprehensive 
Spending Review (CSR). The aim of the Review, which was to have been 
published in the autumn, was to set out the government’s spending plans for 
the parliament – UK Government departments’ resource budgets for the years 
2021/22 to 2023/24 and capital budgets for the years 2021/22 until 2024/25, 
and devolved administrations’ block grants for the same period. However, on 
21st October 2020, the Treasury formally announced that the Spending 
Review would be narrowed in scope to cover one year only, setting 
departments’ resource and capital budgets for 2021/22. The NHS, schools, 
and ‘priority infrastructure projects’ (e.g. HS2 and hospital building) will still be 
fully funded for multi-year resource settlements. 
 
Previously, the Chancellor confirmed that departmental spending (both capital 
and resource) would grow in real terms across the CSR period and that the 
government would deliver on the commitments made at Budget to level up 
and invest in the priorities of the British people. Given the impact COVID-19 
has had on the economy, the Chancellor was clear there would need to be 
tough choices in other areas of spending at the review. As part of their 
preparations for the CSR departments were asked to identify opportunities to 
reprioritise and deliver savings. Departments were also required to fulfil a 
series of conditions in their returns, including providing evidence they are 
delivering the government’s priorities and focussing on delivery. 
 
The Government had previously said it would keep an open dialogue with the 
local authorities about the best approach to the next financial year, including 
how to treat accumulated business rates growth of £2.0m p.a. (pending the 
planned business rates baseline reset) and the approach to the 2021/22 local 
government finance settlement. It was announced as part of the Spending 
Review, and has now been confirmed as part of the settlement, that that there 
will be no reset for 2021/22 however, no papers were published but the 
Secretary of State confirmed a commitment to the Fair Funding Review and 
the business rates reset; but in answering questions from MPs he indicated 

Page 28



 

    13 

only that there “may be an opportunity next year” to bring forward proposals 
for reform and he confirmed that he did not know when reform would be 
implemented. 

 
It is also the Government’s intention to look again at the New Homes Bonus 
for 2022/23 and explore the most effective way to incentivise housing growth. 
They are consulting on proposals prior to implementation. In the longer-term, 
the Government remains committed to reform and want to take time to work 
with local authorities to make sure that the approach is right following the 
planned reviews. 
 
As a nation we are likely to feel the consequences of the COVID-19 
pandemic, and the measures to contain and mitigate its effects, for years to 
come. The extraordinary events we are living through follow a decade of 
austerity, triggered by the financial crisis of 2008/09, which had already placed 
considerable strain on local authorities’ finances.  
 
Increased demand for many local public services, directly related to the 
outbreak of the virus, placed immediate pressure on authorities’ cash flows 
and expenditure budgets. The longer-term consequences of recession and 
unemployment on demand for services have yet to be experienced. 
 
At the same time, several important sources of local authority income 
including Council Tax, Non Domestic (business) Rates, fees and charges, 
rents and investment returns have, to a greater or lesser extent, been subject 
to reduction or suspension.  
 
In light of the projected impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy, an immediate suspension of all non-essential spending 
was approved by Cabinet on 9th July 2020 and that Managers review their 
budgets and identify all non-essential spending for 2020/21 as part of the 
quarter 1 projections at 30th June 2020 - and approval sought for the budget 
to be revised to remove these. 
 
No one can know what the effect of the COVID-19 crisis will have on the 
economy and ultimately the impact for the Council’s finances. It will be many 
months before we have a clearer idea on how the economy has been affected 
– including any lasting effects for individual businesses and their employees. 
Social distancing measures continue and were in place for most of the 
financial year – impacting mainly on the Council’s ongoing income receipts. 
 
Measures taken to control COVID-19 are leading to heavy economic losses 
and this has and will continue to affect collection rates, as some individuals 
and businesses experience financial effects of the pandemic. The 
uncertainties created by the pandemic have also significantly increased 
volatility and uncertainty in markets. This applies not only to non-current 
operational and non-operational property assets held by authorities, but also 
to investment properties, financial assets and many assets held by pension 
funds. 
 

Page 29



 

    14 

Government has provided additional funding of c.£1.3m and the Local 
Government Association (LGA) and Society of District Council Treasurers 
(SDCT) will continue to lobby and provide evidence to MHCLG of the income 
and expenditure pressures that Councils face. MHCLG receive monthly 
financial updates from Councils including information on Housing Revenue 
Account pressures. 
 
Financial resilience is and has been the key requirement for local authorities 
at any time, but in the current crisis it has assumed unprecedented 
importance. Perhaps the biggest difficulty with the pandemic is that it is 
impossible to draw any conclusions about how long any effects will last. 
 
During the crisis the Council has lost income which will significantly impact on 
the potential sustainability of the organisation, as will be the case across many 
Local Government organisations. It will be necessary for the Council to take 
an accelerated approach towards the development and implementation of an 
effective sustainability strategy, linked to an overall vision for the organisation. 
Cabinet on 22nd October 2020 approved the Recovery and Reset programme 
which aims to consider how we can tackle the financial challenges facing the 
council as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. This will include reviewing 
services, reducing waste demand on services (basically this is any action or 
step in a process that does not add value to the customer), exploring 
opportunities for income generation and identifying any further savings.  
 
The overriding goal is to make sure our organisation remains fit for the future, 
while protecting services to the most vulnerable in our community. The 
Recovery and Reset programme outlines that this work be split into eight 
projects. 
 
In light of the financial situation facing the Council during 2020/21, Managers 
were tasked with identifying low level non-essential budgets for removal from 
the budget – bringing down the savings target of c.£2.0m per annum and 
limiting the cuts that would otherwise be needed to balance the MTFS in the 
future. 
 
The budget review identified savings of £1.2m towards the projected lost 
income anticipated from the impact of COVID-19. In addition to the 
unringfenced grant of £1.3m, it is also expected that in excess of £1.2m will be 
received from the projected fees and charges income support grant. 
 
The review included a robust challenge / re-justification process for all vacant 
posts with a requirement to investigate alternative options including 
restructuring to fill vacancies / looking at what we can stop doing – with £0.5m 
savings identified. 
 
There have been increasing demands for councils to assess their going 
concern status in recent years. This assessment has become more relevant 
with doubts being expressed about whether some local authorities will be able 
to deliver their full range of service commitments given the financial pressures 
they face and with some councils issuing warnings about their future financial 

Page 30



 

    15 

viability. These concerns have gained greater weight following the COVID-19 
outbreak and the significant impact that it has had on council finances.  
It is important to be clear that the Code of Practice under which local 
authorities operate confirms that councils have no ability to cease being a 
going concern.  
 
It would not therefore be appropriate for local authority financial statements to 
be prepared on anything other than a going concern basis. However, as part 
of putting these accounts together, alongside its overall response to COVID-
19, the Council’s financial monitoring and planning has continued focus on 
providing assurance that its financial position remains secure. This includes 
looking at the COVID-19 related expenditure pressures, the direct impact on 
council income, assessment of any bad debt provisions and impairments 
required against existing debts and continued analysis of the Council’s 
cashflow requirements. The calculation of the financial impact of COVID-19 is 
necessarily subjective and subject to change in the months after the balance 
sheet date, although early indications have highlighted an indicative gap 
between the financial costs to the Council and the Government grant provided 
to fund these (as outlined above). The length and intensity of COVID-19 
related measures and society’s response to the post-COVID-19 environment 
will determine the extent of any long-term financial impact.  
 
In the immediate future, the level of the Council’s reserve balances is a good 
indicator of its financial health and ability to withstand any short-term shocks. 
In addition, the statutory environment in which local authorities operate means 
that, were an authority to encounter financial difficulties, the prospect would 
be that central government would implement alternative arrangements for the 
continuation of services or provide assistance to allow the recovery of any 
deficit over more than one year. In the light of this and in the opinion of the 
Executive Director Finance, the Council remains in a sound financial position 
considering the statutory position held by local authorities and the relative 
strength of its sources of revenue. In the longer-term, the extent of recovery 
towards a more familiar post-COVID-19 operational environment and the 
continued work to redefine a new local government funding mechanism 
provide significant uncertainty for the whole sector. 
  

Page 31



 

    16 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

General Fund 

 

The main components of the General Fund approved budget and how these 
compare with actual income and expenditure are set out below. 
 

General Fund Actual 
Approved 

Budget 
Variance 

 

£000 £000 £000 

 
      

(Surplus) or Deficit for the Year  6,959 9,153 (2,194) 

 
 
 
 

The net expenditure of the Authority was £7.0m, representing an underspend 
of £2.2m. Major differences between the budget and the outturn are as 
follows:- 
 

Variance between Budget & Actual Outturn £000 £000 

      

Increased / Non-Budgeted Income     

COVID-19 income support grant (1,108)   

Additional Commercial property rental income (97)   

Additional investment and property fund income (79) (1,284) 

      

Shortfalls in Income     
Car Parking income - revised budget £400k (original budget  
£800k) 

 
69 

      

Savings / Underspends     

NDR Levy reduced due to lower level of NDR income (446)   

Joint Waste arrangements (92) (538) 

      

Other Variances - Net (Underspends) / Overspends   (441) 

      

Total (Favourable) / Unfavourable Variance   (2,194) 

 
 
 

Page 32



 

    17 

Council Housing 
 
A summary of the Housing Revenue Account for 2020/21, compared with the 
approved budget (including decisions made by Members during the financial 
year) is shown below:- 
 

Housing Revenue Account Actual 
Approved 

Budget 
Variance 

 

£000 £000 £000 

 
      

(Surplus) or Deficit for the Year 641 1,337 (696) 

 
 
The net deficit was £0.6m, representing an underspend of £0.7m. Major 
differences between the budget and the outturn are as follows:- 
 

Variance between Budget & Actual Outturn   £000 £000 

        

Increased / Non-Budgeted Income       

        

Leaseholder Service Charges due   
 

(161) 

        

Non-Budgeted Expenditure / Overspends       
Housing Repairs - additional costs associated 
with response to COVID-19 including payments 
made under the Government guidance note 
PPN02/20   

1,001 

  
Housing Repairs - increased costs associated with void 
properties 82 1,083 

        
Savings / Underspends       

Housing Repairs - reduced responsive repairs 
arising from 
restricted 
access to 
properties 
due to the 
impact of 
COVID-19  

(554) 
  

Housing Repairs - reduced planned maintenance (1,258) 
  

Contribution to Reserves - Surveys planned for 
2020/21 delayed  

275 
  

Contingency Budget not required   (130) (1,667) 

        

Other Variances - Net (Underspends) / Overspends   49 

        

Total (Favourable) / Unfavourable Variance     (696) 

 

 

 

  

Page 33



 

    18 

Capital Expenditure 
 
During 2020/21 the Authority spent £9.5m on capital expenditure (£25.2m in 
2019/20).  A breakdown by category and sources of finance is shown as Note 
34 to the Core Financial Statements on page 105. 
 
The majority of expenditure is related to improvement, enhancement or 
ongoing construction works: 
 
Capital Expenditure £m £m 

  
 

  

Housing Capital Programme 
 

  

Enhancements to Council Dwellings 4.2   

Regeneration of Tinkers Green and Kerria 2.7   

Acquisition of Council Dwellings 1.5 8.4 

  
 

  

General Fund Services 
 

  

3G Sports Facilities 0.6   

Other Capital Schemes   0.5 1.1 

  
 

  

Total   9.5 

 
A total of £27.5m spending originally planned for 2020/21, or earlier, has been 
deferred to 2021/22 (£21.1m in the previous year). Included within this 
deferred expenditure: 
 
Deferred Capital Expenditure £000 £000 

      

Housing Capital Programme     

Enhancements to Council Dwellings 3,819   

Regeneration of Tinkers Green and Kerria 103   

Acquisition of Council Dwellings 8,075 11,997 

      

General Fund Services     

Property Funds 8,131   

Solway Tamworth LTD LATC 4,000   

Gungate Development 718   

Castle Mercian Trail 96   

Gateways 424   

Community Woodland Cycleway 199   

Amington Community Woodland 232   

Indoor and Outdoor Sports Feasibility 100   

Disabled Facilities Grant 817   

Other Capital Schemes 831 15,548 

      

Total   27,545 

 
 

 During the year, the Authority disposed of land and property with capital 
receipts totalling £1.4m, primarily relating to the disposal of 23 Council 
Dwellings through Right to Buy sales. 

Page 34



 

19 

NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
The Vision for Tamworth is underpinned by high level, evidence based priorities that focus upon both Tamworth (the place), the communities 
served (the people) as well as the Council (the organisation). 
 
More than ever, we recognise that our financial capacity will be less than in previous years which means that we will need to maintain our 
approach to innovation, collaboration and transformation.  So, not only will the Council seek investment from businesses and developers, but the 
Council itself will explore viable and sustainable investment opportunities using all returns to support public services. A revised Vision, Strategic 
Priorities and Corporate Plan for the 3 years from 2019-2022 was approved by Council in February 2020.  
 

 
TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL: VISION 

 
To put Tamworth, its people and the local economy at the heart of everything we do 

 

 
OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

FOR 2019-2022 
 

People and Place 
 

 To meet housing needs through a variety of approaches 
and interventions 

 To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity 

 To work collaboratively and flexibly to meet the needs of 
our communities 

 To create a new and developing vision for the continued 
evolution of Tamworth, including a Town Centre fit for the 
21st century 

 

 

Organisation 
 

 To be financially stable 

 To ensure our employees have the right skills and 
culture to help our residents, visitors and businesses 

 To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and 
focused 

 To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and 
knowledge 

 

P
age 35



 

20 

 
 
Further details on the Authority’s Key Performance Indicators for 2020/21 (and previous years) together with our vision and priorities for 
Tamworth, our values along with our performance are set out in our Corporate Plan which sets out our plans and priorities for the coming year, 
and is available from the Authority’s website: 
 

http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/performance 
 

Shown below, against our objectives, are some of our achievements in 2020/21. All that has been achieved is not included but we have 
identified those achievements which we feel will be of most community interest due to their impact and benefits. 
 
 
HIGH LEVEL CORPORATE PLAN PROJECTS/PROGRAMMES 
 

An update on the 2019 to 2022 Corporate Plan actions is shown below. 

Corporate Project Due Date RAG 
Status 

Commentary 

Review of Corporate Capital Strategy 31st March 
2021  

Review of Asset Management Strategy incorporating Stock Condition Survey – it was intended 
that a draft strategy would be available by March 2021 but this has been dependent on the 
contractor gaining access to properties to complete survey work which has been restricted due 
to ongoing COVID-19 measures.  This delay will also impact on the Review of the BRF and 
development of a planned approach; and Review of Commercial Property and performance 
monitoring to be established – completed in part but further work needed. Target dates around 
this element of the project, and the development of a Corporate Asset Management risk 
register, have been re-scheduled to June 2021. 

Priority Review - Cleaners TBA (was 
30th April 
2020) 

 
Implementation phase of the project has been delayed due to COVID-19. Further review will be 
required as part of the COVID-19 recovery phase. 

Priority Review - Leisure Services 31st 
October 
2022 

 
 

Risk Management Strategy 31st July 
2020  

CMT decided to push back the development of the new reporting layout until 1st Quarter report 
of 2021-22. 

Implement Customer Portal 31st July 
2021  

CMT considered on 21 Jan 2021 and agreed the option to plan resources with Civica to deliver 
remainder of project from week commencing 10th May 2021. 

ICT Strategy TBA 
 

ICT Strategy approved by Cabinet 8th April 

P
age 36



 

21 

Corporate Project Due Date RAG 
Status 

Commentary 

Organisational Development Strategy TBA 
 

 

Completion of new council housing at Tinkers Green 
and Kerria 

31st 
December 
2020   

 
Project completed 

Welfare Reform 31st 
December 
2021 

 
 

Leisure Strategy 30th 
December 
2022 

 
 

Town Centre Programme 31st March 
2022  

 

 
 
 

 
 
Key to Symbols 
 

RAG Status Overall Project Status 

 Project on track and in control 

 Project not on track but in control 

 Project not on track 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 37



 

22 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 
The Authority’s Corporate risks for 2020/21 are outlined below.  
 

Title Description 

Finance To ensure that the Council is financially sustainable as an organisation   
 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Funding gaps 
 

12 major - likely 
 

9 serious-likely 17-May-2021 

 Business Rates Retention 
 

12 major - likely 
 

9 serious-likely 17-May-2021 

 New Homes Bonus 
 

9 serious-likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 17-May-2021 

 Welfare and Benefit Reform 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

12 major - likely 17-May-2021 

 Failure to manage budgets 
 

12 major - likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 17-May-2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Description 

Modernisation & 

Commercialisation Agenda 

Develop and implement continuous improvement and develop employees to perform the right work   

 

P
age 38



 

23 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Contract Management & Procurement 
 

6 serious-unlikely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 17-May-2021 

 Management of Assets 
 

6 significant-likely 
 

6 significant-likely 20-May-2021 

 New Revenue Streams 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

9 serious-likely 17-May-2021 

 Workforce Planning Challenges 
 

6 serious-unlikely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 21-May-2021 

 Continuous Improvement 
 

6 serious-unlikely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 06-Apr-2021 

 Partnerships fail 
 

9 serious-likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 20-May-2021 

 

Title Description 

Governance Ensure that processes, policies and procedures are in place and the authority is held to account   
 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Democratic Process 
 

9 serious-likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 06-Apr-2021 

 Legislation 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 06-Apr-2021 

 Policies & Procedures 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 20-May-2021 

 Ethics 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 20-May-2021 

 

Title Description 

Community Focus To ensure the safety, health and wellbeing of the citizens of the borough   
 

P
age 39



 

24 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Community Cohesion & Engagement 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

9 serious-likely 20-May-2021 

 Safeguarding Children & Adults (including Modern Slavery) 
 

12 major - likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 25-May-2021 

 Emergency Planning 
 

12 major - likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 28-May-2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Description 

Economic Growth & Sustainability To ensure that the economic growth and sustainability of the borough is maintained   
 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Lack of economic investment in people and Places 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

3 serious-very unlikely 23-Mar-2021 

 Housing Needs 
 

12 serious - very likely 
 

9 serious-likely 25-May-2021 

 Economic Changes 
 

12 major - likely 
 

9 serious-likely 23-Mar-2021 

 

Title Description 

P
age 40



 

25 

Title Description 

Information Safeguarding To ensure that our data is protected   
 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Data Protection and information Safeguarding 
 

16 major - very likely 
 

6 serious-unlikely 20-May-2021 

 Cyber Security 
 

12 major - likely 
 

8 major - unlikely 20-May-2021 

 Business Continuity 
 

12 major - likely 
 

9 serious-likely 27-May-2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Description 

Brexit The Impact of Brexit upon the Council   
 

 
Risk Gross 

Risk 

Status 

Gross Risk Assessment Current 

Risk 

Status 

Current Risk Assessment Date Reviewed 

 Financial 
 

16 major - very likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 17-May-2021 

 The Impact of Brexit upon the Council 
 

16 major - very likely 
 

4 significant-unlikely 27-May-2021 

 
 
 
 

 

Risk Status 

 
High Risk 

  

P
age 41



 

 

 

 
Medium Risk 

 
Low Risk 

 

 
  

 

 

P
age 42



 

27 

 
  
Further information about the Statement of Accounts is available from the Executive Director Finance, Tamworth Borough Council, 
Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, Staffs. B79 7BZ. 
 
Telephone : 01827 709242. 
Email: stefan-garner@tamworth.gov.uk 
 
This is part of the Authority's policy of providing full information about the Authority's affairs. In addition, interested members of the 
public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit is completed.  The availability of the accounts for inspection is 
advertised on the Authority’s website at www.tamworth.gov.uk 
 
The information in this document may be made available in other selected languages. Copies may be made available on 
tape, in Braille or large print.  P

age 43



 

28 

Statement of Responsibilities 
 
The Authority's Responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required to: 
 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Executive Director Finance; 
 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; and 
 

 Approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Executive Director Finances’ Responsibilities 
 
The Executive Director Finance is responsible for the preparation of the 
Authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom (the Code). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Executive Director Finance has: 
 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 

 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
 

 complied with the Local Authority Code. 
 
The Executive Director Finance has also: 
 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 
 

 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
This Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position 
of Tamworth Borough Council and its expenditure and income for the year 
ended 31st March 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
Stefan Garner CPFA 
Executive Director Finance   Dated: 2nd June  2021 
 
This is an electronic copy without an electronic signature.  The original was signed as dated 
above and a copy can be obtained from the Executive Director Finance. 

Page 44



 

  
 

29 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
 
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the 
amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 
 
A breakdown of the individual services contained within the CIES headings 
are detailed within the Appendix to the CIES on page 163. 
 
A detailed breakdown of the movement on the HRA is shown within the HRA 
Statements on page 128. 
 
  

Page 45



 
 

30 

  2019/20       
2020/21 

Gross Gross Net Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement   Gross Gross Net 

Expenditure Income Expenditure   Notes Expenditure Income Expenditure 

£000 £000 £000     £000 £000 £000 
      

 
        

2,284 (844) 1,440 Chief Executive   2,292 (828) 1,464 

2,258 (1,316) 942 Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration   3,454 (1,272) 2,182 

672 (268) 404 Executive Director Organisation (GF)   718 (249) 469 

2,924 (1,087) 1,837 Assistant Director People (GF)   2,690 (920) 1,770 

5,343 (2,206) 3,137 Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (GF)   4,823 (1,126) 3,697 

132 (41) 91 Executive Director Finance   126 (33) 93 

16,703 (15,965) 738 Assistant Director Finance   15,460 (13,698) 1,762 

728 (401) 327 Assistant Director Assets (GF)   776 (387) 389 

2,210 (454) 1,756 Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (GF)   1,428 (494) 934 

1,918 (427) 1,491 Assistant Director Partnerships   1,390 (304) 1,086 

  
   

  
  

 

140 (117) 23 Executive Director Communities (HRA)   140 (112) 28 

16,462 (18,450) (1,988) HRA Summary   13,303 (18,870) (5,569) 

- - - Assistant Director People (HRA)   126 - 126 

142 - 142 Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (HRA)   155 - 155 

1,046 (592) 454 Assistant Director Assets (HRA)   983 (428) 555 

4,585 (1,252) 3,333 Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (HRA)   4,422 (1,139) 3,283 

2,893 (41) 2,852 Housing Repairs   4,459 (20) 4,439 

  
 

  
 

  
  

  

  
 

  Exceptional Item : Response to COVID-19   2,123 (4,266) (2,143) 

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

      
 

        

60,440 (43,461) 16,979 
 
Cost of Services 7 58,868 (44,146) 14,722 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

P
age 46



 
 

31 

  2019/20       
2020/21 

Gross Gross Net Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement   Gross Gross Net 

Expenditure Income Expenditure   Notes Expenditure Income Expenditure 

£000 £000 £000     £000 £000 £000 

  
 

(49) Other Operating Expenditure 11 
  

189 

  
 

73 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
(FIIE) 12 

  
657 

  
 

(9,977) Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 13 
  

(10,143) 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

  
 

7,026 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 7 
  

5,425 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

  
 

(7,225) 
(Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment Assets 23a 

  
(8,552) 

  
 

(12,897) Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability 23c 
  

9,748 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

  
 

(20,122) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure   
  

1,196 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

  
 

(13,096) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure   
  

6,621 

                
 

 

 

P
age 47



 
 

    32 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by 
the Authority, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to 
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The (Surplus) or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of 
providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the 
statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the 
Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting 
purposes. The Net (Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue 
Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked 
Reserves undertaken by the Authority. 
 
The reserve movements for 2019/20 and 2020/21 are shown on the following 
pages. 
 

Page 48



 
 

    33 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
2020/21 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
s

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

T
o

ta
l 
H

R
A

 B
a

la
n

c
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
  
 N

o
te

 

H
R

A
 3

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 
U

s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

T
o

ta
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      

Balance as at 1st April 2020 6,882 9,387 16,269 6,252 6,307 12,559 20,175 1,482 256 50,741 153,418 204,159 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Movement in Reserves during  2020/21   

 
  

  

  
   

      
   

 
  

  

  
   

      
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(1,228) - (1,228) (4,197) - (4,197) - - - (5,425) - (5,425) 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

- - - - - - - - - - (1,196) (1,196) 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (1,228) - (1,228) (4,197) - (4,197) - - - (5,425) (1,196) (6,621) 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 
Funding Basis Under Regulations (Note 9) 11,069 - 11,069 6,490 - 6,490 (188) 528 39 17,938 (17,938) - 

Net (Increase) / Decrease before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 9,841 - 9,841 2,293 - 2,293 (188) 528 39 12,513 (19,134) (6,621) 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves (Note 
10) (8,721) 8,721 - (2,934) 2,934 - - - - - - - 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      

Increase / (Decrease) in 2020/21 1,120 8,721 9,841 (641) 2,934 2,293 (188) 528 39 12,513 (19,134) (6,621) 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Balance as at 31st March 2021 8,002 18,108 26,110 5,611 9,241 14,852 19,987 2,010 295 63,254 134,284 197,538 

P
age 49



 
 

    34 

 

Movement in Reserves Statement  
2019/20 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c

e
s

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

T
o

ta
l 
H

R
A

 B
a

la
n

c
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
  
 

N
o

te
 H

R
A

 3
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l 
U

s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

T
o

ta
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance as at 1st April 2019 6,113 7,951 14,064 4,485 13,499 17,984 23,361 2,961 48 58,418 132,645 191,063 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Movement in Reserves during  2019/20   

 
  

  

  
   

      
   

 
  

  

  
   

      
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

149 - 149 (7,175) - (7,175) - - - (7,026) - (7,026) 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

- - - - - - - - - - 20,122 20,122 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 149 - 149 (7,175) - (7,175) - - - (7,026) 20,122 13,096 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 
Funding Basis Under Regulations (Note 9) 2,056 - 2,056 1,750 - 1,750 (3,186) (1,479) 208 (651) 651 - 

Net (Increase) / Decrease before transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 2,205 - 2,205 (5,425) - (5,425) (3,186) (1,479) 208 (7,677) 20,773 13,096 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves (Note 
10) (1,436) 1,436 - 7,192 (7,192) - - - - - - - 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      

Increase / (Decrease) in 2019/20 769 1,436 2,205 1,767 (7,192) (5,425) (3,186) (1,479) 208 (7,677) 20,773 13,096 

   
 

  
  

  
   

      
Balance as at 31st March 2020 6,882 9,387 16,269 6,252 6,307 12,559 20,175 1,482 256 50,741 153,418 204,159 

 

P
age 50



 
 

    35 

Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets 
and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The Net Assets of the Authority (assets 
less liabilities) are matched by the Reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are 
reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are Usable Reserves, 
i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the 
need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their 
use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund 
capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that 
the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves 
includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 
services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments Between Accounting 
Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations’. 
 
  

Page 51



 
 

    36 

31st March 2020 Balance Sheet     31st March 2021 

£000   Notes   £000 

    
 

    

222,987 Property, Plant & Equipment 14   224,614 

3,356 Heritage Assets 15   3,575 

23,545 Investment Property 16   23,691 

207 Intangible Assets     327 

3,720 Long Term Investments 17   8,643 

12,797 Long Term Debtors 17   12,758 

266,612 Long Term Assets 
 

  273,608 

    
 

    

50,206 Short Term Investments 17   42,168 

32 Inventories     34 

2,998 Short Term Debtors 18   2,470 

5,263 Cash & Cash Equivalents 19   10,974 

58,499 Current Assets 
 

  55,646 

    
 

    

(311) Short Term Borrowing 17   (311) 

(13,962) Short Term Creditors 21   (13,755) 

(579) Provisions 22   (730) 

(14,852) Current Liabilities 
 

  (14,796) 

    
 

    

(1,453) Provisions 22   (1,907) 

(63,060) Long Term Borrowing 17   (63,060) 

(41,266) Other Long Term Liabilities 23c/38   (50,197) 

(291) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 32   (358) 

(30) Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance 
 

  (1,398) 

(106,100) Long Term Liabilities 
 

  (116,920) 

    
 

    

204,159 Net Assets 
 

  197,538 

    
 

    

50,741 Usable Reserves 
 

  63,254 

153,418 Unusable Reserves 23   134,284 

    
 

    

204,159 Total Reserves     197,538 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stefan Garner CPFA 
Executive Director Finance     Dated: x August 2021 
 
This is an electronic copy without an electronic signature. The original was signed as dated above 
and a copy can be obtained from the Executive Director Finance. 

  

Page 52



 
 

    37 

Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents of 
the Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority 
generates and uses Cash and Cash Equivalents by classifying cash flows as 
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising 
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of 
the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the 
recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing Activities represent the 
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended 
to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from 
Financing Activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by 
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority. 
 

2019/20 Cashflow Statement   2020/21 

£000   Notes £000 

  
 

    

7,026 Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services   5,425 

(21,938) 
Adjustments to Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services for non-cash movements   (25,948) 

3,124 

Adjustments for items included in the Net (Surplus) or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services that are Investing and 
Financing Activities   3,427 

  
 

    

(11,788) Net cash flows from Operating Activities (Surplus) or Deficit 24 (17,096) 

  
 

    

9,811 Investing Activities 25 1,051 

757 Financing Activities 26 10,334 

  
 

    

(1,220) Net (increase) or decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (5,711) 

  
 

    

4,043 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period   5,263 

5,263 Cash and & Cash Equivalents at 31st March 2021 19 10,974 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 53



 
 

    38 

 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements – Summary         Page 
 
Note 1 Accounting Policies 39 
Note 2 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not 

yet been adopted 
44 

Note 3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 45 
Note 4 Assumptions made about the future & other major 

sources of estimation uncertainty 
46 

Note 5 Material Items of Income and Expense 49 
Note 6 Events after the Reporting date 50 
Note 7 Expenditure and Funding Analysis and Adjustment Detail 50 
Note 8 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 54 
Note 9 Adjustments between Accounting Basis & Funding Basis 

Under Regulations 
54 

Note 10 Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 59 
Note 11 Other Operating Expenditure 61 
Note 12 Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure 61 
Note 13 Taxation & Non-specific Grant Incomes 61 
Note 14 Property, Plant & Equipment 62 
Note 15 Heritage Assets 72 
Note 16 Investment Properties 74 
Note 17 Financial Instruments 76 
Note 18 Debtors 83 
Note 19 Cash & Cash Equivalents 84 
Note 20 Assets Held for Sale 84 
Note 21 Creditors 85 
Note 22 Provisions 85 
Note 23 Unusable Reserves 87 
Note 24 Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 93 
Note 25 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities 94 
Note 26 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities 94 
Note 27 Acquired & Discontinued Operations 94 
Note 28 Trading Operations 95 
Note 29 Members’ Allowances 95 
Note 30 Officers’ Remuneration 96 
Note 31 External Audit Costs 98 
Note 32 Government Grants and Contributions 99 
Note 33 Related Parties 102 
Note 34 Capital Expenditure & Financing 105 
Note 35 Leases 106 
Note 36 Impairment Losses 109 
Note 37 Termination Benefits 110 
Note 38 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 111 
Note 39 Contingent Liabilities 119 
Note 40 Nature & Extent of Risks Arising from Financial 

Instruments 
121 

   

Page 54



 
 

    39 

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
 

1. Accounting Policies 
 

BASIS FOR PREPARATION 
 

The notes relating to specific financial statement lines include the corresponding 
accounting policy. As a result, there is not an overall principal accounting policies 
note. However, the general accounting policies where there are not any 
accompanying notes are detailed within this note. 
 

i. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 
2020/21 financial year and its position at the year end of 31st March 2021. The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 require the Authority to prepare 
an Annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of Non Current 
Assets and Financial Instruments. 
 
ii. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received, other than prepayments which are accounted for 
on a cash basis. In particular: 
 
a) Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the 

provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are 
transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the performance 
obligations in the contract; 
 

b) Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there 
is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they 
are carried as Inventories on the Balance Sheet; 
 

c) Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made; 
 

d) Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest 
rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 
determined by the contract; 
 

e) Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is 
written down and a charge made to revenue in financing and investment 
income and expenditure for the income that might not be collected. 
 

Page 55



 
 

    40 

The Authority’s policy is to review all accruals over £1k together with payments 
and receipts over £5k made in February, March and April to ensure that they 
are recorded in the appropriate period. Any accruals below this amount are not 
considered to be material. 

 
iii. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES AND ESTIMATES AND ERRORS 
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies 
or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do 
not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information 
about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s 
financial position or financial performance.   
 
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by 
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the 
new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
iv. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON CURRENT ASSETS 
 

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 
 
a) depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
b) revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where 

there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which 
the losses can be written off; and 

c) amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Authority is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing 
requirement, equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the 
Authority in accordance with statutory guidance.   
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the 
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two. 
 
v. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES (ENGLAND) 
 

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates 
(NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as 
principals, collecting council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are 
required by statute to maintain a separate fund (ie the Collection Fund) for the 
collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NDR.  

Page 56



 
 

    41 

Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major 
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards 
that the amount of Council Tax and NDR collected could be less or more than 
predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR  
 

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (CIES) is the Authority’s share of accrued income for the 
year. However, regulations determine the amount of Council Tax and NDR that 
must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference 
between the income included in the CIES and the amount required by regulation to 
be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. 
 

The Balance Sheet includes the Authority’s share of the end of year balances in 
respect of Council Tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for 
doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a 
likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the statutory 
arrangements will not be made (fixed or determinable payments), the asset is 
written down and a charge made to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 
and Expenditure line in the CIES. The impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows. 
 
 

vi. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

Expenditure on non monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is 
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential 
will flow from the Intangible Asset to the Authority. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the 
project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate 
resources being available) and the authority will be able to generate future 
economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the 
asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable 
to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase 
(research expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where 
the fair value of the assets held by the authority can be determined by reference to 
an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the authority meets this 
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount 
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any 
losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Page 57



 
 

    42 

 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for 
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and 
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any 
sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 
vii. VAT 
 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable 
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from 
income. 
 
viii. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as Surplus Assets 
and Investment Properties and some of its financial instruments at fair value at 
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 
 
The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions 
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into 
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
The Authority uses internal and external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets 
and liabilities in line with the highest and best use definition within the accounting 
standard. The highest and best use of the asset or liability being valued is 
considered from the perspective of a market participant. 
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the Authority’s fair value 
measurement of its assets and liabilities are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement date. 

Page 58



 
 

    43 

 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
ix. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
The authority has no material interests in companies and other entities that have 
the nature of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and require it to prepare 
group accounts. In the authority’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in 
companies and other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, less any 
provision for losses. 
 
x. INVENTORIES AND LONG-TERM CONTRACTS 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO/weighted 
average costing formula. 
 
Long-term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services with the consideration allocated to the 
performance obligations satisfied based on the goods or services transferred to 
the service recipient during the financial year. 
 
 
  

Page 59



 
 

    44 

 

2. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not 
Yet Been Adopted 
 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK (the Code) requires 
an authority to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting change 
that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet adopted 
by the Code for the relevant financial year.   
 
At the balance sheet date the following new standards and amendments to 
existing standards have been published but not yet adopted by the Code of 
Practice of Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom:  
 

a) Definition of a Business – amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations. 
Under IFRS 3, the definition of a business has been clarified and narrowed. 
These changes are not expected to have any impact on the Council’s 
financial statements as the Council is unlikely to obtain control of a 
business through an acquisition or merger. 
 
 

b) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – amendments to IFRS 9 – Financial 
Instruments, IAS 39 – Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, 
and IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments Disclosures have an impact on hedge 
accounting if interest rates change. Interest Rate benchmark reform reflects 
the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) transition from the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (LIBOR) to the Sterling OverNight Index Average (SONIA). 
This will affect classification and measurement where IBOR is a contractual 
term or is used as a  component of a discount rate. The amendments will 
not have an impact on the council, as the council’s debt is fixed rate and all 
of the council’s investments are in sterling and low risk. 
 

c) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 – amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts relate to issues that arise if an 
existing interest rate is replaced by an alternative one. This is unlikely to 
have an impact as interest rate benchmark reform is rarely applied. In 
addition, financial instruments are mainly valued in the accounts at 
amortised cost rather than fair value. 
 

d) IFRS 16 Leases – will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise 
most leases on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with 
corresponding lease liabilities (there is recognition for low-value and short-
term leases).CIPFA/LASAAC have now deferred implementation of IFRS 
16 for local government to 1st April 2021. While it will have no effect for the 
2020/21 financial statements, work has commenced on identifying the 
potential impact for the limited number of leases the Council holds. The 
Council currently has 55 items of equipment supplied under lease 
agreements and it is expected that 39 of these, mainly vehicles and plant, 
will fall under the new IFRS16 requirements. There will be further 
investigations to ensure that other items supplied under lease agreement 
are identified and recorded prior to the adoption of the new requirements. 

 
  

Page 60



 
 

    45 

 

3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out in the notes to the accounts, the 
Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or 
those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in 
the Statement of Accounts are: 
 

 There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local 
government. However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not 
yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be 
impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 
provision; 
 

 The Authority has a Joint Waste Management arrangement with Lichfield 
District Council (LDC) as the host Authority responsible for management of the 
arrangement including the refuse fleet.  

 
In February 2016 the LDC procured a new waste fleet using a contract hire 
arrangement that has been evaluated under IAS 17 as a finance lease. The value 
of assets procured and the finance lease obligation was £2.2m. 
 
We have applied the tests contained within the Code and IFRS 11 and it is our 
conclusion that the arrangement does not meet the definition of a joint venture or 
joint operation as: 
 

a) IFRS 11 requires a legally binding contract to be in place and the joint waste 
service does not contain a formal, legally binding arrangement; 
 

b) the decision-making arrangements do not, in our view, meet the requirement 
for joint control; 
 

c) LDC, as the host Authority, hold a number of key responsibilities and elements 
of decision-making, including legal liability in respect of the lease of the waste 
fleet and other assets. 

 

The Authority therefore only includes within its accounts the payments it makes to 
LDC in respect of the service and its own assets which are used for the provision 
of the service. Payments to LDC are based on an agreed percentage of the total 
net cost of providing the service, based on the number of properties in each area, 
currently 41.7% for the Authority.  

Page 61



 
 

    46 

4. Assumptions Made About the Future & Other Major 
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 
assumptions made by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise 
uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current 
trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be 
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the 
assumptions and estimates. 
 

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2021 for which there is a 
significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as 
follows: 
 
 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions  

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to 
pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, 
the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates 
and expected returns on pension 
fund assets.  
 
A firm of consulting actuaries is 
engaged to provide the Authority 
with expert advice about the 
assumptions to be applied. 
 
 

Adjustment to the level of liability 
on the Balance Sheet. During the 
year the overall liability increased 
from £41.3m to £50.2m (following 
a decrease from £50.9m to 
£41.3m in 2019/20) – see Note 38 
on page 111. 
 
 

Variations in the key assumptions 
will have the following impact on 
the net liability: 

 A 0.5% decrease in the real 
discount rate will increase the net 
pension liability by £15.0m (9%); 

 A 0.5% increase in the assumed 
level of salary increases will 
increase the net pension liability 
by £1.2m (1%); and 

 A 0.5% increase in the assumed 
level of pension increases will 
increase the net pension liability 
by £13.5m (8%).  
  

Business Rates 
Retention 

The Local Government Finance 
Act 2012 introduced a Business 
Rates Retention Scheme that 
enabled local authorities to retain 
a proportion of the Business Rates 
generated in their area. The 
arrangements for the Business 
Rates came into effect on 1

st
 April 

2013. Billing authorities acting as 
agents on behalf of the major 
preceptors, Central Government 
and themselves and are required 
to make provisions for refunding 
ratepayers who have successfully 
appealed against the rateable 
value of their properties on the 

The Authority has included a 
provision of £2.6m (the overall 
provision in the Business Rates 
Collection Fund is £6.6m and the 
Authority’s share of the Local 
Business Rates Retention scheme 
is 40%) for appeals outstanding 
on the 31

st
 March 2021 of £98.9m. 

Local businesses can appeal 
against the Rateable Value on the 
2010 Rating list under limited 
circumstances and can also 
appeal against the Rateable Value 
on the 2017 Rating List.  
 
  

Page 62



 
 

    47 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions  

rating List. 
 
Staffordshire was successful in 
the application to become a 75% 
Business Rate Retention Pilot 
for 2019/20.  
 
The Staffordshire and Stoke on 
Trent Business Rates Pilot 
consisted of Staffordshire County 
Council (SCC); Stoke on Trent 
City Council (SoTCC), all 8 District 
/Borough Councils and the 
Staffordshire Commissioner for 
Police, Fire and Rescue and 
Crime (SPFCC) – for both the 
Police and Fire and Rescue 
Services (FARS). 
 
The pilot allowed 75% of Business 
Rates to be retained locally with 
40% retained by the Districts, 34% 
by the County (74% for SoTCC as 
a Unitary Authority) and 1% for the 
FARS.  
 
Previously, the Council was a 
Member of the GBSLEP business 
rates pool. Half of the rates 
revenue was retained locally with 
Billing authorities acting as agents 
on behalf of the major preceptors 
(SCC 9% / SFARS 1%), Central 
Government (50%) and 
themselves (40%). 
 
The government announced that 
business rate pilot pools 
established for 2019/20 would not 
be allowed to continue and pilot 
business rate pool ceased on 31

st
 

March 2020. 
 
The bid for a new business rate 
retention pool reverting back to 
the 50% retention scheme 
consisting of SoTCC, SCC, 
SFARS and the 8 District Councils 
was successful for 2020/21. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The 2017 Rating List is subject to 
a fresh approach to appeals 
known as "Check, Challenge & 
Appeal" (CCA) which means that 
before an appeal is made the 
Rateable Value may be amended 
upon negotiation between the 
Valuation Office and the ratepayer 
(or their agents). This process will 
inevitably lead to a delay in 
appeals being made.  
 
It is difficult to estimate the 
likelihood of businesses both 
submitting and being successful 
with an appeal in the future and 
the Authority has therefore made 
provision in the accounts based 
on professional advice from 
independent valuers. 
 
The pool currently has large 
growth, however, there is 
uncertainty for the level of future 
income, which cannot be 
quantified at present, due to the 
planned reform of Local 
Government funding and the 
potential for a large rise in appeals 
and the potential economic impact 
of COVID-19. 

Page 63



 
 

    48 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions  

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 
and Investment 
Properties 

Assets are depreciated over 
useful lives that are dependent on 
assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will 
be incurred in relation to individual 
assets. The current economic  
climate makes it uncertain that the 
Authority will be able to sustain its 
current spending on repairs and 
maintenance, bringing into doubt 
the useful lives assigned to 
assets. 
Asset valuations are based on 
market prices and are periodically 
reviewed to ensure that the 
Council does not materially 
misstate its non-current assets. 
The Council’s external valuers 
provided valuations as at 31

st 

March 2021 for approximately 
63.7% of its operational portfolio. 
The remaining balance of 
operational properties were also 
reviewed to ensure values reflect 
current values.  
The outbreak of COVID-19 has 
impacted global financial markets 
and as at the valuation date, less 
weight can be attached to 
previous market evidence to 
inform opinions of value. There is 
an unprecedented set of 
circumstances on which to base a 
judgement.  
Valuations are therefore reported 
on the basis of ‘material valuation 
uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red 
Book Global. Consequently, less 
certainty and a higher degree of 
caution should be attached to the 
valuation. At the current time, it is 
not possible to accurately predict 
the longevity and severity of the 
impact of COVID-19 on the 
economy. Therefore, values have 
been based on the situation prior 
to COVID-19, on the assumption 
that values will be restored when 
the real estate market becomes 
more fluid.  
 
 

If the useful life of assets is 
reduced, depreciation increases 
and the carrying amount of the 
assets falls. It is estimated that the 
annual depreciation charge for 
Council dwellings would increase 
by c.£56k for every year that 
useful lives had to be reduced. 
 
A reduction in the estimated 
valuations would result in 
reductions to the Revaluation 
Reserve and / or a loss recorded 
as appropriate in the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  
 
An increase in estimated 
valuations would result in 
increases to the Revaluation 
Reserve and / or reversals of 
previous negative revaluations to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and / or 
gains being recorded as 
appropriate in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  
 
 
 
 
 
Depreciation charges for 
operational buildings will change 
in direct relation to changes in 
estimated current value. The net 
book value of non-current assets 
subject to potential revaluation is 
£222.2m (£198.1m Council 
Dwellings and £24.1m Other Land 
and Buildings). A 1% movement in 
their valuation would equate to 
£22.2m. With regard to investment 
properties, a 1% movement in 
their valuation would equate to 
£2.4m. 

 

Page 64



 
 

    49 

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions  

The estimated remaining useful 
life of all operational assets is 
reviewed annually based on the 
advice from the Council external 
valuers. 

 

This list does not include assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value 
based on a recently observed market price. 
 

5. Material Items of Income and Expense 
 

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is 
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how 
significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s financial 
performance. This note identifies material items of income and expense. For the 
purposes of this note the Authority considers material items to be those greater 
than £1.2m.  
 
During the year the General fund processed a large number of additional 
payments, and received additional funding all relating to COVID-19 support. The 
narrative to this Statement provides more detail on these payments but the 
material items are shown in the following table: 
 Grant 

Income  
(£000) 

Grants Paid 
Out  

(£000) 
Small Business Grants Fund (SBGF) (to August 2020) 7,290 7,240 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Fund (RHLGF) (to 
August 2020) 

4,300 4,300 

The Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) Addendum 
(5

th
 January onwards) 

3,836 2,865 

Closed Businesses Lockdown Payment (CBLP) 2,826 2,013 
Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) 2,215 1,018 

 
Included in the table are items where the Authority acted as principal or agent, i.e. 
acting as an intermediary. The items where the Authority acted as principal were 
the Additional Restrictions Grant. 
 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic the authority incurred additional 
expenditure, shown separately on the CIES, totalling £2.1m in relation to the 
grants, Council Tax hardship payments and a general increase in some service 
costs required to meet stricter COVID-19 regulations. This was offset by £4.3m 
additional grant income.    
 
In addition to these items the Housing Capital programme continued with 
development spending on the Tinkers Green & Kerria sites at a cost in the year of 
£2.7m (£10.8m 2019/20).  
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 
 

    50 

 
 

6. Events after the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet reporting period are those events, both favourable 
and unfavourable, that occur between the Balance Sheet date (31st March 2021) 
and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue (2nd June 
2021). Two types of events can be identified: 
 

a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; 
 

b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where such a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of 
the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 
 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Executive Director 
Finance on 2nd June 2021. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in 
the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date 
provided information about conditions existing at 31st March 2021, the figures in 
the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to 
reflect the impact of this information. 
  
 

7. Expenditure and Funding Analysis and Adjustment Detail 
 

This statement shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in 
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this 
expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s 
directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted 
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
 

Page 66



 
 

    51 

  2019/20     Expenditure Funding Analysis   2020/21   

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

C
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 t
o

 

th
e

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 H

R
A

 

B
a
la

n
c

e
s
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 

A
c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 

B
a
s

is
 

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

in
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 

In
c

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

  

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

C
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 t
o

 

th
e

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 H

R
A

 

B
a
la

n
c

e
s
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 

A
c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 

B
a
s

is
 

N
e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

in
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 

In
c

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
 

  
  

        

£000 £000 £000 
  

£000 £000 £000 

        Cost of Services       

1,420 20 1,440 
 

Chief Executive 1,464 - 1,464 

727 215 942 
 

Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration 1,024 1,158 2,182 

381 23 404 
 

Executive Director Organisation (GF) 461 8 469 

1,590 247 1,837 
 

Assistant Director People (GF) 1,618 152 1,770 

2,007 1,130 3,137 
 

Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (GF) 2,898 799 3,697 

92 (1) 91 
 

Executive Director Finance 94 (1) 93 

625 113 738 
 

Assistant Director Finance 1,757 5 1,762 

279 48 327 
 

Assistant Director Assets (GF) 237 152 389 

1,660 96 1,756 
 

Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (GF) 894 40 934 

895 596 1,491 
 

Assistant Director Partnerships 1,039 47 1,086 

23 - 23 
 

Executive Director Communities (HRA) 25 3 28 

(15,296) 13,308 (1,988) 
 

HRA Summary (15,540) 9,973 (5,567) 

- - - 
 

Assistant Director People (HRA) 121 5 126 

125 17 142 
 

Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (HRA) 152 3 155 

400 54 454 
 

Assistant Director Assets (HRA) 541 14 555 

3,073 260 3,333 
 

Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (HRA) 3,207 76 3,283 

2,852 - 2,852 
 

Housing Repairs 4,439 - 4,439 
      

  
      

- - - 
 

Exceptional Item : Response to COVID-19 (2,143) - (2,143) 

853 16,126 16,979   Net Cost of Services 2,288 12,434 14,722 

2,367 (12,320) (9,953) 
 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  (14,422) 5,125 (9,297) 

3,220 3,806 7,026   (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services (12,134) 17,559 5,425 

  
      

  

(32,048)       General Fund and HRA balances B/fwd (28,828)     

3,220 
   

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services (12,134) 
 

  

(28,828)       Closing General Fund and HRA Balances (40,962)     
 
 

  

P
age 67



 
 

    52 

2019/20 

Expenditure Funding Analysis Adjustment 
Detail 2020/21 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
  

  
 

(N
o

te
 a

) 

N
e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 

(N
o

te
 b

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s
 

(N
o

te
 c

) 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 

  

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

s
  

 

(N
o

te
 a

) 

N
e
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 f

o
r 

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 

(N
o

te
 b

) 

O
th

e
r 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s
 

(N
o

te
 c

) 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 

    

       

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

  
   

Cost of Services         

- 17 3 20 Chief Executive - 4 (4) - 

53 149 13 215 Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration 1,113 45 - 1,158 

- 20 3 23 Executive Director  Organisation (GF) - 6 2 8 

196 41 10 247 Assistant Director People (GF) 141 5 6 152 

886 240 4 1,130 Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (GF) 726 67 6 799 

- - (1) (1) Executive Director Finance - - (1) (1) 

- 110 3 113 Assistant Director Finance - - 5 5 

32 13 3 48 Assistant Director Assets (GF) 148 5 (1) 152 

16 87 (7) 96 Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (GF) 22 16 2 40 

538 55 3 596 Assistant Director Partnerships 27 16 4 47 

- - - - Executive Director Communities (HRA) - - 3 3 

13,283 25 - 13,308 HRA Summary 9,966 7 - 9,973 

- - - - Assistant Director People (HRA) - 3 2 5 

- 20 (3) 17 Assistant Director Operations and Leisure (HRA) - 3 - 3 

- 46 8 54 Assistant Director Assets (HRA) - 16 (2) 14 

10 241 9 260 Assistant Director Neighbourhoods (HRA) 10 62 4 76 
  

  
      

  
  

- - - - Exceptional Item : Response to COVID-19 - - - - 

15,014 1,064 48 16,126 Net Cost of Services 12,153 255 26 12,434 

(14,144) 1,259 565 (12,320) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (4,550) 916 8,759 5,125 

  
  

  
 

  
  

  

870 2,323 613 3,806 (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services 7,603 1,171 8,785 17,559 
 

 
 

P
age 68



 
 

    53 

7a) Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and 
impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:  
 

 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of 
income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets. 

 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for 
capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions 
are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable 
under generally accepted accounting practices.  

 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are 
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting 
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those 
receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the 
year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is 
credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which 
conditions were satisfied in the year. 

 

7b) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments  

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 
Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:  
 

 For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions 
made by the Authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current 
service costs and past service costs.  

 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the 
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.  
 

7c) Other Differences 

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be 
recognised under statute:  
 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences 
column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for 
premiums and discounts.  

 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the 
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax 
and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income 
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a 
timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or 
Deficits on the Collection Fund.  

Page 69



 
 

    54 

 
8. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

2019/20 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 2020/21 

£000   £000 

  
 

  

  Expenditure   

12,711 Employee Benefits Expenses 12,542 

31,873 Other Services Expense 34,365 

16,204 Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 14,373 

2,323 Retirement Benefits 1,171 

654 REFCUS 645 

419 Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 421 

  
 

  

64,184 Total Expenditure 63,517 

  
 

  

  Income   

(468) Gain on Disposal of Assets (232) 

(30,004) Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (28,316) 

(1,840) Interest and Investment Income (1,478) 

(7,428) Income from Council Tax, NDR and District Rates Income* 867 

(17,418) Government Grants and Contributions (28,933) 

  
 

  

(57,158) Total Income (58,092) 

7,026 (Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services 5,425 

 
* Net of NDR Tariff payment of £10.4m (£10.1m 2019/20). 

 
9. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 

Under Regulations 
 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive 
income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance 
with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory 
provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue 
expenditure. 
 
  

Page 70



 
 

    55 

  Usable Reserves   

Adjustments between Accounting Basis 
and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

2020/21   
    

  

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account:   

    
  

Reversal of items debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement:   

    
  

Charges for depreciation and impairment of Non- 
Current Assets; (378) (7,186) - - - 7,564 
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and  
Equipment; (1,071) (5,723) - - - 6,794 
Movements in the market value of Investment  
Properties; 146 - - - - (146) 

Movement in Fair Value of Capital Property Fund  
Investments (77) - - - - 77 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets; (84) - - - - 84 

Capital Grants and Contributions Applied; 668 1,400 - - - (2,068) 

Movement in the Donated Assets Account - - - - - - 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under  
Statute (REFCUS); (645) - - - - 645 
Amounts on Non Current Assets written off on  
disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal  
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement. - (1,127) - - - 1,127 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 

     
  

Statutory provision for the financing of capital  
investment - Minimum Revenue Provision; 110 - - - - (110) 

Capital expenditure charged against the General  
Fund and HRA balances. 273 2,191 - - - (2,464) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account: 

     
  

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited  
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement 39 - - - (39) - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 
Receipts Reserve: 

     
  

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of  
the gain/ loss on disposal to the Comprehensive  
Income and Expenditure Statement; 40 1,349 (1,389) - - - 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new  
capital expenditure;   

 
1,130 - - (1,130) 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve  
towards administrative costs of Non-Current Asset  
disposals; - (30) 30 - - - 

Page 71



 
 

    56 

  Usable Reserves   

Adjustments between Accounting Basis 
and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to  
finance the payments to the Government Capital  
Receipts Pool; (421) - 421 - - - 

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve  
upon receipt of cash. (11) - (4) - - 15 

Adjustments primarily involving the Major Repairs 
Reserve:   

    
  

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the  
HRA; - 2,933 - (2,933) - - 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new  
capital expenditure. - - - 2,405 - (2,405) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions 
Reserve:   

    
  

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits  
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income &  
Expenditure Statement (see Note 38); (2,767) (872) - - - 3,639 

Employer's pensions contribution and direct  
payments to pensioners payable in the year. 1,886 582 - - - (2,468) 

Adjustment primarily involving the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account:   

    
  

Amount by which Council Tax and Non Domestic  
Rating Income credited to the Comprehensive  
Income and Expenditure Statement is different from  
Council Tax and Non Domestic Rating Income  
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory  
requirements. (8,757) - - - - 8,757 

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated 
Absences Account:   

    
  

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to  
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement on an accruals basis is different from  
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance  
with statutory requirements. (20) (7) - - - 27 

Total Adjustments 2020/21 (11,069) (6,490) 188 (528) (39) 17,938 

  

Page 72



 
 

    57 

 
  Usable Reserves   

Adjustments between Accounting Basis 
and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

2019/20             

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 
Adjustment Account:   

   
    

Reversal of items debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement:   

   
    

Charges for depreciation and impairment of Non-
Current Assets; (410) (9,880) - - - 10,290 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment; (542) (6,213) - - - 6,755 

Movements in the market value of Investment 
Properties; 1,054 - - - - (1,054) 

Movement in Fair Value of Capital Property Fund 
Investments (99) - - - - 99 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets; (114) - - - - 114 

Capital Grants and Contributions Applied; 873 - - - - (873) 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 
Statute (REFCUS); (654) - - - - 654 

Amounts on Non Current Assets written off on disposal 
or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. - (1,574) - - - 1,574 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement:   

   
    

Statutory provision for the financing of capital 
investment - Minimum Revenue Provision; 56 - - - - (56) 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 
and HRA balances. 311 11,703 - - - (12,014) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account:   

   
    

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 208 - - - (208) - 

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital 
Receipts Reserve:   

   
    

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the 
gain/ loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement; 52 2,027 (2,079) - - - 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure;   

 
4,810 - - (4,810) 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve 
towards administrative costs of Non-Current Asset 
disposals; - (37) 37 - - - 

Page 73



 
 

    58 

  Usable Reserves   

Adjustments between Accounting Basis 
and Funding Basis Under Regulations 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
G

ra
n

ts
 U

n
a
p

p
li

e
d

 

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to 
finance the payments to the Government Capital 
Receipts Pool; (419) - 419 - - - 

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon 
receipt of cash. (11) - (1) - - 12 

Adjustments primarily involving the Major Repairs 
Reserve:   

   
    

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the 
HRA; - 2,798 - (2,798) - - 

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new 
capital expenditure. - - - 4,277 - (4,277) 

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions 
Reserve:   

   
    

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited 
or credited to the Comprehensive Income & 
Expenditure Statement (see Note 38); (3,578) (1,117) - - - 4,695 

Employer's pensions contribution and direct payments 
to pensioners payable in the year. 1,816 556 - - - (2,372) 

Adjustment primarily involving the Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account:   

   
    

Amount by which Council Tax and Non Domestic 
Rating Income credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is different from Council 
Tax and Non Domestic Rating Income calculated for 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements. (568) - - - - 568 

Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated 
Absences Account:   

   
    

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements. (31) (13) - - - 44 

Total Adjustments 2019/20 (2,056) (1,750) 3,186 1,479 (208) (651) 

 

  

Page 74



 
 

    59 

 

10. Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 
 
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or 
to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the 
General Fund or Housing Revenue Account balance.  
 
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the 
appropriate service in that year to score against the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund or Housing Revenue 
Account balance so that there is no net charge against Council Tax or housing 
rent for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for Non Current 
Assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not 
represent usable resources for the Authority - these reserves are explained in the 
relevant policies.  
 
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA 
Balances in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans 
and the amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund 
and HRA Expenditure in 2020/21. 
 

Transfers to / 
(from) Earmarked 

Reserves Balance at 
Transfers 

Out 
Transfers 

In Balance at 
Transfers 

Out 
Transfers 

In Balance at 

  
1st April 

2019 2019/20 2019/20 
31st March 

2020 2020/21 2020/21 
31st March 

2021 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

      
 

    
 

  

General Fund:     
 

    
 

  

Future Capital 
Expenditure 1,723 (291) 560 1,992 (1,419) 722 1,295 
Temporary 
Reserves 460 (203) 564 821 (323) 781 1,279 

Retained Funds 3,000 (530) 905 3,375 (753) 8,219 10,841 

Commuted Sums 2,064 (476) 540 2,128 (82) 90 2,136 

Other Reserves 704 (1,292) 1,659 1,071 (487) 1,973 2,557 

Total 7,951 (2,792) 4,228 9,387 (3,064) 11,785 18,108 

    
  

  
  

  

    
  

  
  

  

HRA:   
  

  
  

  

Future Capital 
Expenditure 12,979 (11,703) 4,542 5,818 (3,558) 6,052 8,312 
Temporary 
Reserves 125 (125) 115 115 (115) 573 573 

Retained Funds 333 (66) 45 312 (18) - 294 

Other Reserves 62 - - 62 - - 62 

Total 13,499 (11,894) 4,702 6,307 (3,691) 6,625 9,241 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



 
 

    60 

Future Capital Expenditure: The Authority maintains a Capital Reserve under 
the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. It is 
Authority policy to make advances from this fund to various services. 
 
Temporary Reserves: These have been established by the transfer of funds from 
revenue in order to finance specific identified schemes or potential needs. 
 
Retained Funds: These have been established in order to finance recurring 
irregular expenditure for a specific purpose. 
 
Commuted Sums: These are monies deposited by contractors to finance future 
maintenance expenditure incurred as a result of the various developments. 
 
Other Reserves: The largest of these is the Building Repairs Fund that is held for 
the maintenance of Municipal buildings, including commercial properties.   
  

Page 76



 
 

    61 

 

11. Other Operating Expenditure 
2019/20 Other Operating Expenditure 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

419 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 421 

(468) (Gains) / losses on the disposal of Non Current Assets (232) 

      

(49) Total 189 

 
 

12. Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure 
2019/20 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

2,720 Interest payable and similar charges 2,664 

1,248 
Pension interest costs and expected return on pensions 
assets 913 

(999) Interest receivable and similar income (639) 

(841) Finance Lease Income (840) 

(2,154) 
(Income) and expenditure in relation to investment properties  
and changes in their fair value (1,518) 

99 Investment impairment 77 

      

73 Total 657 

 
 
 

13. Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income 
2019/20 Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

(3,933) Council Tax income (4,077) 

(13,549) Non Domestic Rates (5,462) 

10,054 Non Domestic Rates - Tariff 10,405 

17 Non Domestic Rates - Levy to GBSLEP 565 

(1,485) Non ringfenced government grants (9,467) 

(1,081) Capital grants and contributions (2,107) 

      

(9,977) Total (10,143) 

 
 
A detailed breakdown of the grants and contributions credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2020/21 is shown in Note 
32 on page 99. 

Page 77



 
 

- 62 - 

14. Property, Plant & Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are 
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 
 
a) Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, subject to a de minimus level of £10k, 
provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential 
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) 
is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
b) Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 

i. the purchase price; 
ii. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management; and 

iii. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located. 

 
The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current value, 
unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a 
variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is 
acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the 
asset given up by the Authority. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

 
i. Infrastructure, Community Assets and Assets Under Construction – depreciated 

historical cost; 
ii. Dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for 

social housing (EUV-SH); and 
iii. all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid 

for the asset in its existing use (Existing Use Value – EUV). 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 
 

- 63 - 

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialised 
nature of an asset, Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of 
current value. Where non property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or 
both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. In the case 
of the Assembly Rooms and Cemeteries valuations, there is no active market and so 
DRC is used. 
 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently 
regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their 
current value at the year end, but as a minimum every five years – including an annual 
desktop review of all Council Dwellings. A review of the valuation of all significant 
assets is undertaken annually. 
 
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal 
of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
i. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down firstly against that 
balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); 

ii. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service 
lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been 
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
c) Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where 
this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for 
the shortfall. 
 
Where the Authority has incurred capital expenditure on Council dwellings this is 
included within the Gross Book Value (GBV) and where it is not considered to add 
value it is included as impairment. These impairments are subject to write out 
annually. 
 
The Authority has an ongoing programme of regeneration including disposal and 
redevelopment of garage sites and the redevelopment of housing at Tinkers Green 
and Kerria Centre.  
 
Where the decision had been made to dispose of a garage site, the value of the 
buildings element has been impaired to zero leaving only a residual land value. 

Page 79



 
 

- 64 - 

Similarly, the value of the dwellings in the housing redevelopment areas that are no 
longer available to let have been impaired to zero leaving only a residual land value. 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
i. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down firstly against that 
balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);  

ii. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service 
lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to 
the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been 
charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
d) Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception 
is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and 
certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. Assets 
Under Construction). 
 
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
i. Council Housing Stock: on a straight line basis to an appropriate residual 

value over the expected useful life of the asset of 50 years.  
 
ii. Other Buildings: on a straight line basis to a nil residual value over the 

expected useful life of the asset being a range of 5 years to 70 years. 
 
Historical properties:  on a straight line basis to a nil residual value over the 
expected useful life of the asset being over 100 years 
 

iii. Vehicles, Plant and Equipment:  on a straight line basis to a nil residual value 
over the expected useful life of the asset, being between 1 and 20 years. 
 

iv. Infrastructure:  on a straight line basis to a nil residual value over the expected 
useful life of the asset of 30 years. 

 
v. Community Assets: on a straight line basis to a nil residual value over the 

expected useful life of the asset of 100 years. 
 
vi. Heritage Assets: the Authority considers that the Heritage Assets held will 

have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the Authority does 
not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation for the assets.  

 
vii. Computer Hardware: is depreciated over a period of 3 years on a straight line 

basis to a nil residual value. 

Page 80



 
 

- 65 - 

 
viii. Investment Properties and Surplus Assets: no depreciation has been 

applied to either the land or building value of Investment Properties or Surplus 
Assets. 

 
ix. Intangible Fixed Assets: computer software licences are amortised to revenue 

over a period of 3 years. 
 

x. Furniture and equipment – minor purchases by the Authority are charged to 
revenue in the year of acquisition and are not capitalised in the accounts. 

 
xi. De minimus items of expenditure on computer equipment and software are 

capitalised under the concept of ‘Grouped Assets’ where the value of such 
items is material. A charge is made for these assets (depreciation for equipment 
and amortisation for software), calculated using the straight line method over a 
period of three years. 

 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately – as detailed within the Component Accounting Policy for Property, Plant 
and Equipment. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would 
have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from 
the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
e) Disposals and Non Current Assets Held for Sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and current value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to current value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in current value are recognised only up to 
the amount of any previous losses recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision 
of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to Non Current Assets and valued at the lower of their carrying 
amount before they were classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for depreciation, 
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in 
the Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is 
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals 

Page 81



 
 

- 66 - 

(if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying 
value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the 
asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10k are categorised as capital receipts. 
A proportion of capital receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to the 
government. The balance of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve, and 
can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the authority’s 
underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement) (England and Wales). 
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 
noncurrent assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital 
financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
f) Component Accounting Policy for Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
i. De Minimus Level 
 
The de minimus threshold for the Authority is a current net book value of £250k. 
Individual assets with a value less than £250k will be disregarded for 
componentisation. This level will be reviewed annually.  
 
ii. Policy for Componentisation 
 
The code requires that each part of an asset should be separately identified and 
depreciated where the cost is significant in relation to the overall cost of the asset. 
 
To be separately identified as a component, an element of an asset must meet the 
following criteria: 
 

 have a cost of at least 20% of the cost of the overall asset and 
 

 have a materially different useful life (at least 20% different) and/or 
 

 have a different depreciation method that materially affects the amount charged 
 
The componentisation policy will be applied to new capital spend and new assets with 
a total cost of over £250k will be considered under the componentisation policy as 
follows:  
 

 when an asset is enhanced, the cost of the replacement component is compared 
with the cost of the total asset and the result is measured against the agreed de 
minimus threshold; 

 

Page 82



 
 

- 67 - 

 When an asset is acquired: the cost of any component parts are compared with 
the overall cost of the new asset and the results assessed against the agreed de 
minimus threshold; 

 
iii. Valuation 
 
The 5 year valuation cycle remains and therefore componentisation needs to be 
considered for each asset in the portfolio.  
 
In addition in each financial year, a list of assets that have had capital expenditure 
incurred will be passed to the valuers who can consider componentisation for any 
properties not already reviewed. 
 
iv. Impairment 
 
We will continue to complete a desktop Impairment review on an annual basis.  
  

Page 83



 
 

- 68 - 

Movement in 2020/21 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 

O
th

e
r 

L
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e

r 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 
P

la
n

t 
a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
     

  

Cost or Valuation   
     

  

    
     

  

At 1st April 2020 187,128 25,196 4,392 378 1,155 8,565 226,814 

    
     

  

Additions 5,544 4 151 - - 2,861 8,560 
Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment written off to Gross Carrying 
Amount; (7,082) (274) - - - - (7,356) 

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve; 8,357 195 - - - - 8,552 
Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services; (5,723) (1,071) - - - - (6,794) 

Derecognition - Disposals; (1,092) (48) - - - - (1,140) 

Other movements in cost or valuation. 11,007 319 - - - (11,326) - 

                

At 31st March 2021 198,139 24,321 4,543 378 1,155 100 228,636 

    
     

  

    
     

  
Accumulated Depreciation & 
Impairment   

     
  

    
     

  

At 1st April 2020 - (232) (3,339) (252) (4) - (3,827) 

    
     

  

Depreciation Charge; (2,838) (333) (127) (13) - - (3,311) 
Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment written off to Gross Carrying 
Amount; 7,082 274 - - - - 7,356 
Impairment losses / (reversals) 
recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services; (4,253) - - - - - (4,253) 

Derecognition - disposals. 9 4 - - - - 13 

                

At 31st March 2021 - (287) (3,466) (265) (4) - (4,022) 

    
     

  

    
     

  

Net Book Value   
     

  

at 31st March 2020 187,128 24,964 1,053 126 1,151 8,565 222,987 

at 31st March 2021 198,139 24,034 1,077 113 1,151 100 224,614 

    
     

  

Nature of Holdings at year end   
     

  

Owned 198,139 24,034 1,077 113 1,151 100 224,614 

 
 

Page 84



 
 

- 69 - 

Movement in 2019/20 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 

O
th

e
r 

L
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e

r 

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 
P

la
n

t 

a
n

d
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
     

  

Cost or Valuation   
     

  

    
     

  

At 1st April 2019 177,979 22,387 4,172 378 1,139 7,648 213,703 

    
     

  

Additions 9,670 3,490 220 - 16 10,791 24,187 
Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment written off to Gross Carrying 
Amount; (9,768) (186) - - - - (9,954) 

Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve; 7,052 173 - - - - 7,225 
Revaluation increases / (decreases) 
recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services; (6,213) (542) - - - - (6,755) 

Derecognition - Disposals; (1,466) (126) - - - - (1,592) 

Other movements in cost or valuation. 9,874 - - - - (9,874) - 

                

At 31st March 2020 187,128 25,196 4,392 378 1,155 8,565 226,814 

    
     

  

    
     

  
Accumulated Depreciation & 
Impairment   

     
  

    
     

  

At 1st April 2019 - (92) (3,174) (239) (4) - (3,509) 

    
     

  

Depreciation Charge; (2,696) (335) (165) (13) - - (3,209) 
Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment written off to Gross Carrying 
Amount; 9,768 186 - - - - 9,954 
Impairment losses / (reversals) 
recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services; (7,081) - - - - - (7,081) 

Derecognition - disposals. 9 9 - - - - 18 

                

At 31st March 2020 - (232) (3,339) (252) (4) - (3,827) 

    
     

  

    
     

  

Net Book Value   
     

  

at 31st March 2019 177,979 22,295 998 139 1,135 7,648 210,194 

at 31st March 2020 187,128 24,964 1,053 126 1,151 8,565 222,987 

    
     

  

Nature of Holdings at year end   
     

  

Owned 187,128 24,964 1,053 126 1,151 8,565 222,987 

  

Page 85



 
 

- 70 - 

a) Capital Commitments 
 
At 31st March 2021, the Authority has entered into a number of contracts for the 
construction or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2020/21 and future 
years. The major commitments for schemes valued in excess of £1m are: 

2019/20 Capital Contract 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

5,911 Housing Repairs & Investment  6,281 

- Improvements to High Rise Blocks 1,560 

2,523 Regeneration of Tinkers Green & Kerria - 

- Caledonian Depot New Build 1,508 

- Affordable Properties at Wilnecote 5,031 

      

8,434 Total 14,380 

 
 
b) Revaluations 
 

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and 
Equipment required to be measured at current value is revalued at least every five 
years. The effective date of revaluation is 31st March 2021. The valuations are carried 
out by Authority’s Property Surveyor, Mr P Evans MRICS, IRRV with the valuation of 
Council Dwellings being undertaken by Specialist Valuation Services an external 
valuer. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the 
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and 
equipment are carried at historical cost as a proxy for current value. 
 
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and 
Equipment required to be measured at current value is revalued at least every five 
years – including a desktop review of all Council Dwellings. A review of the valuation 
of all significant assets is undertaken annually. 
 

The outbreak of COVID-19 has impacted global financial markets and as at the 
valuation date, less weight can be attached to previous market evidence to inform 
opinions of value. There is an unprecedented set of circumstances on which to base a 
judgement.  
 

Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per 
the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of 
caution should be attached to the valuation. At the current time, it is not possible to 
accurately predict the longevity and severity of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
economy. Therefore, values have been based on the situation prior to COVID-19, on 
the assumption that values will be restored when the real estate market becomes 
more fluid.  

Page 86



 
 

- 71 - 

The following statement shows the progress of the Authority’s rolling programme for 
revaluation of Non Current Assets: 
 

Valuations (Cost or 
Valuation) 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 

O
th

e
r 

L
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

A
s
s
e
ts

 U
n

d
e

r 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

In
ta

n
g

ib
le

 A
s
s
e
ts

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 
P

la
n

t&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
      

  

Valued at Historical Cost - - 4,543 378 1,155 100 1,746 7,922 

    
      

  

Valued at Current Value in:   
      

  

    
      

  

2020/21 198,139 15,166 - - - - - 213,305 

2019/20 - - - - - - - - 

2018/19 - 5,766 - - - - - 5,766 

2017/18 - 3,389 - - - - - 3,389 

    
      

  

Total 198,139 24,321 4,543 378 1,155 100 1,746 230,382 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 87



 
 

- 72 - 

 

15. Heritage Assets 
 
Heritage Assets are assets that are held by the Authority because of their cultural, 
environmental or historical value. Tangible Heritage Assets include historical buildings, 
paintings, sculptures / statues, archives and other works of art. 
 
The Authority's Museum, Art and Civic Heritage Assets are held in various sites. The 
Museum Collection has four main collections, General Collection, Art, Furniture and 
Archaeological Collection and Ephemera.  
 
The collections are used for education, learning, research, enjoyment and are 
preserved for the use of future generations. 
 
Valuation of Heritage Assets 
 

The Code requires that Heritage Assets are measured at valuation in the 2020/21 
financial statements (including the 2019/20 comparative information). The Authority 
will recognise in the Balance Sheet each asset shown in the table which has an 
identified value. 
 
Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation 
gains and losses) in accordance with the Authority’s accounting policies on Property, 
Plant and Equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation 
to Heritage Assets as detailed below. 
 
The accounting policies in relation to Heritage Assets that are deemed to include 
elements of intangible Heritage Assets are also presented below. 
 

 General Collection: Tamworth Castle has held collections and maintained a 
museum since it was purchased for the Borough in 1897.  The collections are 
crucial for maximising access to and understanding of Tamworth’s heritage. 
These items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is 
based on Market values. Acquisitions, although rare, are initially recognised at 
cost. 

 

 Art Collection: The collection consists principally of views of Tamworth by local 
artists although some are nationally recognised. The mediums covered include 
oil, watercolour, lithographs, mezzotints and prints. These too are reported in 
the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation based on Market values. 

 

 Archaeological Collection and Ephemera: The archaeological collection 
consists mainly of finds from various excavations local to Tamworth, usually as 
a result of building development around Tamworth Castle site but also in the 
town and further afield. These are not recognised on the Balance Sheet as cost 
or valuation information is not reliable for items of this type due to the diverse 
nature, and lack of comparable market values for the assets held. 

 

 Civic Collection and Statues: The Authority’s Civic Collection and Statues 
were valued in April 2012 by external valuers. These assets are deemed to 
have an indeterminate life with high residual values; hence the Authority does 
not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. 
 

Page 88



 
 

- 73 - 

 Tamworth Castle: The castle dates from c1070 but has been updated and 
modernised during the interim period. The current value is based on historic 
cost but there are regular works to maintain the property. 

 

Movement in 2020/21 

A
rt

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 

C
iv

ic
 R

e
g

a
li

a
 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 E

x
h

ib
it

s
 

S
ta

tu
e

s
 

C
a
s
tl

e
 

T
o

ta
l 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
    

  

Cost or Valuation   
    

  

    
    

  

At 1st April 2020 97 174 624 256 2,205 3,356 

    
    

  

Additions - - - - 219 219 

              

At 31st March 2021 97 174 624 256 2,424 3,575 

 
 

Movement in 2019/20 

A
rt

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 

C
iv

ic
 R

e
g

a
li

a
 

M
u

s
e
u

m
 E

x
h

ib
it

s
 

S
ta

tu
e

s
 

C
a
s
tl

e
 

T
o

ta
l 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 A

s
s
e
ts

 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
    

  

Cost or Valuation   
    

  

    
    

  

At 1st April 2019 97 174 624 256 1,909 3,060 

    
    

  

Additions - - - - 296 296 

              

At 31st March 2020 97 174 624 256 2,205 3,356 

 
 

Heritage Assets Five Year Summary of 
Transactions 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

    
   

  

Cost of Acquisitions of Heritage Assets   
   

  

    
   

  

Castle Museum 39 18 195 296 219 

Total Cost of Purchases 39 18 195 296 219 

 
 

Page 89



 
 

- 74 - 

16. Investment Properties 
 
Investment Properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods. 
 

Investment Properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 
being the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, 
investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not 
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end. 
Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 

Rentals received in relation to Investment Properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement: 
 

2019/20 Investment Properties 2020/21 

      

£000   £000 

      

(1,338) Rental income from Investment Property (1,710) 

238 Direct operating expenses arising from Investment Property 338 

      

(1,100) Net (Gain) / Loss (1,372) 

 
There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its 
Investment Properties or on the Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the 
proceeds of disposal. The Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, 
construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



 
 

- 75 - 

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of Investment 
Properties over the year: 

2019/20 Fair Value of Investment Properties 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

22,488 Balance at 1st April 2020 23,545 

      

  Additions:   

3 Subsequent expenditure - 

      

  Valuations:    

1,054 Changes in market valuation 146 

      

23,545 Balance at 31st March 2021 23,691 

 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy - All the Authority’s investment properties have been value 
assessed as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation purposes (see Note 1 for 
an explanation of the fair value levels). 
 
Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment 
Property - The fair value of investment property has been measured using an income 
approach, by means of discounted cashflow method, where the expected cash flows 
from  the properties are discounted (using a market – derived discount rate) to 
establish the present value of the net income stream. The approach has been 
developed using the Authority’s own data requiring it to factor in assumptions such as 
the duration and timing of cash inflows and outflows, rent growth, occupancy levels, 
bad debt levels, maintenance costs, etc.  
 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for 
investment properties. 
 
Highest and Best Use - In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s investment 
properties, the highest and best use is their current use. 
 
Valuation Process for Investment Properties - The Authority’s investment property 
has been valued as at 31st March 2021 by Paul Evans, Internal Valuer, in accordance 
with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards 
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The outbreak of COVID-19 has 
impacted global financial markets and as at the valuation date, less weight can be 
attached to previous market evidence to inform opinions of value. There is an 
unprecedented set of circumstances on which to base a judgement. Valuations are 
therefore reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red 
Book Global. 

 
 
 
  

Page 91



 
 

- 76 - 

 
17. Financial Instruments 

 

Financial Liabilities 
 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured 
at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the 
liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the 
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. 
 
For most of the borrowings that the Authority has, this means that the amount 
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued 
interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 
 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach 
that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. 
 
There are three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 

• amortised cost; 
• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL); and 
• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
 

The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the 
cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument). 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at 
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the 
Authority, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the 
year in the loan agreement. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of a financial asset are credited 
or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

Page 92



 
 

- 77 - 

 
 
Expected Credit Loss Model 
 
The Authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at 
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model 
also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are 
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority. 
 
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows 
might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit 
risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly 
since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. 
Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the 
basis of 12-month expected losses. 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL) 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and 
losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services. 
 
Fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price; 

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow 
analysis. 

 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 
following three levels: 
 

 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets that the authority can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly; 

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
  

Page 93



 
 

- 78 - 

a) Categories of Financial Instruments 
 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
 

Financial Assets Non-Current Current 

  

Investments Investments Debtors 

31st 
March 
2020 

31st 
March 
2021 

31st 
March 
2020 

31st 
March 
2021 

31st 
March 
2020 

31st 
March 
2021 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Amortised Cost             

Principal - 5,000 50,002 42,000 - - 

Investment Interest 
Accrual 

- - 204 168 - - 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
(CCE) 

- - - - 5,258 10,971 

CCE Accrued Interest - - - - 2 - 

Total Investments - 5,000 50,206 42,168 5,260 10,971 

              

Trade Debtors 12,797 12,758 - - 2,289 2,437 

              

Total Amortised Cost 12,797 17,758 50,206 42,168 7,549 13,408 

              

Fair Value Through 
Profit and Loss 

3,720 3,643 - - - - 

              

Total Financial Assets 16,517 21,401 50,206 42,168 7,549 13,408 

 
Non-current trade debtors of £12m relate to a long term finance lease for the 
Ankerside Shopping Centre including car park, with a remaining term of 68 years.  
 
The Authority has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease 
payments expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value 
anticipated for the property when the lease comes to an end. The minimum lease 
payments comprise settlement of the Long Term Debtor for the interest in the property 
acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the Authority in 
future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. 
 

Financial Liabilities Non-Current Current 

  Borrowings Creditors 

  

31st 
March 
2020 

31st 
March 
2021 

31st 
March 
2020 

31st 
March 
2021 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Amortised Cost         

Principal 63,060 63,060 - - 

Interest Payable Accrual - - 311 311 

Total Borrowings 63,060 63,060 311 311 

Bank Overdraft - - - - 

Trade Creditors - - 6,335 5,893 

Total Financial 
Liabilities at Amortised 
Cost 

63,060 63,060 6,646 6,204 

 

Page 94



 
 

- 79 - 

 
b) Gains and Losses 
 
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and Movement in Reserves Statements in relation to financial instruments 
are made up as follows. 

Financial Instruments 

(Surplus) or 
Deficit on 

the 
Provision of 

Services 

(Surplus) or 
Deficit on the 
Provision of 

Services 

  
2019/20 2020/21 

£000 £000 

Net gains/losses on:      

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss  99 77 

Total net gains/losses 99 77 

Interest revenue:     

Financial Assets Measured  at Amortised Cost (999) (639) 

Total interest revenue (999) (639) 

Interest expense     

Fee expense:     

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities that are not at Fair  Value 
Through Profit or Loss 

2,720 2,664 

Total fee expense 2,720 2,664 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 95



 
 

- 80 - 

c) Fair Value of Financial Assets 
 
Some of the authority’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
and are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques used to 
measure them. 
 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value  

Recurring Fair Value 
Measurements  

Input level 
in fair 
value 

hierarchy  

Valuation technique 
used to measure fair 

value  

31st March 
2020 

31st March 
2021 

£000 £000 

Fair Value Through Profit and 
Loss 

        

Other Financial Instruments 
Classified as Fair Value Through 
Profit and Loss 

Level 1  

Unadjusted quoted 
prices in active 
markets for identical 
shares (Investments in 
Property Funds)  

3,720 3,643 

Total     3,720 3,643 

 
Investments made in property funds are as follows:- 
 
Schroders UK Real Estate Fund - £1.9m, with a gross return/yield of 2.8% at 31st 
March 2021. 
 
Threadneedle Property Unit Trust - £2.0m, with a gross return/yield of 4.3% 
 
Total investments - £3.9m, with an estimated return of c.4.0% plus any capital growth. 
The total value of these investments at 31st March 2021 is £3.6m (£3.7m at 31st March 
2020). 
 
d) The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not 
measured at Fair Value (but for which Fair Value Disclosures are required) 

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described above), all other 
financial liabilities and financial assets represented by amortised cost and long-term 
debtors and creditors are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost.  Their fair 
value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take 
place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions: 

 For loans from the PWLB payable, PWLB new market rates have been applied 
to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures.  An 
additional note to the tables sets out the alternative fair value measurement 
applying the premature repayment/borrowing rates, highlighting the impact of 
the alternative valuation; 

 For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to 
provide the fair value; 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised; 

 Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or 
other receivable the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed 

Page 96



 
 

- 81 - 

amount; 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed 
amount. The fair values calculated are as follows: 

  31st March 2020 31st March 2021 

Financial Liabilities Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

  Amount Value Amount Value 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

PWLB Debt* 63,371 86,070 63,371 92,950 

Creditors 6,335 6,335 5,893 5,893 

Total Financial Liabilities 69,706 92,405 69,264 98,843 

* includes short term interest accrual of £311k. 

The fair value of the liabilities is greater than the carrying amount because the 

Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest 

rate payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans in the market at the 

balance sheet date.  This shows a notional future loss (based on economic conditions 

at 31st March 2021) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above current 

market rates.  

 

The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £93.0m measures the 

economic effect of the terms agreed with the PWLB compared with estimates of the 

terms that would be offered for market transactions undertaken at the Balance Sheet 

date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value measures the 

additional interest that the authority will pay over the remaining terms of the loans 

under the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be paid if the loans were at 

prevailing market rates.  

 

The authority has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB 

rather than from the markets. If a value is calculated on this basis, the carrying amount 

of £63.1m would be valued at £93.0m. But, if the authority were to seek to avoid the 

projected loss by repaying the loans to the PWLB, the PWLB would raise a penalty 

charge for early redemption in addition to charging a premium for the additional 

interest that will not now be paid/giving a discount for the reduced interest income that 

will be avoided. The exit price for the PWLB loans including the penalty charge would 

be £114.3m. 

  

Page 97



 
 

- 82 - 

 
  31st March 2020 31st March 2021 

Loans and Receivables Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 

  Amount Value Amount Value 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Money Market Loans <1 year 50,206 50,225 42,168 42,168 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 5,260 5,260 10,971 10,971 

Long Term Investments 3,720 3,720 8,643 8,749 

Debtors 2,289 2,289 2,437 2,437 

Long Term Debtors 12,797 12,797 12,758 12,758 

Total Financial Assets 74,272 74,291 76,977 77,083 

 

Where the fair value of the assets is lower than the carrying amount this is because 
the Authority’s portfolio of investments includes a number of fixed rate loans where 
the interest rate receivable is lower than the rates available for similar loans at the 
Balance Sheet date and vice versa. For 2020/21, a notional future gain (based on 
economic conditions at 31st March 2021) was attributable to the commitment to 
receive interest above current market rates. 
 
Short-term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of 
their value. 
 
 
e) Fair value hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities that are 
not measured at fair value 
 

  

Other 
Significant 
Observable 

Inputs 

Other 
Significant 
Observable 

Inputs 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements Using:  (Level 2)  (Level 2) 

  
31st March 

2020 
31st March 

2021 

  £000 £000 

Financial Liabilities     

Financial Liabilities Held at Amortised Cost:     

PWLB 63,371 63,371 

Total 63,371 63,371 

      

Financial assets     

Financial Assets Held at Amortised Cost: 55,466 53,140 

Total 55,466 53,140 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 98



 
 

- 83 - 

18. Debtors 
 

2019/20 Debtors 2020/21 

£000   £000 

  Trade Receivables:   

405 Other Local Authority 411 

2,489 Housing Rent 2,425 

2,855 Other Entities and Individuals 2,969 

5,749   5,805 

  Other Receivable Amounts:   

1,188 Government Departments 430 

42 Business Rates 44 

93 Council Tax Payers 119 

1,323   593 

      

(890) Payments in Advance (645) 

      

(3,184) Less Provision for Bad Debt (3,283) 

      

2,998 Total Debtors 2,470 

 
 
The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non-
domestic rates) can be analysed by age as follows: 

 

Debtors 
Bad debt 

Provisions Debtors for Local Taxation - Council Tax & 
Non-domestic Rates 

Debtors 
Bad Debt 

Provisions 

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

1,293 479 Less than one year 1,526 527 

615 332 One to two years 714 369 

339 202 Two to three years 446 271 

1,077 940 More than three years 1,162 1,013 

3,324 1,953 Total 3,848 2,180 

  

Page 99



 
 

- 84 - 

 

19. Cash & Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash is represented by Cash in Hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid 
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 

In the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents are shown net of Bank 
Overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s 
cash management. 
 
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

2019/20 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

3 Cash held by the Authority 3 

- Bank current accounts 705 

5,260 Short term deposits with Banks and Building Societies 10,266 

      

5,263 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,974 

 
 

20. Assets Held for Sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and current value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the 
loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount 
of any previous losses recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services. 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to Non Current Assets and valued at the lower of their carrying 
amount before they were classified as Held for Sale; adjusted for depreciation, 
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell. 

 
There were no assets held for sale at 31st March 2021. 

  

Page 100



 
 

- 85 - 

 

21. Creditors 
 

2019/20 Creditors 2020/21 

£000   £000 

  Trade Payables:   

      

1,637 Other Local Authorities 1,001 

540 Housing Rent 599 

4,158 Other Entities and Individuals 4,293 

6,335   5,893 

  Other Payables:   

      

1,527 Government Departments 6,191 

117 Council Tax Payers 132 

3,971 Precepting Authorities (Business Rates) - 

1,679 Precepting Authorities (Council Tax) 1,000 

333 Business Rates Payments 539 

7,627   7,862 

      

13,962   13,755 

 

 
22. Provisions 

 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic 
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could 
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Authority has an 
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – 
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 
recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as 
income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
received if the Authority settles the obligation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



 
 

- 86 - 

a) Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) 
 
This provision has been established as a result of the decision to trigger the ‘Scheme 
of Arrangement’ (SOA) with regard to Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI), at a meeting 
of the Board of Directors on 13th November 2012. Under this SOA, the Authority is 
liable to pay a levy up to the value of claims paid since 1993 (£252k) and a provision 
of £33k was established to cover the potential additional levy of up to 28%. There is 
currently a remaining provision of £8k. 
 
 

b) Business Rates Appeals 
 
Under Business Rates Retention arrangements, Billing authorities acting as agents on 
behalf of the major preceptors (10%), Central Government (50%) and themselves 
(40%) are required to make provisions for refunding ratepayers who have successfully 
appealed against the rateable value of their properties on the Rating List. The 
Authority has included a provision of £2.6m (£2.0m – 2019/20)  (the overall provision 
in the Business Rates Collection Fund is £6.6m (£5.1m – 2019/20) and the Authority’s 
share of the Local Business Rates Retention scheme is 40%) for appeals outstanding 
on the 31st March 2021 of £98.9m (£93.6m 2019/20). 
 
Further details regarding the approach to determining the NDR provision can be found 
in Note 39 - Contingent Liabilities as local businesses could still appeal against the 
Rateable Value on the 2010 Rating List under limited circumstances and can also 
appeal against the Rateable Value on the 2017 Rating List.  
 

Provisions 

Municipal 
Mutual 

Insurance 

Non 
Domestic 

Rates 
Appeals 

Short 
Term 

Provisions 
Total 

Long 
Term - 
Non 

Domestic 
Rates 

Appeals 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

  
  

    
Balance at 1st April 2019 8 524 532 1,283 

Additional provisions made in year - 159 159 477 

Amount used in year - (13) (13) (307) 

Unused amounts reversed in year - (99) (99) - 

          

Balance at 31st March 2020 8 571 579 1,453 

  
  

    
  

  
    

Additional provisions made in year - 328 328 986 

Amount used in year - (177) (177) (532) 

          

Balance at 31st March 2021 8 722 730 1,907 

 
 
 
  

Page 102



 
 

- 87 - 

 

23. Unusable Reserves 
 

31st March 
2020 Unusable Reserves 

31st March 
2021 

£000   £000 

      

61,901 Revaluation Reserve 69,726 

119,859 Capital Adjustment Account 112,618 

(41,266) Pensions Reserve (52,185) 

12,689 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 12,674 

(265) Accumulated Absences Account (292) 

500 Collection Fund Adjustment Account (8,257) 

      

153,418 Total Unusable Reserves 134,284 

 
a) Revaluation Reserve 
 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from 
increases in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is 
reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 
 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 
 

 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through 
depreciation; or 

 

 disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the 
date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are 
consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 

2019/20 Revaluation Reserve 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      
 

  

55,561   Balance at 1st April 2020 
 

61,901 

  7,225 

Revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the (Surplus) or Deficit  on the Provision of 
Services 8,552   

7,225   

Surplus or deficit on the revaluation of non-current 
assets not posted to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

 
8,552 

      
 

  

  (885) 
Difference between fair value depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation (727)   

(885)   Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account   (727) 

      
 

  

61,901   Balance at 31st March 2021   69,726 

 
 
 
 

Page 103



 
 

- 88 - 

b) Capital Adjustment Account 
 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the 
different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of Non Current Assets and 
for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under 
statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction 
or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings 
from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). 
The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the 
costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
 
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and 
gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. 
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and 
Equipment before 1st April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to 
hold such gains. 
 
Note 9 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, 
apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 
  

Page 104



 
 

- 89 - 

2019/20 Capital Adjustment Account 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      
 

  

115,376   Balance at 1st April 2020 
 

119,859 

    

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 

 
  

  (10,290) Charges for depreciation and impairment of Non Current Assets; (7,564)   

  (6,755) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment; (6,794)   

  (99) Movement in Fair Value of Capital Property Fund Investments (77)   

  (114) Amortisation of Intangible Assets; (84)   

  (654) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute; (645)   

  (1,574) 

Amounts of Non Current Assets written off on disposal or sale  
as part of the gains / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement; (1,127)   

(19,486)     
 

(16,291) 

      
 

  

885   Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 
 

727 

      
 

  

(18,601)   
Net written out amount of the cost of Non Current Assets 
consumed in the year 

 
(15,564) 

      
 

  

    Capital financing applied in the year:  
 

  

  4,810 
Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital  
expenditure; 1,130   

  4,277 
Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital  
expenditure; 2,405   

  873 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the  
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that have  
been applied to capital financing; 2,068   

  56 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment  
charged against the General Fund and HRA balances - 
Minimum Revenue Provision; 110   

  12,014 
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and  
HRA Balances. 2,464   

22,030       8,177 

      
 

  

1,054   

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited 
or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
146 

      
 

  

119,859   Balance at 31st March 2021   112,618 

 
  

Page 105



 
 

- 90 - 

 
c) Pension Reserve 
 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in 
accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post employment 
benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits 
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any 
resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require 
benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to 
pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.  
 
The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in 
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority 
has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will 
have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 
2019/20 Pensions Reserve   2020/21 

£000     £000 

        

(51,840) Balance at 1st April 2020   (41,266) 

12,897 Remeasurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (asset)   (9,748) 

(4,695) 

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement (3,639) 

2,372 
Employer's contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the 
year 2,468 

        

(41,266) Balance at 31st March 2021   (52,185) 

 
 
The accounts include an advance payment of the pension lump sum for the 3 years 
to 2022/23 – following the triennial review in March 2019. This has been accounted 
for, following technical advice, by reducing the charge to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Account offset in the Pensions Reserve. 
 
 

 

 
 
  

Page 106



 
 

- 91 - 

d) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal 
of Non Current Assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under 
statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains as usable for 
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the 
deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. The majority of the current balance relates to the 
accounting arrangements for finance leases under IFRS. 
 
2019/20 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve   2020/21 

£000     £000 

    
 

  

12,701 Balance at 1st April 2020 
 

12,689 

(12) Transfer to Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 
 

(15) 

    
 

  

12,689 Balance at 31st March 2021   12,674 

 
e) Accumulated Absences Account 
 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise 
arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned 
but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March 
2020. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is 
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
 

2019/20 Accumulated Absences Account 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      
 

  

(221)   Balance at 1st April 2020 
 

(265) 

  221 
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 
preceding year 265   

  (265) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (292)   

(44)   

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory requirements   (27) 

      
 

  

(265)   Balance at 31st March 2021   (292) 

 

  

Page 107



 
 

- 92 - 

 

f) Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 
recognition of council tax and business rates income in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from tax payers compared with the 
statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the 
Collection Fund. 
 

 

2019/20 Collection Fund Adjustment Account   2020/21 

£000     £000 

1,068 Balance at 1st April 2020   500 

(568) 

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council 
tax income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements (8,757) 

        

500 Balance at 31st March 2021   (8,257) 

 

The increase in the balance on the CFAA is due to a significant deficit on the NDR 

Collection Fund of £21.8m arising from the additional relief provided to local 

businesses as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Government have provided 

funding for the additional reliefs through Section 31 grants to Local Authorities and 

the Council received c.£17.4m. 

 

It should be noted however, that this represents the total Collection Fund impact, and 

the Councils 40% share of this equates to c.£7.0m which has been reflected in the 

Councils accounts and transferred to reserve to fund the deficit carried forward to 

2021/22 (in line with collection fund accounting practice – whereby the deficit is 

funded in the following financial year as part of the budget process). 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 108



 
 

- 93 - 

 

24. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 
 
The cash flows for the operating activities include the following items: 
 

2019/20 Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

  The cash flows for operating activities include the following items   

      

(2,049) Interest received (2,100) 

2,720 Interest paid 2,664 

671 
 

564 

      

(7,026) Net Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services (5,425) 

      

  Adjusted for non cash movements   

10,290 Depreciation 7,564 

6,755 Impairment and Downward Valuations 6,794 

114 Amortisation 84 

287 Increase / Decrease in Creditors 9,873 

355 Increase / Decrease in Debtors 820 

2 Increase / Decrease in Inventories (2) 

3,302 Movement in Pension Liability (817) 

1,574 
 Carrying amount of Non Current Assets and Non Current Assets  
Held for Sale, sold or de-recognised 1,127 

(741) 
Other non cash items charged to the Net (Surplus) or Deficit on  
the Provision of Services 505 

21,938   25,948 

      

  Adjusted for items that are Investing or Financing Activities   

(1,081) 

Proceeds from Short-Term (Not Considered to be Cash  
Equivalents) and Long-Term investments (Includes Investments  
in Associates, Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries) (2,068) 

(2,043) 
Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment,  
Investment Property and Intangible Assets (1,359) 

(3,124)   (3,427) 

      

11,788 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (Surplus)/Deficit 17,096 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



 
 

- 94 - 

25. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
 

2019/20 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

23,257 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment; Investment 
Property and Intangible Assets 8,983 

- Purchase of Short Term and Long Term Investments 5,000 

(2,043) 
Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment;  
Investment Property and Intangible Assets (1,363) 

(10,025) Proceeds from Short Term and Long Term Investments (8,002) 

(1,378) Other receipts from Investing Activities (3,567) 

      

9,811 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities  1,051 

 
 
 

26. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 
 

2019/20 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

757 Other receipts from Financing Activities 10,334 

      

757 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  10,334 

 
 

27. Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations 
 
Acquired operations 
 

There were no acquired operations during 2020/21. 
 
Discontinued Operations 
 

The results of discontinued operations are shown as a single amount on the face of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement comprising the profit or loss of 
discontinued operations and the gain or loss recognised either on measurement to fair 
value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the discontinued operation. A discontinued 
operation is a unit that has been disposed of, or is classified as an Asset Held for Sale. 
 
There were no discontinued operations during 2020/21.  
   

Page 110



 
 

- 95 - 

  

28. Trading Operations 
 

The Authority has a number of trading operations required to operate in a commercial 
environment as follows: 
 

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Trading Operations 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 
Expenditure Income (Surplus)/ 

Deficit 
  

Expenditure Income (Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

        
 

    

4 (10) (6) Markets 6 (12) (6) 

(338) (885) (1,223) Industrial Estates 42 (924) (882) 

(479) (452) (931) Other Land and Property 149 (785) (636) 

        
 

    

(813) (1,347) (2,160) Total 197 (1,721) (1,524) 

 
 
Trading Operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 
 

29. Members’ Allowances 
 

The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the Authority during the year. 
 

2019/20 Members Allowances 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

160 Basic Allowance 167 

95 Special Responsibility 99 

4 Other Allowances/Expenses 4 

      

259 Total 270 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 111



 
 

- 96 - 

30. Officers’ Remuneration 
 

Benefits Payable During Employment 
 
Short term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of 
the year end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave 
and paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits (e.g. Healthshield cover) for current 
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not 
taken before the year end which employees can carry forward into the next financial 
year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following 
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual 
is charged to (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out 
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to 
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Page 112



 
 

- 97 - 

The remuneration paid to the Authority’s Senior Employees is as follows: 
 

Officers Remuneration Year 
Salary, 

Fees and 
Allowances 

Expenses 
Allowances 

Sub-Total 
Pension 

Contribution 
Total 

    £ £ £ £ £ 

Chief Executive 2020/21 118,107 1,094 119,201 19,510 138,711 

2019/20 115,884 1,094 116,978 19,830 136,808 

              

Executive Director 
Organisation 

2020/21 96,290 1,094 97,384 15,909 113,293 

2019/20 94,935 1,094 96,029 15,484 111,513 

              

Executive Director 
Communities 

2020/21 91,049 1,370 92,419 15,045 107,464 

2019/20 90,110 1,370 91,480 14,642 106,122 

              

Executive Director Finance 2020/21 91,526 1,094 92,620 15,124 107,744 

2019/20 89,949 1,209 91,158 14,642 105,800 

              

Assistant Director 
Neighbourhoods 

2020/21 74,409 1,094 75,503 12,299 87,802 

2019/20 67,439 1,140 68,579 10,940 79,519 

              

Assistant Director Growth 
and Regeneration  

2020/21 65,405 1,094 66,499 10,635 77,134 

2019/20 52,266 841 53,107 8,485 61,592 

              

Assistant Director People 2020/21 66,605 1,370 67,975 11,012 78,987 

2019/20 64,107 1,370 65,477 10,351 75,828 

              

Assistant Director 
Partnerships 

2020/21 65,896 1,287 67,183 10,894 78,077 

2019/20 63,825 1,094 64,919 10,351 75,270 

              

Assistant Director Operations 
and Leisure 

2020/21 66,010 1,370 67,380 10,913 78,293 

2019/20 64,212 1,370 65,582 10,369 75,951 

              

Assistant Director Finance  2020/21 66,365 1,094 67,459 10,972 78,431 

2019/20 63,825 1,094 64,919 10,351 75,270 

              

Assistant Director Asset 
Management  

2020/21 65,896 1,370 67,266 10,894 78,160 

2019/20 64,101 1,370 65,471 10,317 75,788 

              

Head of Audit and 
Governance   

2020/21 57,859 1,108 58,967 9,316 68,283 

2019/20 44,333 883 45,216 7,106 52,322 

              

 
 
With regard to pension contribution levels - following the triennial review carried out by 
the Actuary employed by the Pension Fund in March 2019 - contribution levels remain 
unchanged for the 3 years commencing 1st April 2020. This includes an ongoing lump 
sum relating to past liabilities and a set rate for future employer contributions of 16.5% 
p.a. (This rate has not changed since 2014/15). 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



 
 

- 98 - 

The Authority’s employees receiving more than £50k remuneration for the year 
(excluding employer’s pension contributions) not including those reported in the Senior 
Employees table above were paid the following amounts: 
 

2019/20 
Total 

Number of 
Employees 

Remuneration Band 

2020/21 
Number of 
Employees 
Left During 

Year 

2020/21 
Number 

Employed 
at 31st 

March 2021 

2020/21 
Total 

Number of 
Employees 

  
  

        

1 £50,000 - £54,999 - 3 3 

1 Total     - 3 3 

 
The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of redundancies 

are set out below:  

Exit Package Cost Band 
Number of Departures 

Agreed 

      2019/20 2020/21 

Compulsory         

  
 

      

£0 - £20,000 1 18 

£20,001 - £40,000 - 1 

  
 

      

    Total 1 19 

Other departures agreed     

  
 

      

£0 - £20,000 5 3 

£20,001 - £40,000 10 - 

£40,001 - £60,000 1 - 

  
 

      

    Total 16 3 

 

 

Total number of exit packages 
Number of Departures 

Agreed 
Total Cost of Exit 

Packages 

by cost band 
 

  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 

          £'000 £'000 

£0 - £20,000 6 21 36 91 

£20,001 - £40,000 10 1 289 35 

£40,001 - £60,000 1 - 49 - 

  
 

      
 

  

Total 17 22 374 126 

 
  

Page 114



 
 

- 99 - 

31. External Audit Costs 
 

The agreed external audit fees paid for 2020/21 were £65k (£53k 2019/20). 
 

2019/20 External Audit Costs 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

38 
Fees payable to Grant Thornton with regard to the external  
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the  
year; 

46 

15 Fees payable to Grant Thornton for the certification of grants  
and returns for the year; 

19 

      

53 Total 65 

 
The indicative fee for certification of grants and returns for 2020/21 is £19k. The 
agreed fee for the 2020/21 audit (payable in 2021/22) is £38k. 
 

32. Government Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is 
reasonable assurance that: 
 

 the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or 
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future 
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future 
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors (Capital Grants Receipts in 
Advance). When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and 
Non Specific Grant Income (non ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been 
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
 

Page 115



 
 

- 100 - 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The Authority has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The levy 
will be charged on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with 
appropriate planning consent. The council charges for and collects the levy, which is a 
planning charge. The income from the levy will be used to fund a number of 
infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and schools) to support 
the development of the area.  
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the 
commencement date of the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the accounting policy for government 
grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund capital 
expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges for this Authority may be used to 
fund revenue expenditure. CIL income of £39k was received in 2020/21 including 
income for monitoring costs of £2k. 
 

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2020/21: 
 

2019/20 Grant Income 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

  Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income   

- Revenue Support Grant 188 

13,549 NNDR 5,462 

(10,054) Non Domestic Rates - Tariff (10,405) 

(17) Non Domestic Rates - Levy to GBSLEP (565) 

336 New Homes Bonus  650 

1,114 S31 Grant - Small Business Rate Relief 8,590 

35 Other Grants 39 

1,081 Capital Grants and Contributions 2,107 

      

6,044 Total 6,066 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 116



 
 

- 101 - 

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to Cost of 
Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2020/21: 
 

2019/20 Credited to Services 2020/21 

£000 Government Grant £000 

269 DWP Admin Grant 271 

90 NNDR Cost of Collection 90 

13,656 Benefits 12,433 

136 Discretionary Housing Payment 172 

7 Nature Reserve 7 

103 Safer Stronger Communities/Domestic Abuse 49 

24 Electoral Process 5 

26 Homelessness Reduction Act 52 

40 Domestic Abuse Services - 

15 Heritage Lottery Funding - 

66 Welfare Benefit Reform Changes 120 

146 Flexible Homelessness Support 146 

10 Homelessness Prevention 2 

35 EU Exit  - 

1 ERDF - 

15 Earned Autonomy 30 

150 Future High Street Funds - 

75 GBSLEP Town Centre Ecosystems - 

5 Improve and Development Agency - Cyber Security 3 

- COVID-19 marshalls  39 

- SCC Test & Trace 136 

- Skills officer - GBSLEP 30 

- Arts council  207 

      

14,869 Total 13,792 

 
The Authority has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that 
have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them 
that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver.  The balances 
at the year end are as follows: 
 

31st March 
2020 Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 

31st March 
2021 

£000   £000 

      

1 DCMS Free Swimming Grant 1 

3 Lottery BMX Track 3 

17 Other 17 

- Future High Streets Funds 30 

270 S106 Leisure Grants 307 

      

291 Total 358 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



 
 

- 102 - 

33. Related Parties 
 
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies 
or individuals that have control or joint control, or significant influence over the 
Authority, or are a member of the key management personnel of the Authority. 
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the 
Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might 
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the 
Authority. 
 
a) Central Government 
 
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority 
– it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority 
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the 
terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g. 
Council Tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments 
are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 8. Grant receipts outstanding at 31st 
March 2021 are shown in Note 32. 
 

b) Members 
 
Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and 
operating policies. The total of Members’ Allowances paid in 2020/21 is shown in 
Note 29. During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, there were no material 
transactions between the Authority and its Members, other than the payment of 
Member Allowances. Details of all transactions are recorded in the Register of 
Members’ Interests, available on the Council’s website.  
 
Members are required to disclose information regarding any material transactions 
between them and any other organisation in which they could exert control. During 
the financial year ended 31st March 2021, the only such transactions were with regard 
to the Leader of the Council and Solway (Tamworth) Ltd, as detailed in paragraph (d) 
below. 
 
c) Officers 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, there were no material transactions 
between the Authority and its Chief Officers, other than the payment of officer 
salaries. The total of Senior Officers’ Remuneration is shown in Note 30.  
 
Senior Officers are required to disclose information regarding any material 
transactions between them and any other organisation in which they could exert 
control. During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, the only such transactions 
were with regard to the Chief Executive and the Executive Director Finance and 
Solway (Tamworth) Ltd, detailed below. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



 
 

- 103 - 

 
d) Solway (Tamworth) Ltd 
 
In line with plans set out in the Council’s Commercial Investment Strategy, the above 
trading company was established in 2018. The company is wholly owned by the 
Council, with the Leader of the Council, Chief Executive, and Executive Director 
Finance established as Directors of the company. It had been intended that during 
2020/21, land owned by the Council at Solway Close would be disposed of and 
purchased by the company for the development of private housing for rent, however, 
this has not yet progressed.  
 
e) Staffordshire County Council, OPCC and Fire Authority Precepts. 
  
Staffordshire County Council and OPCC Staffordshire, and Staffordshire 
Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority, issue precepts on the Authority, as follows: 

31st March 
2020 Precepts 

31st March 
2021 

£000   £000 

      

27,119 Staffordshire County Council 28,987 

4,713 OPCC Staffordshire 5,035 

1,648 Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority 1,728 

      

33,480 Total 35,750 

 
During the year, there were 3 Councillors who were both a Member of the Council and 
Staffordshire County Council. 
 
f) Staffordshire County Council  
 

Under the Recycling Credit Scheme, the Authority also receives recycling credits from 
Staffordshire County Council.   These are then paid over to the Joint Waste Service 
under arrangements with Lichfield District Council. 
 

31st March 
2020 Recycling Credit Scheme 

31st March 
2021 

£000   £000 

      

(599) Recycling Credits (628) 

      

(599) Total (628) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 119



 
 

- 104 - 

g) Joint Waste Service 
 

The Authority’s Joint Waste Service with Lichfield District Council was launched in July 
2010, and a joint committee - ‘Lichfield and Tamworth Waste Collection Services’ - 
was established. The organisation provides waste and recycling services to 
approximately 73,000 properties across the two Authorities.  Lichfield District Council 
is responsible for hosting the service including employment of staff. 
 

The parties have an agreement in place for funding this operation with contributions to 
the agreed budget of 58.3% from Lichfield District Council and 41.7% from Tamworth 
Borough Council. The same proportions are used to meet any deficit or share any 
surplus arising on the operation’s budget at the end of each financial year. 
 

The revenue outturn of the Joint Waste Service for the year ended 31st March 2021 is 
as follows: 
 

2019/20 Joint Waste Arrangement Income / Expenditure 2020/21 
£000   £000 

  Funding Provided to the Operation   

(920) Contribution from Tamworth Borough Council (1,166) 

(1,287) Contribution from Lichfield District Council (1,631) 

(2,207) Total Funding Provided to the Operation (2,797) 

  Expenditure    

                 
2,685  Employee Costs 

                 
3,024  

                1,261  Transport Costs                1,213  
                1,380  Supplies and Services                 1,620  

                   369  Central Support Costs                    607  

5,695 Total Expenditure  6,464 
      

  Income    

(1,581) Recycling Credits (1,659) 

(1,478) Green Waste Service (1,618) 

(429) Other Income (417) 

(3,488) Total Income Received (3,694) 
      

2,207 Total Net Expenditure 2,770 

      

- 
Net (Surplus)/Deficit arising on the pooled budget 
during the year (27) 

41.7% Tamworth Borough Council's share of Service 41.7% 

- 
Tamworth Borough Council's share of Net 
(Surplus)/Deficit (11) 

 
Lichfield District Council are the lead Authority for this arrangement, with the Tamworth 
Borough Council reimbursing Lichfield for services on the basis of a proportion of 
actual spend. For 2020/21, the cost of the arrangement to the Authority was £1.2m. 

  

Page 120



 
 

- 105 - 

34. Capital Expenditure & Financing 
 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a Non Current Asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the 
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund or Housing Revenue 
Account to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so 
that there is no impact on the level of Council Tax or housing rent. 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table 
below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital 
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used 
by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this 
note. 
 

2019/20 Capital Expenditure and Financing 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      

68,868 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 72,055 

      

  Capital Investment   

24,187 Property, Plant and Equipment 8,560 

296 Heritage Assets 219 

3 Investment Properties - 

77 Intangible Assets 204 

654 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 645 

      

  Sources of Finance   

(4,810) Capital receipts (1,130) 

(391) Government grants and other contributions (2,044) 

(16,291) Sums set aside from revenue - Direct Revenue Contributions (4,869) 

(56) Sums set aside from revenue - Minimum Revenue Provision (110) 

(482) Grants - Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute  (24) 

      

72,055 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 73,506 

      

      

  Explanation of movements in year:   

  Increase in underlying need to borrow:   
3,243 Unsupported by government financial assistance 1,561 

(56) Sums set aside from revenue - Minimum Revenue Provision (110) 

      

3,187 Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 1,451 

 
 
 
 

Page 121



 
 

- 106 - 

 

 
35. Leases 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or 
equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. 
 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification. 
 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
a) Authority as Lessee 
 

Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the 
leased Property, Plant and Equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over 
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a 
rent free period at the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Authority currently uses vehicles, plant and equipment financed under terms of an 
operating lease. The amount paid under these arrangements in 2020/21 was £274k 
(£288k – 2019/20). These leases have options for annual extensions beyond the 
original lease term, a number of these options are currently being taken up. 
 

2019/20 Minimum Lease Payments 2020/21 

£000     £000 

   

288 Minimum lease payments 274 

        

288 Total Minimum Lease Payments 274 

 
The Authority was committed at 31st March 2021 to making payments of £651k under 
operating leases, comprising the following elements: 
 

31st March 
2020 Operating Leases 

31st March 
2021 

£000     £000 

        

281 Not later than one year 273 

295 Later than one year not later than five years 378 

        

576 Total Operating Leases 651 

 
 

Page 122



 
 

- 107 - 

 
b) Authority as Lessor 

 

i. Finance Leases 
 
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal.  
 
At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  
 
A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease (Long Term Debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down 
the lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and 
 

 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 
disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is 
required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is 
posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
  
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of 
rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the 
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the 
asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts 
are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of 
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Authority has leased out property at the Ankerside Shopping Centre including 
car park, on a finance lease with a remaining term of 68 years.  
 
 
 
 

Page 123



 
 

- 108 - 

 
The Authority has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease 
payments expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value 
anticipated for the property when the lease comes to an end. The minimum lease 
payments comprise settlement of the Long Term Debtor for the interest in the 
property acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the 
Authority in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding.  
 

The gross investment is made up of the following amounts: 
 
31st March 

2020 Assets Held for Leases (Lessor) 
31st March 

2021 

£000     £000 

        

  Finance lease debtor (NPV of minimum lease payments)   

        

12,583 Non current   12,572 

45,277 Unearned finance income 44,437 

12 Unguaranteed residual value of property 12 

        

57,872 Gross Investment in the Lease 57,021 

 
The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received 

over the following periods: 

 

Minimum 
Lease 

Payments 

Gross  
Investment 
in the Lease Minimum Lease Payments 

Minimum 
Lease 

Payments 

Gross  
Investment 
in the Lease 

31st March 
2020 

31st March 
2020   

31st March 
2021 

31st March 
2021 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

          

851 851 Not later than one year 851 851 

3,404 3,404 Later than one year not later than five years 3,404 3,404 

53,605 53,617 Later than five years 52,754 52,766 

          

57,860 57,872 Total 57,009 57,021 

 

The Authority does not set aside any amount for future uncollectable amounts.  
 
The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events 
taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent 
reviews.  
 
ii. Operating Leases 
 
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the 
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  
 

Page 124



 
 

- 109 - 

Credits are made on a straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of 
the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
 
The Authority leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 
following purposes: 
 

 for the provision of community services, such as community centres; and 
 

 for investment  purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for 
local businesses. 

 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non cancellable leases in 
future years are: 
 

31st March 
2020 Future Minimum Lease Payments  

31st March 
2021 

£000     £000 

  Operating Leases   

        

1,113 Not later than one year 1,128 

4,220 Later than one year not later than five years 4,147 

52,441 Later than five years   50,005 

        

57,774 Total 55,280 

 
The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on 
events taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following 
rent reviews.  
 
The minimum lease payments do not include cancellable rents received during the 
period, these amounted to £573k in 2020/21 (£579k – 2019/20). There were 10 void 
units at the 31st March 2021 (15 voids at the 31st March 2020). 
 

36. Impairment Losses 
 
Charges for impairment of £4.3m have been made during 2020/21. This amount 
reflects the expenditure on capital assets which has not produced a similar increase in 
the value of the assets. 

Total HRA Capital Expenditure was £8.4m of which £4.3m related to improvements to 
bathrooms, kitchens, central heating, electrical upgrades and disabled adaptations; 
£1.3m related to the acquisition of 9 new properties to be used within the general need 
stock; with £2.8m spent on the regeneration of the Tinkers Green and Kerria sites. The 
impairment has been recognised as the advice of the Authority's internal valuer is that 
such improvements have not increased the overall value of the asset. 

 

Page 125



 
 

- 110 - 

 

37. Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s 
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are 
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, 
to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when the authority can no longer 
withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the authority recognises costs for a 
restructuring. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund or Housing Revenue Account to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund 
and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. 
 
There were 22 terminations of employee contracts during 2020/21.   

 
  

Page 126



 
 

- 111 - 

38. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 
 

The pension costs included in these accounts have been determined in accordance 
with government regulations and IAS 19. The standard requires the full recognition of 
the pensions liability (and the movement of its constituent parts) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. These requirements are included within the 
accounts in accordance with CIPFA recommended practice.  
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is accounted for as a defined benefit 
statutory scheme, administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013: 
 

i. The liabilities of the Staffordshire Local Government Pension Fund attributable 
to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using 
the projected unit credit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments 
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, 
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and 
projections of projected earnings for current employees. 

 
ii. Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 

2%.  
 

This is based on an approach whereby a Corporate Bond yield curve is constructed 
based on the constituents of the iBoxx AA Corporate Bond Index. 
 

Separate discount rates are then set (and corresponding RPI/CPI inflation 
assumptions) for individual employers, dependent on their own weighted average 
duration. 
 

iii. The assets of Staffordshire Local Government Pension Fund attributable to the 
Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

 quoted securities – current bid price; 

 unquoted securities – professional estimate; 

 unitised securities – current bid price; 

 property – market value. 
 

iv. The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following 
components: 

 

Service Cost Comprising: 
 

 Current Service Cost: The increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the services for which the employees worked; 

 

 Past Service Cost: The increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme 
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years – debited to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs; 

 
 

Page 127



 
 

- 112 - 

 

 Net Interest Cost: net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net 
interest expense for the authority – the change during the period in the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the 
beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments. 

 
Remeasurements comprising: 
 
Expected Return on Plan Assets: excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure: 
 

 Actuarial Gains and Losses: changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged 
to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure; 
 

 Contributions paid to the Staffordshire Local Government Pension Fund: 
Cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of 
liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to 
the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated 
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to 
remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with 
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year end.  
 
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the 
beneficial impact to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 
benefits are earned by employees. 

 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Authority has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of 
an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. 
 
 

Page 128



 
 

- 113 - 

 
 
a) Participation in Pension Schemes 
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes 
contributions towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits 
will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to 
make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their 
future entitlement. 
 
The authority participates in two post employment schemes: 
 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Staffordshire  
County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning 
that the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a 
level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. 

 

 Arrangements for the award of discretionary post retirement benefits upon early 
retirement – this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which 
liabilities are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no 
investment assets built up to meet these pensions liabilities, and cash has to be 
generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due. 

  
b) Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 
 
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported Cost of Services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against Council Tax is based 
on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment / retirement 
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund (and HRA) via the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance 
via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
  

Page 129



 
 

- 114 - 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

          

    
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement:     

          

    Service Cost Comprising:     

3,447 68 Current service costs 2,722 67 

- - Past service costs 3 - 

          

    
Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure     

3,361 - Interest costs 2,872 - 

(2,113) - Expected return on scheme assets (1,958) - 

          

4,695 68 Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services 

3,639 67 

    Remeasurement of the Net Defined Benefit 
Liability Comprising: 

    

5,130 (82) Return on plan assets (excluding amounts  
included in net interest expense) 

(21,810) 141 

(5,483) - Actuarial gains and losses on changes in  
demographic assumptions 

1,786 - 

(11,305) - Actuarial gains and losses on changes in  
financial assumptions 

31,135 - 

(1,157) - Other (1,504) - 

          

(8,120) (14) Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

13,246 208 

 

 

  

Page 130



 
 

- 115 - 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

    Movement in Reserves Statement:     

      
 

  

8,120 14 

Reversal of net charges made to the 
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services for post employment benefits in 
accordance with the code 

(13,246) (208) 

      
 

  

    
Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 

 
  

2,372 - 
Employers' contributions payable to the  
scheme 2,468 - 

- 68 Retirement benefits payable to pensioners - 67 

          

10,492 82 Total Movement in Reserves Statement (10,778) (141) 

 

Under the Housing Repairs contract, a separate pension scheme is operated for staff 

transferred as part of a TUPE arrangement. 

 
c) Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in 

respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the 
Balance Sheet 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

2019/20   2020/21 

£000   £000 

125,265 Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation 159,204 

(83,999) Fair Value of Plan Assets (109,007) 

41,266 Net Liability Arising From Defined Benefit Obligation 50,197 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131



 
 

- 116 - 

d) Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan)  
 Assets 
 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Scheme Assets 
Local 

Government 
Pension 
Scheme 

2019/20     2020/21 

£000     £000 

        

88,762 Balance at 1st April 2020 83,999 

2,113 Interest Income on Plan Assets 1,958 

(5,048) Return on Assets excluding amounts included in net interest 21,669 

1,393 Employer contributions 4,456 

529 Contributions by scheme participants 540 

(3,750) Benefits paid   (3,615) 

68 Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 67 

(68) Unfunded benefits paid (67) 

        

83,999 Balance at 31st March 2021 109,007 

 
 

e) Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit 
Obligation) 

 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

Reconciliation of Present Value of 
Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit 

Obligation) 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

          

138,493 1,130 Balance at 1st April 2020 124,285 980 

3,515 - Current service costs 2,789 - 

3,361 - 
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit  
Obligation 2,872 - 

529 - Plan Participants Contributions 540 - 

(5,483) - 
Changes in Demographic  
Assumptions 1,786 - 

(11,223) (82) Changes in Financial Assumptions 30,994 141 

(1,157) - Other Experience (1,504) - 

(3,750) (68) Benefits paid (3,615) (67) 

 -  -  Past service costs  3  - 

     

124,285 980 Balance at 31st March 2021 158,150 1,054 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



 
 

- 117 - 

 
 

f) Local Government Pension Scheme Assets Comprised: 

 

The asset values shown below are at bid value as required under IAS19. 

 

As at 31st March 2020   As at 31st March 2021 

Quoted 
Prices 

in 
Active 

Markets 

Quoted 
Prices 
Not in 
Active 

Markets 

Total 
Percentage 

of Total 
Assets 

Fair Value of 
Employers Assets 

Quoted 
Prices 

in 
Active 

Markets 

Quoted 
Prices 
Not in 
Active 

Markets 

Total 
Percentage 

of Total 
Assets 

£000 £000 £000 %   £000 £000 £000 % 

        Equity Securities         

3,115 - 3,115 3.7 Consumer 4,239 - 4,239 3.9 

3,364 - 3,364 4.0 Manufacturing 4,549 - 4,549 4.2 

1,123 - 1,123 1.3 Energy & Utilities 1,205 - 1,205 1.1 

2,970 - 2,970 3.5 
Financial 
Institutions 3,847 - 3,847 3.5 

2,627 - 2,627 3.1 Health Care 2,741 - 2,741 2.5 

2,047 - 2,047 2.4 
Information 
Technology 4,664 - 4,664 4.3 

72 - 72 0.1 Other 118 - 118 0.1 

                

        Debt Securities       

6,759 - 6,759 8.0 
Corporate Bonds 
(Investment Grade) 7,528 - 7,528 6.9 

                

        Private Equities        

- 3,500 3,500 4.2 All - 4,723 4,723 4.3 

                

        Real Estate       

- 8,279 8,279 9.9 UK Property - 8,349 8,349 7.7 

                

        
Investment Funds 
& Unit Trusts        

35,825 - 35,825 42.7 Equities 52,368 - 52,368 48.0 

7,060 - 7,060 8.4 Bonds 7,255 - 7,255 6.7 

- 1,495 1,495 1.8 Hedge Funds - 413 413 0.4 

- - - - Infrastructure - 44 44 0.0 

- 4,343 4,343 5.2 Other - 5,187 5,187 4.8 

                 

        
Cash & Cash 
Equivalents        

1,420 - 1,420 1.7 All 1,777 - 1,777 1.6 

                  

66,382 17,617 83,999 100.0 Total Assets 90,291 18,716 109,007 100.0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133



 
 

- 118 - 

  
 
g) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent 
on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government 
Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by 
Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County 
Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 
2021. The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

Assumptions 

Local 
Government 

Pension 
Scheme 

Discretionary 
Benefit 

Arrangements 

2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 

          

    

Long-term expected rate of return on 
assets in the scheme: 

  

  

2.30% - Equity Investments 2.00% - 

    Government Bonds     

2.30% - Bonds 2.00% - 

2.30% - Property Managed Funds 2.00% - 

2.30% - Cash 2.00% - 

2.30% - Other 2.00% - 
          
    Mortality assumptions (in years):     
    Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:     

21.2 21.2 Men 21.4 21.4 

23.6 23.6 Women 24.0 24.0 
    Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:     

22.1 22.1 Men 22.5 22.5 

25.0 25.0 Women 25.7 25.7 
          

1.90% 1.90% CPI Rate 2.85% 2.85% 

2.30% 2.30% Rate of increase in salaries 3.25% 3.25% 

1.90% 1.90% Rate of increase in pensions 2.85% 2.85% 

2.30% 2.30% Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.00% 2.00% 

50%/75% - 

Take-up of option to convert annual 
pension into retirement lump sum 50%/75% - 

 
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial 
assumptions set out in the table above. The sensitivity analysis below have been 
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at 
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption 
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The 
assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or 
decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in 
some of the assumptions may be inter related. The estimations in the sensitivity 
analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial 
basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of 
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 

Page 134



 
 

- 119 - 

that used in the previous period. 
 

Impact on the Defined 
Benefit Obligation in the 

Scheme   

Impact on the Defined 
Benefit Obligation in the 

Scheme 

Approx. % 
Increase 

to Liability 

Approx. 
Monetary 

Value 

Change in Assumptions at 31st March 
2021 

Approx. % 
Increase to 

Liability 

Approx. 
Monetary 

Value 

2019/20 2019/20 
 

2020/21 2020/21 

% £000   % £000 

9.00% 11,266 0.5% Decrease in Real Discount Rate 9.00% 15,042 
3.00% to 

5.00% 
2,892 to 

4,820 1 Year in Member Life Expectancy 
3.00% to 

5.00% 
3,744 to 

6,240 

1.00% 964 0.5% Increase in the Salary Increase Rate 1.00% 1,248 

8.00% 10,218 0.5% Increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8.00% 13,497 

 
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme by the Authority in the year to 31st March 2022 is £1.3m (£2.4m – 2020/21). 
  

39. Contingent Liabilities 
 
A Contingent Liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. 
Contingent Liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 
to the accounts. 

 
The Authority has included a provision – detailed in Note 22 – relating to Business 
Rate appeals outstanding as at 31st March 2021.  
 
Local businesses can appeal against the Rateable Value on the 2010 Rating list under 
limited circumstances and can also appeal against the Rateable Value on the 2017 
Rating List. The 2017 Rating List is subject to a fresh approach to appeals known as 
"Check, Challenge & Appeal" (CCA) which means that before an appeal is made the 
Rateable Value may be amended upon negotiation between the Valuation Office and 
the ratepayer (or their agents). This process will inevitably lead to a delay in appeals 
being made. 
  

Page 135



 
 

- 120 - 

It is difficult to estimate the likelihood of businesses both submitting and being 
successful with an appeal and the Authority has therefore made provision in the 
accounts based on professional advice from independent valuers. The contingent 
liability element relates to any potential successful appeals beyond the provision 
made. The level of historic appeals together with the average level of success and 
savings in Rateable Value is shown for the 2005, 2010 and 2017 lists below: 
 

Indicator 

2005 2010 2017 

Total List List List 

A Total of original Rateable Values resolved £116.06m £237.57m £57.70m £411.33m 
B Total original Rateable Value of successful 
check/ challenge/ appeal £51.93m £43.28m £7.68m £102.89m 

Average success rate (% of RV) (B/A) 44.74% 18.22% 13.31% 25.01% 
C Total revised Rateable Value of successful 
check/ challenge/ appeal £47.63m £38.68m £6.90m £93.21m 

D Total reduction in Rateable Value (C-B) £4.29m £4.60m £0.78m £9.67m 

Average % reduction in Rateable Value (D/B) 8.27% 10.63% 10.16% 9.40% 

E Years the List has been active 5 7 3 - 
F Average annual reduction in Rateable 
Value (D/E) £0.86m £0.66m £0.26m - 
G Standard Business Rate Multiplier in 
2021/22 51.2p 51.2p 51.2p 51.2p 

H Average annual cost of reduction based 
on 2018/19 Multiplier (FxG) £0.44m £0.34m £0.13m £0.91m 

District Council Share at 40% (Hx0.4) £0.18m £0.13m £0.05m £0.36m 

    
 

    
I Checks/ challenges/ appeals outstanding 
31/03/21 £0.00m £91.97m £6.91m £98.88m 

J Provision included £0.00m £0.99m £5.58m £6.57m 
Provision as a % of checks/ challenges/ 
appeals outstanding (J/I)   1.08% 80.75% 6.64% 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 136



 
 

- 121 - 

40. Nature & Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 
 
Key Risks 
 
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks.  The key risks are: 

 

 Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the 

Council; 

 

 Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to 

meet its commitments to make payments;  

 

 Re-financing risk - the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a 

financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms. 

 

 Market risk -the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a 

result of changes in such measures as interest rates or stock market movements. 

 
The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 
of financial markets, and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the 
resources available to fund services and is based on the framework set out in the 
Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.   
 
As directed by the Act, the Authority has formally adopted the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice and complies with the CIPFA Prudential Code. As 
part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Authority approves a 
Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of the year to which it 
relates, this strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated 
with financial instruments. 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21 (including the Annual Investment 
Strategy) was approved by Full Council on 25th February 2020 and is available on 
the Authority’s website. 
 
The strategy also includes an Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year, 
setting out it’s criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties in 
compliance with Government guidance. 
 
Risk management is carried out by a central treasury team, under policies approved 
by the Authority in the annual Treasury Management Strategy. The Authority 
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
(covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of 
surplus cash). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



 
 

- 122 - 

a) Credit Risk 

 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to the Council’s customers.   
 
This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which is available on 
the Authority’s website. 
 
Credit Risk management Practices 
 
The authority’s credit risk management practices are set out in the Annual Investment 
Strategy. With particular regard to determining whether the credit risk of financial 
instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition. 
 
The Annual Investment Strategy requires that deposits are not made with financial 
institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the 
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment 
Strategy also considers maximum amounts and time limits with a financial institution 
located in each category.   
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are detailed below: 
 
This Authority uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services.  This 
service uses a sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all three 
rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, forming the core element.  
However, it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties but also 
uses the following as overlays:  
 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries 

 
Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial 
position, past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in 
accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council. 
 
The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in 
financial institutions of £58.1m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any 
institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific 
to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 
entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all 
of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31st March 2021 that this 
was likely to crystallise. 
 
  

Page 138



 
 

- 123 - 

Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses 
 

Credit Risk Exposure 

The Authority has assessed its short and long term investments and concluded that 
the expected credit loss is not material therefore no allowances have been made. 
 

A summary of the credit quality of the Council’s investments at 31st March 2021 is 
shown below, along with the potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on 
experience of default and uncollectability.  

Credit Risk Amount at Historical 
Experience of 

Default 

Historical 
Experience 
Adjusted for 

Market 
Conditions 

at 
 31st March 

2021 

Estimated 
Maximum 

Exposure to 
Default and 

Uncollectability 
at 31st March 

2021 

Estimated 
Maximum 

Exposure at  
31st March 

2020   
31st March 

2021 

  £000 % % £000 £000 

  A B C (A x C)   

            

    
   

  
AAA rated 
counterparties 10,000 0.04% 0.04% 4 - 
AA rated 
counterparties 24,143 0.02% 0.02% 5 - 

A rated counterparties 23,996 0.05% 0.05% 12 25 

    
   

  

Trade Debtors 2,437 74.07% 74.07% 1,805 1,680 

    
   

  

Total 60,576 - - 1,826 1,705 

 

The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £2.4m is past its 
due date for payment. The past due amount as at 31st March 2021 but not impaired 
amount can be analysed by age as follows: 

 

31st March 
2020 Arrears 

31st March 
2021 

£000     £000 

        

        

782 Less than six months 960 

101 Six months to one year 72 

190 More than one year 175 

1,216 More than two years 1,230 

2,289 Total   2,437 

 
The Authority initiates a legal charge on property where, for instance, works have to 
be carried out in default but those responsible cannot afford to pay immediately. The 
total collateral at 31st March 2021 was £42.4k (£42.5k – 2019/20). 

Page 139



 
 

- 124 - 

 
b) Liquidity Risk 
  
The Authority manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures 
above (the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the 
treasury and investment strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash 
flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. This seeks to 
ensure that cash is available when needed. 
 
The Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any 
day to day cash flow need, and the PWLB and money markets for access to longer 
term funds. The Authority is also required to provide a balanced budget through the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to 
cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to 
raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  The maturity 
analysis of financial assets, excluding sums due from customers, is as follows: 
 

31st March 2020 Financial Assets 31st March 2021 

Average Rate Amount   
 

Average Rate Amount 

% £000     % £000 

      
 

    

      
 

    

0.96% 50,206 Less than one year 40.00% 42,168 

- - Maturing in 1 - 2 years 65.00% 5,000 

      
 

    

0.96% 50,206 Total   40.00% 47,168 

 
All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year – debtors of 

£2.4m are not included in the table above. 

 

c) Refinancing and Maturity Risk 
 

The Authority maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash 
flow procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer 
term risk to the Authority relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial 
instruments as they mature.  This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term 
financial liabilities and longer term financial assets. 
 
The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits 
placed on investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key 
parameters used to address this risk. The Authority approved treasury and investment 
strategies address the main risks and the central treasury team address the 
operational risks within the approved parameters.  This includes: 
 

 monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile 
through either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and 

 monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is 
available for the Authority’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of 
longer term investments provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to 
the longer term cash flow needs. 

Page 140



 
 

- 125 - 

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and 
minimum limits for fixed interest rates maturing in each period (approved Council in the 
Treasury Management Strategy): 

31st March 2020 Financial Liabilities Approved Approved 31st March 2021 
Average 

Rate Amount   
 

Minimum Minimum 
Average 

Rate Amount 

% £000     Limits Limits % £000 

      
 

        

4.05% 63,371 PWLB 
 

    4.05% 63,371 

      
 

        

4.05% 63,371 Total 
 

    4.05% 63,371 

      
 

        

- 311 Less than one year (Interest Due) 0% 20% - 311 

4.62% 5,000 Maturing in 10 - 15 years 0% 100% 4.62% 5,000 

4.00% 58,060 Maturing in over 15 years 0% 100% 4.00% 58,060 

      
 

        

4.05% 63,371 Total      4.05% 63,371 

 

d) Market Risk 

 

i) Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Authority is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and 
investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority, 
depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial 
instrument periods.   
 
For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following 
effects: 
 

 Borrowings at variable rates: The interest expense charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise; 

 Borrowings at fixed rates: The fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on 
revenue balances); 

 Investments at variable rates: The interest income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will rise; and 

 Investments at fixed rates: The fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on 
revenue balances). 

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet, so nominal gains and 
losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, 
changes in Interest Payable and Receivable on variable rate borrowings and 
investments will be posted to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services and 
affect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government grants (i.e. 
HRA). Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market 
price will be reflected in the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 

Page 141



 
 

- 126 - 

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual 
Treasury Management Strategy draws together Authority’s prudential and treasury 
indicators and its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest 
rate movements. From this Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides 
maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. The central treasury team 
will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposures 
appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where economic 
circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer 
periods to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of longer term fixed 
rates borrowing would be postponed.   
 

The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by Government grant payable on 
financing costs. As at 31st March 2021, the Authority had no variable rate debt or 
investments. There would therefore be no material impact if all interest rates had been 
higher or lower during the year. 
 
ii) Price Risk 
 

The Council holds £3.6m in property funds, and their price varies. However, any 
movements in price will not impact on the General Fund Balance as regulations are 
in force to ameliorate the impact of fair value movements. 
 
The market prices of the Council’s fixed rate bond investments and its units in pooled 
bond funds are governed by prevailing interest rates and the market risk associated 
with these instruments is managed alongside interest rate risk. 
 
The Council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling 
commercial property prices. This risk is limited by the Council’s maximum exposure 
to property investments of £3.6m. A 5% fall in commercial property prices would 
result in a £0.2m charge to Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure – this would 
have no impact on the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services until the 
investment was sold. 

Page 142



 
 

- 127 - 

 
 

Approval of Accounts 
 

 
 

I confirm that these accounts were approved by the Audit and Governance 
Committee at the meeting held on 23rd July 2021 

 
 
 
 

Signed on behalf of Tamworth Borough Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor M. Summers, Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Dated 28th July 2021 
 
 
 
 
This is an electronic copy without an electronic signature.  The original was signed as dated 
above and a copy can be obtained from the Executive Director Finance. 

  

Page 143



 
 

- 128 - 

Housing Revenue Account 
 

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the 
year of providing housing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents and 
government grants. The Authority charges rents to cover expenditure in 
accordance with legislative framework; this may be different from accounting 
cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis which rents are raised, 
is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement.  
 
2019/20 HRA Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2020/21 

£000   £000 £000 

          

  
 

Expenditure:     

  3,223 Repairs and Maintenance 4,848   

  6,279 Supervision and Management 6,176   

  31 Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 60   

  16,092 Depreciation and impairment of Non Current Assets 12,910   

  10 Debt management costs 6   

  107 Movement in the allowance for bad debts 85   

25,742   Total Expenditure   24,085 

          

    Income:     

  (17,737) Dwelling rents (18,154)   

  (396) Non dwelling rents (375)   

  (1,143) Charges for services and facilities (997)   

  (1,666) Contributions towards expenditure (1,560)   

(20,942)  Total Income   (21,086) 

  
 

      
4,800  Net Expenditure of HRA Services as included in the  

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
  2,999 

  
 

      

16 
 

HRA services' share of Corporate and Democratic Core   20 

  
 

      

4,816 
 

Net Expenditure / (Income) for HRA Services   3,019 

  
 

      

  
 

HRA Share of the Operating Income and Expenditure  
Included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure  
Statement:     

  
 

      

(416) 
 

(Gain) or loss on sale of HRA Non Current Assets   (192) 

2,647 
 

Interest payable and similar charges   2,664 

(165) 
 

Interest and investment income   (109) 

293 
 

 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions  
 assets   215 

- 
 

Capital grants and contributions receivable   (1,400) 

          

7,175   (Surplus) or Deficit for the Year on HRA Services   4,197 

 
 
 

Page 144



 
 

- 129 - 

 
Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance 

2019/20 Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance 2020/21 

£000   £000 £000 

      
 

  

4,485   Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year 
 

6,252 
      

 
  

  (7,175) 
Surplus or (Deficit) for the year on the HRA Income  
and Expenditure Statement (4,197)   

  1,750 
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding  
basis under statute 6,490   

  (5,425) 
Net Increase or (Decrease) before transfers to or  
from reserves 2,293   

  7,192 Transfers (to) / from Reserves (2,934)   

1,767   Increase or (Decrease) on the HRA 
 

(641) 

6,252   Balance on the HRA at 31st March 2021   5,611 

 

 

Analysis of Adjustments 

 

2019/20 Analysis of Adjustments 2020/21 

£000   £000 

      
13 Difference between any other item of income and expenditure  

determined in accordance with the code and determined in  
accordance with HRA requirements 

7 

(416) Gain or loss on sale of HRA Non Current Assets (192) 

561 HRA share of contributions to or from the Pensions Reserve 290 

(11,703) Capital expenditure funded by the HRA (2,191) 

- Capital Grants and Contributions Applied (1,400) 

(2,798) Transfer to / from the Major Repairs Reserve (2,933) 

16,093 Transfer to / from the Capital Adjustment Account 12,909 

      

1,750 Total Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding 
Basis Under Statute 

6,490 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 145



 
 

- 130 - 

NOTES TO THE HRA 

 

HRA1. Number & Type of Dwelling 

 

The Authority is responsible for managing a housing stock, made up as follows: 
 

  

Houses 
and 

Bungalows 

High and 
Medium 

Rise Flats 
Low Rise 

Flats Total 

  
  

  
  

Housing Stock as at 1st April 2020 2,763 665 852 4,280 

Sales 
 

(18) (2) (3) (23) 

Additions 
 

51 - 33 84 

  
        

Housing Stock as at 31st March 
2021 2,796 663 882 4,341 

 
In order to comply with the requirements of Resource Accounting, garages are 
now identified within other property. Non operational assets are those held by an 
authority but not directly occupied or used in the delivery of its services.  
 

HRA2. Vacant possession value of dwellings 

 

The Vacant Possession Valuation as at 31st March 2021 is £495.3m (31st March 
2020 Vacant Possession Value was £467.8m). 
 
However, assets are valued on the Balance Sheet at their existing use reflecting 
the valuation of a property if it were to be disposed with sitting tenants benefiting 
from sub-market rents. This reflects the economic cost to the Government of 
providing council housing at less than open market value. 
 
Council dwellings are held on the Balance Sheet at Existing Use Value Social 
Housing (EUV-SH) which for 2020/21, a nationally set adjustment factor for the 
West Midlands of 40% of vacant possession value has been used (40% - 
2019/20). 
  

Page 146



 
 

- 131 - 

Movement in 2018/19 

EUV-SH 
Council 

Dwellings 

Other Land 
and 

Buildings 

Plant , 
Vehicles 

and 
Equipment 

Asset Under 
Construction Total 

  
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

  
    

  
    

Cost or Valuation   
  

    

  
    

  
    

As at 1st April 2020   187,128 3,672 - 8,526 199,326 

  
  - 

  
    

Additions; 
 

  5,544 - 72 2,813 8,429 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment  
written off to Gross Carrying Amount; (7,082) (21) - - (7,103) 

Revaluation increases/ (decreases)  
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve; 8,357 37 - - 8,394 
Revaluation increases/ (decreases)  
recognised in the (Surplus) or Deficit on the  
Provision of Services; (5,723) - - - (5,723) 

Derecognition - Disposals. (1,092) (48) - - (1,140) 

Other movements in cost or valuation 11,007 - - (11,287) (280) 

  
            

As at 31st March 2021   198,139 3,640 72 52 201,903 

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

Accumulated Depreciation & Impairment   
  

    

  
    

  
    

As at 1st April 2020   - (186) - - (186) 

  
    

  
    

Depreciation Charge; (2,838) (96) - - (2,934) 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment  
written off to Gross Carrying Amount; 7,082 21 - - 7,103 
Impairment losses/ (reversals) recognised in  
the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of  
Services; (4,253) - - - (4,253) 

Derecognition - disposals. 9 4 - - 13 

  
            

As at 31st March 2021   - (257) - - (257) 

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

Net Book Value   
  

    

As at 1st April 2020   187,128 3,486 - 8,526 199,140 

As at 31st March 2021   198,139 3,383 72 52 201,646 

  
    

   
  

Nature of holdings at year end Owned 198,139 3,383 72 52 201,646 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147



 
 

- 132 - 

HRA3. Movement on the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) 

 

The Major Repairs Reserve represents the long term average amount of capital 
spending required to maintain the stock in its current condition.  

The Capital Expenditure shown was spent on maintaining council dwellings. 

 

2019/20 Major Repairs Reserve 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

2,961 Balance at 1st April 2020 1,482 

2,798 Contributions to the Major Repairs Reserve 2,933 

(4,277) Capital Spending on Dwellings   (2,405) 

    
 

    

1,482 Balance at 31st March 2021 2,010 

 

The contribution in 2020/21 represents a depreciation charge of £2.9m (2019/20 

contribution included £2.8m depreciation). 

 

HRA4. Capital Expenditure Summary 

 

The following table details how £8.429m Capital Expenditure was financed 
during the year. 
 

2019/20 Capital Expenditure 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

  Capital Expenditure Type:     

9,670 Dwellings 
 

  5,544 

- Plant, Vehicles and Equipment (PVE) 72 

10,791 Assets Under Construction   2,813 
    

 
    

20,461 Total Capital Expenditure   8,429 

    
 

    

  Funded by: 
 
    

3,990 Usable capital receipts   1,072 

11,703 Revenue contributions   2,191 

491 Borrowing 
 

  1,361 

- External grants and contributions   1,400 

4,277 Major Repairs Reserve   2,405 
    

 
    

20,461 Total Funding     8,429 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



 
 

- 133 - 

 

HRA5. Capital Receipts 

 
During the year capital receipts totalling £1.3m were received in respect of 
dwellings sold, of which £0.4m was repaid to DCLG under the pooling regime.  
The un-pooled element of capital receipts are retained for financing housing 
capital investment and regeneration works. 
 

2019/20 Capital Receipts 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

2,027 Sale of dwellings under Right to Buy 1,349 

(419) Amounts pooled to Central Government (421) 

    
 

    

1,608 Net Capital Receipts   928 

 
 

HRA6. Depreciation & Impairment Charges 

 

Council Dwellings are depreciated on a straight line basis over the period of 
their useful economic life. The charge for the year was £2.8m. 
 
The charge for depreciation of £0.1m on non council dwellings has been 
calculated on a straight line basis over the period of their useful economic life.  
 
Charges for impairment of £4.3m have been made during 2020/21. This amount 
reflects the expenditure on capital assets which has not produced a similar 
increase in the value of the assets.  
 

 

HRA7. HRA Pensions Reserve 

 

2019/20 Pensions 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

820 

Difference between current service cost of 
pensions and past service cost in accordance 
with IAS 19 and actual employers' contributions 944 

788 Interest on share of pensions liability   675 

(496) Expected return on share of assets   (461) 

    
 

    

1,112 Total     1,158 

 

 

 

 

Page 149



 
 

- 134 - 

 

HRA8. HRA Rent Arrears 

 

          

2019/20 Rent Arrears 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

1,844 Gross arrears 
 

  1,780 

    
 

    

10.4% Gross arrears as percentage of gross rent income 9.8% 

 

Of the rent arrears, 53.0% (51.4% - 2019/20) refer to former tenants. 
 

          

2019/20 Provision for Bad Debts 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

  Rent Arrears 
 

    

1,486 Balance at 1st April 2020 1,486 

115 Contribution from / (to) HRA in year   67 

(115) Written off in year 
 

  (111) 

    
 

    

1,486 As at 31st March 2021   1,442 

    
 

    

  Sundry Debtors 
 

    

26 Balance at 1st April 2020 18 

(8) Contribution from / (to) HRA in year   18 

    
 

    

18 Balance at 31st March 2021 36 

    
 

    

1,504 Total Provision for Bad Debts   1,478 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 150



 
 

- 135 - 

Collection Fund 

The Collection Fund statement shows the transactions of the Authority, as billing authority, in relation to the collection of Council 
Tax income on behalf of Staffordshire County Council, the OPCC, the Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority and 
this Authority's General Fund together with non-domestic rates collected on behalf of the Government, Staffordshire County 
Council, the Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority and this Authority's General Fund.  

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Collection Fund Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

Council 
Tax NNDR Total 

Council 
Tax NNDR Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

      INCOME       

(38,368) - (38,368) Income from Council Tax (40,273) - (40,273) 

(7) - (7) Transfers from General Fund - Council Tax benefits 5 - 5 
              

- (35,666) (35,666) Income collectable from business ratepayers   (17,186) (17,186) 

              

(38,375) (35,666) (74,041) Total Income (40,268) (17,186) (57,454) 

              

      EXPENDITURE       

      Precepts       

3,849 - 3,849 - Tamworth Borough Council 4,068 - 4,068 

4,713 - 4,713 - OPCC Staffordshire 5,035 - 5,035 

1,648 - 1,648 - Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority 1,728 - 1,728 

27,119 - 27,119 - Staffordshire County Council 28,987 - 28,987 

      Business rates       

- 13,385 13,385 - Tamworth Borough Council - 13,829 13,829 

- 8,366 8,366 - Central Government - 17,286 17,286 

- 335 335 - Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority - 346 346 

- 11,377 11,377 - Staffordshire County Council - 3,111 3,111 

P
age 151



 
 

- 136 - 

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Collection Fund Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

Council 
Tax NNDR Total 

Council 
Tax NNDR Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

- 90 90 Costs of Collection - 90 90 

      Bad and Doubtful Debts       

229 358 587     - Provisions 357 197 554 

- 1,345 1,345     - Provision for appeals - 3,284 3,284 

      Distribution of previous year's surpluses/deficits       

62 752 814 - Tamworth Borough Council 78 323 401 

70 - 70 - OPCC Staffordshire 88 - 88 

27 19 46 - Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority 33 8 41 

441 169 610 - Staffordshire County Council 551 169 720 

- 941 941 - Central Government - 306 306 

38,158 37,137 75,295 Total Expenditure 40,925 38,949 79,874 

(217) 1,471 1,254 (Surplus)/ Deficit for the year 657 21,763 22,420 

(1,419) (2,302) (3,721) Fund Balance Brought Forward (1,636) (831) (2,467) 

(1,636) (831) (2,467) Fund Balance at 31st March 2021 (979) 20,932 19,953 

      Analysis of Fund Balance (Surplus)/ Deficit       

(168) (332) (500) - Tamworth Borough Council (100) 8,357 8,257 

(207) - (207) - OPCC Staffordshire (124) - (124) 

(71) (8) (79) - Staffordshire Commissioner Fire and Rescue Authority (43) 370 327 

(1,190) (178) (1,368) - Staffordshire County Council (712) 2,031 1,319 

- (313) (313) - Central Government - 10,174 10,174 

(1,636) (831) (2,467) Total (979) 20,932 19,953 
 

P
age 152



 
 

- 137 - 

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 
 

CF 1. NDR Rateable Value 
 
The rateable value of Non Domestic properties in the Borough as at 31st March 
2021 was £80,087,680 (£81,111,287 at 31st March 2020). 
 
The NDR multiplier for 2020/21 was 51.2p in the pound (50.4p – 2019/20). The 
qualifying small business multiplier for 2020/21 was 49.9p in the pound (49.1p – 
2019/20). 
 

CF 2. Council Tax Base Calculation 
 
The Council base was as follows: 
 

Number of 
Chargeable 
Properties 

Adjusted 
Property 

Base 
(Band D 

Equivalent) 

Calculation of Ctax Base 
 Number of 

Chargeable 
Properties 

Adjusted 
Property 

Base 
(Band D 

Equivalent) 

2019/20 2019/20     2020/21 2020/21 

    Valuation Band (Multiplier)     

      
 

    

20 11 A - Disabled Relief Reduction (5/9) 17 9 

8,229 5,486 A - (6/9) 
 

8,146 5,431 

10,704 8,325 B - (7/9) 
 

10,874 8,458 

5,155 4,582 C - (8/9) 
 

5,368 4,772 

3,488 3,488 D - (9/9) 
 

3,559 3,559 

1,765 2,157 E - (11/9) 
 

1,875 2,292 

422 610 F - (13/9) 
 

467 675 

69 115 G - (15/9) 
 

97 162 

2 4 H - (18/9) 
 

2 4 

      
 

    

  (2,550) LCTS ADJUSTMENT   (2,515) 

      
 

    

29,854 22,228 Totals 
 

30,405 22,847 

      
 

    

  97.90% Assumed Collection Rate   97.90% 

      
 

    

  21,761 Total Taxbase   22,367 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153



 
 

- 138 - 

CF 3. Authorities making precepts or demands on the fund  
 
Council Tax 
 

Precept 

Distribution 
of Previous 

Years 
Estimated 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

Total 
Movement 

on the 
Collection 

Fund Precepts Analysis Precept 

Distribution 
of Previous 

Years 
Estimated 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

Total 
Movement 

on the 
Collection 

Fund 

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

£ £ £   £ £ £ 

              
3,849,303 167,902 4,017,205 Tamworth Borough 

Council 
4,068,334 98,124 4,166,458 

4,712,562 206,756 4,919,318 OPCC Staffordshire 5,034,588 125,258 5,159,846 

1,647,961 71,568 1,719,529 Staffordshire 
Commissioner Fire 
and Rescue Authority 

1,727,627 41,362 1,768,989 

27,119,211 1,190,125 28,309,336 Staffordshire County 
Council 

28,986,514 714,377 29,700,891 

37,329,037 1,636,351 38,965,388 Total 39,817,063 979,121 40,796,184 

 
NDR 
 

Business 
Rates 

Distribution 
of Previous 

Years 
Estimated 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

Total 
Movement 

on the 
Collection 

Fund Precepts Analysis 
Business 

Rates 

Distribution 
of Previous 

Years 
Estimated 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

Total 
Movement 

on the 
Collection 

Fund 

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20   2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

£ £ £   £ £ £ 

              
13,385,014 332,410 13,717,424 Tamworth Borough 

Council 
13,828,842 8,356,897 22,185,739 

334,625 8,310 342,935 Staffordshire 
Commissioner Fire 
and Rescue Authority 

345,721 370,524 716,245 

11,377,262 177,589 11,554,851 Staffordshire County 
Council 

3,111,489 2,031,140 5,142,629 

8,365,634 312,715 8,678,349 Central Government 17,286,053 10,173,738 27,459,791 

33,462,535 831,024 34,293,559 Total 34,572,105 20,932,299 55,504,404 

 
The increase in the balance on the CFAA is due to a significant deficit on the 

NDR Collection Fund of £21.8m arising from the additional relief provided to 

local businesses as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Government have 

provided funding for the additional reliefs through Section 31 grants to Local 

Authorities and the Council received c.£17.4m. 

Page 154



 
 

- 139 - 

It should be noted however, that this represents the total Collection Fund 

impact, and the Councils 40% share of this equates to c.£7.0m which has been 

reflected in the Councils accounts and transferred to reserve to fund the deficit 

carried forward to 2021/22 (in line with collection fund accounting practice – 

whereby the deficit is funded in the following financial year as part of the budget 

process). 

 
CF 4. NDR credits 
 
NDR credit accounts relate to credit balances in the Collection Fund which could 
not be repaid to the businesses concerned as they cannot be traced, have not 
responded to efforts made to repay funds or no longer exist.  
 
No credits have been transferred to the General Fund during 2020/21.  
 

CF 5. Bad and Doubtful Debts 
 

The following provisions and write offs were made in the year: 
 

2019/20 Provision for Bad Debts 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

  Council Tax     

1,229 Balance at 1st April 2020   1,249 

229 Increase /(decrease) in provision 357 

(209) Written off in year   (112) 

    
 

    

1,249 As at 31st March 2021   1,494 

    
 

    

  Business Rates     

542 Balance at 1st April 2020   705 

358 Increase /(decrease) in provision 197 

(195) Written off in year   (216) 

    
 

    

705 As at 31st March 2021   686 

 

CF 6. Appeals – Business Rates 
 

The following provisions and settlements were made in the year: 
 

2019/20 Provision for Appeals 2020/21 

£000       £000 

    
 

    

  Business Rates     

4,519 Balance at 1st April 2020   5,062 

1,345 Increase /(decrease) in provision 3,284 

(802) Resolved in year   (1,774) 

    
 

    

5,062 As at 31st March 2021   6,572 

 

 

Page 155



 
 

140 

 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 
 
What is Governance? 
 
Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that the 
intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. 
 
To deliver good governance in the Authority, both governing bodies (Members) 
and individuals working for the Authority must try to achieve the Authority’s 
objectives whilst acting in the public interest at all times. 
 
Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for 
society, which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other 
stakeholders.   
 
The Core Principles of Good Governance 
 
The diagram below, taken from the International Framework: Good 
Governance in the Public Sector, illustrates the various principles of good 
governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 156



 
 

141 

 

 

Responsibility 
 
The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is completed in line 
with the law and statutory legislation, and that public money is spent wisely and 
properly accounted for.  We will ensure that we continually improve the way we 
provide our services whilst taking into account value for money.   
 
We will ensure that we put in place proper arrangements to ensure our risks 
are managed, and that controls and the governance process are in place.   
 
We have approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is 
consistent with principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government.  The Code demonstrates the supporting 
principles which underpin the core principles and identifies the assurance as 
outlined in the Framework.  It also demonstrates what level of assurance we 
get and thus, identifies any areas for improvement.  This forms the assurance 
framework for good governance and demonstrates that we know our 
governance arrangements are working.  Links to all supporting evidence 
identified in the assurance framework are contained within the Code of 
Corporate Governance and are not repeated in this statement.  The Code of 
Corporate Governance document is available on the Council’s website. 
 
Our Outcomes 
 
Our desired outcomes for 2019-22 are detailed in the Corporate Plan.  The 
Corporate Plan details our Vision and sets out our Thematic Priorities. Under 
each thematic priority, we detail our ambitions and how we are going to realise 
these.  All outcomes we aim to achieve, along with changes we want to see 
and supporting information are detailed in the Corporate Plan. 
 
For each activity or process we complete, we ensure that the appropriate 
governance arrangements are in place.   
 
For 2020/21, we together with the rest of the UK, have faced an 
unprecedented global crisis in the Coronavirus pandemic. This has been and 
will remain, a significant factor affecting our operations in 2021/22 and beyond. 
As part of the Staffordshire wide Civil Contingencies Unit, the Council evoked 
business continuity arrangements to enable the continuation of business 
critical operations. While the Corporate Plan remains relevant to our future 
outcomes, these will no doubt be affected by the COVID-19 situation and will 
be dealt with as part of the Council’s emerging recovery and reset programme. 
As part of our AGS this year, we have included the measures we have taken to 
ensure our governance effectiveness has not been impacted or compromised 
by the pandemic.   
 
 

Page 157



 
 

142 

 

 

 

Page 158



 
 

143 

 

 Page 159



 
 

144 

 

 

 

 

 
What have we done to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of our 
governance arrangements during 2020/21 including ensuring that 
those arrangements have not been compromised by the impact of the 
pandemic  
 
The Authority has the responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 
system of internal control.  The review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control is informed by: 
 

 The work of Internal Audit which is detailed in the Internal Audit’s 
Annual Report. 

 Responsibility of Corporate Management Team for the development 
and maintenance of the internal control environment. 

 Reports received from our External Auditors and any other review 
agencies or inspectorates. 

 
During 2020/21, our operations were heavily impacted by the global 
pandemic. The Council continued to support vulnerable people, deliver 
critical front line services and scaled-up its response to COVID-19 during 
the year including the payment of significant levels of grants to local 
businesses and individuals (through the test and trace scheme) and 
expanded businesses rates relief to retail, hospitality and leisure 
businesses. Importantly, the COVID-19 emergency tested the Council’s 
ability to move at pace, prioritise its service delivery and demonstrate its 
core values & purpose. To ensure our governance arrangements remained 
effective, the following actions have contributed to the evaluation of the 
effectiveness of the arrangements: 
 

 The Council has responded rapidly and effectively to the pandemic 
related restrictions as they have been announced by Government. 
Most staff switched to virtual working and establishments, such as 
the Castle and Assembly Rooms were closed. Public health and 
safety became a priority for a number of teams working 
collaboratively to manage COVID-19 outbreaks within our 
communities and to ensure the safe return of people to the town 
centre as COVID-19 restrictions were eased. Resilience plans were 
activated in partnership with the Civil Contingencies Unit and 
businesses were supported by the authority with the distribution of 
c.£18m in Government grants through a variety of different schemes. 
The Council’s aim was to ensure public service delivery could 
continue safely where permitted.  

 Increased residents’ resilience and access to information through 
empowering and working with ‘anchor’ and third sector organisations 
to support our most vulnerable 

Page 160



 
 

145 

 

 

 Support our most vulnerable through preventing homelessness and 
helping people access suitable housing amidst major Government 
initiatives including the “everyone” in campaign, whilst also pausing 
non-essential moves 

 Emergency decision making protocols were enacted by Council in 
March 2020, until the new Regulations permitting council meetings to 
be held remotely were put in place in May 2020. The Council 
recommenced its meeting programme virtually in June 2020 and has 
been operating effectively in this way since then. 

 The internal audit programme included provision of days for COVID-
19 flash assurance audits to ensure that those charged with 
governance were able to get dynamic assurance over risks affecting 
the Council from the pandemic, for example in terms of staff 
wellbeing and business grants. The ICT audit programme included 
remote working to gain further assurance with most staff transitioning 
to working from home. 

 
In addition to the above, the Council’s ‘business as usual’ governance 
arrangements have continued to operate, for example: 

 The Code of Corporate Governance, set out in line with the 
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government, has been reviewed and updated.  

 Internal audit have reported to the Audit & Governance Committee 
on a quarterly basis and provided an opinion on the overall 
effectiveness of the system of internal control based upon the work 
completed.  The statement for the 2020/21 financial year is as 
follows: 
‘On the basis of audit work completed, Internal Audit’s opinion on the 
council’s framework of governance, risk management and internal 
control is reasonable in its overall design and effectiveness. Certain 
weaknesses and exceptions were highlighted by audit work. These 
matters have been discussed with management, to whom 
recommendations have been made. All of these have been, or are in 
the process of being addressed’. 

 Our External Auditors report to each Audit & Governance 
Committee.  In their Annual Audit Letter (2019/20), they gave an 
unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts and an unqualified 
conclusion in respect of the Authority securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

 The Corporate Risk Register is owned and reviewed on a quarterly 
basis by the Corporate Management Team and reported in the 
Quarterly Health Check to Cabinet. It is also reported in the risk 
management update to the Audit & Governance Committee.  The 
changing risk landscape arising from the pandemic, featured as a 
key area of risk and will continue to be so moving into 2021/22. 

 Managers Assurance Statements have been completed by 
Executive Directors and Assistant Directors and have not identified 
any significant control issues. 

Page 161



 
 

146 

 

 

 Financial Guidance and Financial and Contract Procedure Rules are 
reviewed on a regular basis, the latest review being approved by the 
Audit & Governance Committee in March 2021. A full review of the 
constitution took place and was approved by Council in December 
2020. 

 The Chief Finance Officer and Head of Internal Audit & Governance 
(in post during 2020/21) are suitably experienced and qualified and 
comply with the CIPFA Statements on their respective roles.  

 No issues were raised through the Counter Fraud and Corruption 
and Whistleblowing Policies. 

 There were no data security breaches/lapses during the financial 
year. 

 Internal Audit are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards.  As part of this requirement, Internal Audit are 
required to complete an annual self-assessment against the 
Standards and produce a Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme(QAIP) which identifies areas for improvement both to 
ensure compliance with the Standards and other quality areas.  The 
self-assessment against the standards and the QAIP are reported to 
the Audit & Governance Committee. 

 The Ombudsman report on the enquiries and complaints received in 
2019/20 was reported to the Audit & Governance Committee in 
October 2020. 

 The Performance Management Framework ensures that the 
Financial Health Check is reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis 
and made readily available on the Authority’s website. 

 The Authority is currently compliant with the PSN Code of 
Connection. The compliance process includes assessments against 
governance, service management, information assurance conditions 
and technical controls and assures access to the Public Services 
Network. Our current compliance certificate expires in December 
2021, the renewal process will be started prior to that to ensure 
continuity of PSN services. 

 An annual update report is presented to the Audit & Governance 
Committee on the use of RIPA powers.  During 2020/21, no RIPA 
authorisations were made. 

 To assist in a more co-ordinated approach to managing projects, a 
Corporate Project Management template and process is now in 
place. 

 A self-assessment of the Audit & Governance Committee’s 
effectiveness was completed in February 2021. 

 The Chairs of the Audit & Governance and Scrutiny Committees 
submitted their Annual Reports to Full Council.  

 The Authority complies with the Transparency Code. 

 Counter fraud work continues to be completed with the retained 
expertise of in-house staff to investigate corporate fraud.  

 Internal Audit completes an annual assessment of the risk of fraud 
which is reported to the Audit & Governance Committee annually. 
The counter fraud plan and risk assessment were reported to the 

Page 162



 
 

147 

 

 

Committee in October 2020 and it was concluded that the Authority 
has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and 
corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud.    

 In compliance with the Localism Act 2011, a report was presented to 
Full Council in September 2020 advising them of the number of 
complaints received regarding Members Conduct. 

 The review of the Constitution and Scheme of Delegation was 
approved by Council in December 2020. It will be due to be 
refreshed in the Summer 2021.  

 The Anti-Money Laundering Policy was reviewed and approved by 
the Audit & Governance Committee in November 2019 and a new 
Prevention of Tax Evasion Policy was approved by the Audit & 
Governance Committee in October 2020. 

 A new Diversity and Equality Scheme (2020-24) was formally 
approved by full council in October 2020.  The annual Pay Policy 
was approved by Council in October 2020, this had been delayed 
due to the Council’s response to COVID-19. 

 The authority has continued to progress implementation of the 
organisation’s response to the General Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR). The Data Protection Officer continues to raise its 
awareness of GDPR across the authority.  As part of wider IT 
Governance work, policies and procedures have been reviewed or 
are being developed to meet our obligations under the GDPR and to 
ensure a robust governance framework is in place for our ICT 
systems and information assets. The Information Security Policy has 
been rolled out across the authority with this becoming a mandatory 
requirement for new starters.  The authority’s Corporate Privacy 
Notice along with Departmental Fair Processing Notices have been 
developed with reviews being undertaken when 
necessary.  Information on our website has been reviewed and is 
due to be updated with guidance to support our customer’s rights of 
access to their data.  Work is progressing with suppliers to ensure 
the security and compliance of personal data held within our 
software systems.  A programme of cyber security training has been 
completed across the authority with further bite size communications 
to be issued over the coming months. 

 Partnership working arrangements continued to strengthen and 
further develop with both our statutory and community and voluntary 
sector partners.  The response to the pandemic was unprecedented 
and has created a good foundation for closer links and partnership 
work as we move into recovery.  

 The Tamworth Advice Centre commissioned through the partnership 
team continues to provide valuable generalist debt and specialist 
advice to our most vulnerable citizens and will be re-commissioned 
in 2021/22. 

 We value our community and voluntary sector and the work they do 
within our community.  In 2020/21, despite lockdown we awarded 
grants through our Community Grants and Councillor Grants 
Programme to aid community response to the pandemic.  Full details 
can be found on our website:      

Page 163



 
 

148 

 

 

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/misc_docs/2020-
21_Grants.pdf 

 Through the Staffordshire Commissioner’s Office for Police Fire and 
Crime Locality Deal Fund the Community Safety Partnership, various 
organisations were funded. A total of £48,200 to address partnership 
priorities around hate crime, community COVID-19 response, ASB 
dispute resolution and early intervention for young people at risk of 
criminal exploitation.   

 The Place Based Approach continues to grow and further develop; 
this is a collaborative partnership approach through the County 
Council Building Resilient Families programme that uses multi skilled 
teams, universal services, voluntary sector organisations, and 
communities at the right time to improve outcomes for children, 
young people, vulnerable people and our community.  As part of this 
Place Based Approach we have been working in partnership to 
identify community and voluntary sector organisations that can offer 
children, families and vulnerable people help and support at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 Financial resilience is and has been the key requirement for local 
authorities at any time, but in the current crisis it has assumed 
unprecedented importance. Perhaps the biggest difficulty with the 
pandemic is that there is no certainty about time scales; it is 
impossible to draw any conclusions about how long it will continue to 
impact on and the lasting effect for the Council’s finances. During the 
COVID-19 crisis the Council will have lost income and other 
resources which will significantly impact on the potential 
sustainability of the organisation and the impact is likely to be long 
term, as will be the case across many Local Government 
organisations. Whilst the full extent of this cannot be known at 
present it will be necessary for the Council to take an accelerated 
approach towards the development and implementation of an 
effective sustainability strategy. 

 The Authority has both a moral and legal obligation to ensure a duty 
of care for children and adults with care and support needs across its 
services.  We are committed to ensuring that all children and adults 
with care and support needs are protected and kept safe from harm 
whilst engaged in services organised and/or provided by the Council.  
We do this by: 

 Having a Safeguarding Children & Adults at Risk of Abuse 
& Neglect Policy and procedures in place; 

 Having Safeguarding Children & Adults Processes which 
give clear, step-by-step guidance if abuse is identified; 

 Safeguarding training programme in place for staff and 
members; 

 Carrying out of the appropriate level of Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS) checks on staff and volunteers; 

 Working closely with Staffordshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Board & Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Adult 
Safeguarding Partnership; and Staffordshire Police. 

Page 164

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/misc_docs/2020-21_Grants.pdf
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/misc_docs/2020-21_Grants.pdf


 
 

149 

 

 

 The Authority recognises that it has a responsibility to take a robust 
approach to slavery and human trafficking.  In addition to the 
Authority’s responsibility as an employer, it also acknowledges its 
duty as a Borough Council to notify the Secretary of State of 
suspected victims of slavery or human trafficking as introduced by 
section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015.  The Authority is 
committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking in its 
corporate activities and to ensuring that its supply chains are free 
from slavery and human trafficking. The Authority has included 
modern slavery and human trafficking information within the 
corporate safeguarding policy and training.  
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/community_docs/Mod
ern_Slavery_Statement_2019-20.docx 
The Council will continue to develop and strengthen its approach to 
modern slavery trafficking in 2021/22.   

 The Tamworth Vulnerability Partnership continues to meet each 
week and the Council is also committed to the Multi Agency Risk 
Assessment Conference (MARAC) to ensure that partner 
organisations are working together to coordinate efforts to support 
high risk victims of domestic abuse, children, young people, families 
and vulnerable people across Tamworth. 

 Finally, full Council in March 2020 approved urgency provisions 
regarding governance for urgent decision making in light of the 
COVID-19 crisis and the Council has gone on to fully adopted the 
provisions included within the Regulations for The Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2020, by holding virtual meetings from June 
2020. 

 
  

Page 165

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/community_docs/Modern_Slavery_Statement_2019-20.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/community_docs/Modern_Slavery_Statement_2019-20.docx


 
 

150 

 

 

Declaration 
 

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review 
of the effectiveness of the Governance Framework by the Audit & 
Governance Committee and that the arrangements continue to be 
regarded as fit for purpose.  The issues which remain outstanding 
from previous years’ Annual Governance Statements are detailed at 
Annex 1 with actions to address them.  No additional governance 
issues were highlighted during 2020/21.  Other minor issues 
highlighted through the assurance gathering process have been 
noted with planned actions to address these issues.  Monitoring of 
the completion of all these issues will be completed through 
reporting to the Audit & Governance Committee.   

 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address those 
matters raised to further enhance our governance arrangements.  
We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and 
will monitor their implementation and operations as part of our next 
review.   

 
Signed  

 
 
 
 
 

J Oates     A Barratt 
 

Leader    Chief Executive 
 

Date  
 
On behalf of the Authority 
 
 
This information can be produced on request in other formats and languages. Please contact Internal Audit Services on 
01827 709234 or email enquiries@tamworth.gov.uk 

 
This is an electronic copy without an electronic signature. The original was signed as dated 
above and a copy can be obtained from the Executive Director Finance 

 
 

Page 166



 
 

151 

 

 

Annex 1 
Significant Governance Issues  
 
The significant governance issues identified in relation to previous iterations of our 
Annual Governance Statement, which remained significant issues for us during 
2020/21 and are detailed below: 
 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

1 Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) 
 
Whilst actions have been 
taken to ensure that the 
MTFS remains balanced, this 
is still a significant risk to the 
Authority.  Revenue Support 
grant will be removed around 
2020.  Opportunities and 
risks associated with the 
100% Business Rates 
Retention will need to be 
identified.  The increasing 
demands of our customers 
also need to be considered. 
  

 
 
 
Work is also continuing on a number 
of actions to address the financial 
position in future years: 
 

 Recruitment freeze – there is a 
robust challenge / re-
justification process in place for 
all vacant posts with a 
requirement to investigate 
alternative options including 
restructuring to fill vacancies / 
looking at what we can stop 
doing; 

 

 Spend freeze – A review of the 
underspend position is 
undertaken annually with a 
view to drive out as many 
savings as possible. In addition, 
it has been recommended that 
there is an immediate 
suspension of all non-essential 

 
 
 
When the budget and MTFS for 2020/21 were 
approved, future levels of funding for the Council 
were uncertain pending the most significant 
changes in Local Government funding for a 
generation. The reforms were planned to be in 
place by 2020/21 but were deferred until 2021/22. 
The Government has confirmed that the longer-
term reforms for the local government finance 
system (including the move to 75% Business 
Rates Retention and Fairer Funding Review of 
Relative Needs and Resources) will be deferred 
again as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
although no timescales have been released. In 
addition, the next planned national Business Rates 
Revaluation, planned for 2021 has now been 
deferred to 2023. 
 
As a nation we are likely to feel the consequences 
of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the measures to 
contain and mitigate its effects, for years to come. 
 

P
age 167



 
 

152 

 

 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

spending and that the budget 
be revised to remove these 
budgets following the 
preparation the first quarterly 
monitoring report. Managers 
will be required to review their 
budgets and identify all non-
essential spending for 2020/21 
as part of the quarter 1 
projections at 30 June 2020. 

 

 Alternative investment options 
to generate improved returns of 
c. 4% to 5% p.a. (plus asset 
growth); 

 

 Review of reserves (including 
ensuring adequate provision for 
the funding uncertainties) / 
creation of fund for 
transformation costs (if 
needed); 

 

 Targeted Savings – to identify 
potential areas for review in 
future years; and 
 

 Review and rationalisation of IT 
systems. 

 
 

At the same time, several important sources of local 
authority income including Council Tax, Non 
domestic (business) rates, fees and charges, rents 
and investment returns have, to a greater or lesser 
extent, been subject to reduction or suspension.  
 
In light of the projected impact of COVID-19 on the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, an 
immediate suspension of all non-essential spending 
was approved by Cabinet on 9th July and that 
Managers review their budgets and identify all non-
essential spending for 2020/21 and approval sought 
for the budget to be revised to remove these. 
 
No one can know what the effect of the COVID-19 
crisis will have on the economy and ultimately the 
impact for the Council’s finances. It will be many 
months before we have a clearer idea on how the 
economy has been affected – including any lasting 
effects for individual businesses and their 
employees. Social distancing measures remain in 
place – impacting mainly on the Council’s ongoing 
income receipts. 
 
During the crisis the Council has lost income which 
will significantly impact on the potential 
sustainability of the organisation, as will be the case 
across many Local Government organisations. 
Whilst the full extent of this cannot be known at 
present it will be necessary for the Council to take 
an accelerated approach towards the development 

P
age 168



 
 

153 

 

 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

and implementation of an effective sustainability 
strategy, linked to an overall vision for the 
organisation.  
 
Cabinet on 22nd October 2020 approved the 
Recovery and Reset programme which aims to 
consider how we can tackle the financial challenges 
facing the council as a result of the coronavirus 
pandemic. This will include reviewing services, 
reducing waste demand on services (basically this 
is any action or step in a process that does not add 
value to the customer), exploring opportunities for 
income generation and identifying any further 
savings.  
 
The overriding goal is to make sure our 
organisation remains fit for the future, while 
protecting services to the most vulnerable in our 
community. The Recovery and Reset programme 
outlines that this work be split into eight projects. 

2 Regeneration/Capital 
Projects  
 
The Authority needs to 
ensure that capital projects 
are managed effectively to 
ensure that they are 
delivered and grant monies 
are spent appropriately and 
timely.  
 

 
 
 
Re-profiling of capital scheme spend 
from 2019/20 into 2020/21 is forecast 
at c. £21m (c.£39m 2018/19) relating 
mainly to Housing Regeneration 
Schemes, Acquisitions and 
Commercial Investments. 
 
It is anticipated that this spend will 

 
 
 
Re-profiling of capital scheme spend from 20/21 
into 2021/22 is forecast at c. £27.5m  relating 
mainly to new affordable Housing development, 
housing capital works, Disabled Facilities Grants,  
Acquisitions and Commercial Investments. 
 
 
It is anticipated that this spend will now occur during 

P
age 169



 
 

154 

 

 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

There is a risk that 
developers will not develop 
timely in accordance with the 
Local Plan need.   
 
 

now occur during 2020/21 but the 
situation will be closely monitored and 
any potential issues will be highlighted 
at the earliest opportunity. 
 
As part of the MTFS, Council in 
February 2020 approved the updated 
Capital Strategy which sets out the 
Council’s approach to capital 
investment and the approach that will 
be followed in making decisions in 
respect of the Council’s Capital 
assets.  
 
Capital investment is an important 
ingredient in ensuring the Council’s 
vision is achieved and given that 
capital resources are limited it is 
critical that the Council makes best 
use of these resources – including the 
development of a long term strategic 
plan to address the identified 
maintenance and repairs backlog for 
corporate assets. 
 
It is recognised that significant further 
work is required in this area in order to 
deliver a robust capital strategy, in 
2020/21, the Asset Management Plan 
is to be reviewed and updated, with an 
up to date stock condition survey (with 

2020/21 but the situation will be closely monitored. 
The housing regeneration programme completed in 
January 2021; some housing capital projects have 
been impacted by COVID-19 where non-essential 
works were placed on hold. 
As part of the MTFS, Council in February 2021 
approved the updated Capital Strategy which sets 
out the Council’s approach to capital investment 
and the approach that will be followed in making 
decisions in respect of the Council’s Capital assets.  
 
Capital investment is an important ingredient in 
ensuring the Council’s vision is achieved and given 
that capital resources are limited it is critical that the 
Council makes best use of these resources – 
including the development of a long term strategic 
plan to address the identified maintenance and 
repairs backlog for corporate assets. 
 
It is recognised that significant further work is 
required in this area in order to deliver a robust 
capital strategy,  and the updated Asset 
Management Plan is nearing completion, with an up 
to date stock condition survey (with appropriate 
budget provision approved within the MTFS) 
planned. This should set out the detailed capital 
resources /expenditure required to maintain assets, 
together with the associated timeframe, to inform 
options appraisal and feed into the capital strategy 
for ASSG/CMT review of potential schemes. 
 

P
age 170



 
 

155 

 

 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

appropriate budget provision approved 
within the MTFS). This should set out 
the detailed capital resources 
/expenditure required to maintain 
assets, together with the associated 
timeframe, to inform options appraisal 
and feed into the capital strategy for 
ASSG/CMT review of potential 
schemes. 
 
The Tinkers Green and Kerria 
regeneration project is progressing 
with anticipated completion during 
2020. 

 

3 Welfare & Benefit Reform 
 
There is a risk of reduced 
income corporately due to 
welfare reform changes 
(including council tax support 
scheme and Universal Credit 
with further austerity 
measures from the Welfare 
reform Act 2015). 
As well as the potential for 
reduced income and an 
increase in bad debts, there 
are additional impacts arising 
from increased needs in 
services – eg homelessness, 
requirement for additional 

 
 
The Council has experienced an 
impact from Welfare Benefit Reform 
and is able to evidence an increase in 
rent arrears to the implementation of 
Universal Credit.  A Corporate 
Working Group has been established 
to ensure an organisation wide 
approach and the Council has been 
pro-active in seeking positive working 
relationships with DWP. The issue 
has been the subject of examination 
by the Council’s scrutiny committees.  
Any impact in relation to 
homelessness has been less 
apparent and the Council has been 

 
 
Income levels have been largely maintained in 
2020/21 (due to the mitigations put in place) 
despite the COVID-19 crisis. 
 
The Corporate Working Group has continued to 
meet to take forward an organisation wide 
approach including preparations for implementation 
of the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space). 
Following a tender process in 2020, further work is 
being commissioned around corporate debt to 
secure a one council approach focusing on not only 
the management of multiple debt households but 
seeking to understand how resources are better 
aligned to secure VFM. 
 

P
age 171



 
 

156 

 

 

No Issue Previous Action  Update 2020/21 

support to vulnerable people, 
increased issues of ASB etc 
meaning an increase in 
demand on 3rd sector and 
statutory agency services. 

successful in its proactive approach to 
implementation of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act and has achieved a 
significant reduction in the use of bed 
and breakfast accommodation 
thereby reducing costs and social 
harm. 
 
Income levels have been largely 
maintained without reduction in 
2019/20 (due to the mitigations put in 
place) however, the COVID-19 crisis 
likely to now have a significant effect 
on future income and welfare 
spending (which we cannot quantify at 
the moment). 
 

Work is being commissioned around 
corporate debt to secure a one 
council approach focusing on not only 
the management of multiple debt 
households but seeking to understand 
how resources are better aligned to 
secure VFM. 
 

A corporate task and finish group is 
being established around vulnerability 
which will map base line data to 
support forecasting around likely 
impacts which will then inform actions. 

Third Sector Support and Vulnerability Strategy is 
one of the Recovery and Reset Programme 
projects – Recognising that one of the most 
positive outcomes to the Pandemic is the 
overwhelming ability of ‘anchor organisations and 
communities’ to mobilise and support each other, 
this project will explore how the Council’s 
commissioning framework can be aligned to build 
on these foundations going forward and how we 
define and develop our vulnerability strategy, 
building on the baseline assessment commissioned 
over the summer. 
 

 

P
age 172



 
 

157 

 

 

GLOSSARY 
 
 
Accrual 
A sum included in the accounts for income or expenditure in relation to the financial year, but not 
received or paid as at 31st March. 
 
Amortisation 
A measure of the cost of economic benefits derived from intangible fixed assets that are consumed 
during the period. 
 
Balances 
The total sum available to the Council, including the accumulated surplus of income over 
expenditure.  Balances form part of the Council’s reserves. 
 
Balance Sheet 
This shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the 
Council. 
 
Business Rates Retention Scheme 
This was introduced with effect from 1st April 2013, and requires the Council to operate a Collection 
Fund to account for Business Rates in a similar way to Council Tax.  Rather than collecting 
Business Rates on behalf of the Government, the Council can now retain a share of the Business 
Rates it collects, and pays out a share to Government, Staffs County Council and the Staffordshire 
Commissioner (Fire and Rescue). 
 
Capital Adjustment Account 
This reserve reflects the difference between the cost of fixed assets consumed and the capital 
financing set aside to pay for them. 
 
Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition and enhancement of significant fixed assets that will be of use or 
benefit to the Council in providing its services beyond the year of account e.g. land and buildings. 
 
Capital Financing Requirement 
This represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes. 
  
Capital Grants Unapplied 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions received 
towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require 
repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is 
restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the 
financial year in which this can take place.  

Capital Receipts 
Proceeds from the sale of assets e.g. land or buildings, which may be used to finance new capital 
expenditure or are payable to the Central Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool. 
 

Page 173



 
 

158 

 

 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which 
are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set 
aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources 
that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash includes bank balances and on demand deposits.  Cash Equivalents are short term, highly 
liquid investments where the date of maturity is three months or less from the date of acquisition 
that are readily convertible to cash with an insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. 
 
CIPFA 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) is the professional body for 
accountants working in the public sector. 
 
Code of Practice 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom is produced by CIPFA 
and complied with by local authorities in the production of the financial statements. 
 
Collection Fund 
A fund administered by the Borough Council into which Business Rates and Council Tax monies 
are received and paid out to Government and precepting authorities. 
 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition 
of Council Tax and Business Rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as it falls due compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to 
the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 
 
Community Assets 
The class of fixed assets held by the Council in perpetuity that have no determinable useful life 

and may have restrictions on their disposal, such as parks, historical buildings, works of art, etc. 

 

Component Accounting 
Where a Property, Plant or Equipment asset has major components, with a cost significant in 
relation to the overall cost of the asset; materially different useful lives; and/or different methods of 
depreciation, the components are separately identified and depreciated. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
This statement shows the total income received and expenditure incurred by the Council during the 
year in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be 
funded from taxation. 
 
Contingency 
The sum of money set aside to meet unforeseen expenditure. 
 
Contingent Assets 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset 
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the Council’s control. Contingent Assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 

Page 174



 
 

159 

 

 

disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic 
benefits or service potential. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation, subject to uncertain future events not wholly within the Council’s control.  Contingent 
liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered which have not 
been paid for by the end of the financial year. 
 
Current Service Cost 
An estimate of the true economic cost of employing people in a financial year. 
 
Debtors 
Amounts due to the Council for work done or services supplied, for which income has not been 
received by the end of the financial year. 

 
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of Non Current 
Assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. 
 
Depreciation 
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of a 
fixed asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technical or other 
changes. 
 
Exceptional Items 
A material item of income or expenditure, significant to an understanding of the Council’s financial 
performance, disclosed separately within the CIES or in a note to the accounts. 
 
Expected Credit Loss Model 
The Expected Credit Loss Model was introduced under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and applies 
to financial assets, lease receivables and contract assets.  
 
Fixed Assets 
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the Council for a period of more than one year. 
 
General Fund Balance  
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be 
paid and out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory 
rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities 
and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance 
with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources 
that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the 
deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover) at the end of the financial year 
(however, the balance is not available to be applied to funding HRA services).  
 
Housing Revenue Account Balance  
The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue 
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as defined 
by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future expenditure in connection with the Council’s 
landlord function or (where in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants in future years. 

Page 175



 
 

160 

 

 

 
IFRS 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are a set of accounting standards used for the 
production of accounts from 2010/11 onwards.  The introduction of IFRS is intended to make the 
Statement of Accounts more robust and comparable with other local authorities and the wider 
public sector.  
 
Intangible Assets 
Non-financial assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Council as a 
result of past events or through custody or legal rights (e.g. software licences). 
 
Investment Property  
Under IFRS, investment property is defined as a property which is held exclusively for revenue 
generation or for the capital gains that the asset is expected to generate - not used directly to 
deliver the Council’s services.  
 
Joint Operations 
These are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other venturers that involve the 
use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the establishment of a separate entity.  
 
Leasing 
A method of financing capital expenditure where rental charges are paid over a specified period of 
time.  There are two main types of leasing arrangements: 
 
(a) finance leases which transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset to the 

lessee and such assets are included within the fixed assets in the Balance Sheet; 
(b) operating leases where the ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and annual rental is 

charged direct to the revenue account. 
 
Liabilities 
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid some time in the future.  
Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 
 
Major Repairs Reserve 
The Major Repairs Reserve represents the long term average amount of capital spending required 
to maintain the HRA Council housing stock in its current condition.  
 
Materiality 
An item is material if its omission, non disclosure or misstatement could be expected to lead to a 
distortion of the view given by the financial statements. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision 
The minimum amount which must be charged to a revenue account each year and set aside to 
repay debt, presently 4% of the General Fund Capital Financing Requirement.  No MRP is required 
for the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, 
analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local 
taxation) and other reserves. 
 
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
The tax paid on non domestic properties, set annually by Government.  In previous years, this tax 
was collected by billing authorities and paid over to the Government, with the Council receiving a 
share of the national pool as part of its resources used to meet total net expenditure.  Under the 

Page 176



 
 

161 

 

 

new scheme introduced with effect from 1st April 2013, local authorities now retain a proportion of 
the Business Rates generated in their area. 
 
Non Current Assets Held For Sale 
Non Current Assets held for sale are those where the value of the asset will be recovered mainly 
by selling the asset rather than through its continuing use.  
 
Pension Reserve 

This absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post 
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events 
Those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the Balance Sheet date and 
the date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer. 
 
Precept 
This is a demand for payment made by Staffordshire County Council, Staffordshire Commissioner 
(Police and Crime) and Staffordshire Commissioner (Fire and Rescue).  The payment is met from 
the Council’s collection fund and is based on the Council Tax base. 
 
Prior Period Adjustments 
Those material adjustments applicable to prior years, arising from changes in accounting policies 
or from the correction of material errors.  They do not include normal recurring corrections or 
adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years.  
 
Provision 
An amount set aside to meet a liability that is likely to be incurred, and a reasonable estimate can 
be made, charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES. 
 
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 
A government agency that provides longer-term loans to local authorities, at interest rates below 
market rate.  It also acts as a lender of last resort (at a higher rate of interest). 
 
Related Party 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 
 
 One party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or 
 The parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 

One party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party, to an 
extent that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate 
interests; or 
The parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source, to 
such an extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate 
interests. 

 
Remuneration 
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as 
far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits 
received other than in cash. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) 
This is expenditure that is defined as Capital but where there is no matching asset in the accounts 
- legislation allows the treatment of some expenditure as capital where it does not result in the 
creation of a fixed asset. An example of this is where grants are awarded to third parties for capital 
expenditure.  

Page 177



 
 

162 

 

 

 
Revaluation Reserve 
This reserve records the net gain from revaluations of the Council’s plant, property and equipment, 
and Intangible Assets, made after 1st April 2007. 
 
Revenue Expenditure 
The day-to-day expenditure incurred by the Council in providing services.  It is financed by 
government grants, non-domestic rates, Council Tax and fees and charges. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
A general government grant in support of local authority expenditure. 
 
Specific Grants 
Government Grants to local authorities in aid of particular projects or services. 
 
Usable Reserves 
 

The purpose of each usable reserve is detailed below: 
 

General Fund Balance 
These funds are available to meet the future running costs for the Council for non-housing 
services. 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
This reserve holds funds that are available to meet future running costs relating to the Council's 
housing stock. 
 

Capital Receipts Reserve 
This reserve holds all of the Council's receipts generated from the disposal of Non Current Assets 
and although this is in the usable reserves section, this reserve can only be used to finance new 
capital investment or to repay debt.  
 

Major Repairs Reserve 
This reserve is to meet the capital investment requirements of the Council's housing programme. 
 

Capital Grants Unapplied 
This reserve is used to hold capital grants without conditions or where conditions have been 
satisfied, but the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure. 
 

Earmarked Reserves – General Fund / Housing Revenue Account 
Earmarked Reserves are amounts set aside for a specific purpose in one financial year and carried 
forward to meet expenditure in future years. Further details of the significant reserves within this 
heading are shown in Note 10. 
 

  

Page 178



 
 

163 

 

 

Appendix to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

  Chief Executive 

 

Chief Executive 
Electoral Process 
Audit & Governance 
Joint Waste Arrangement 
 
Assistant Director Growth & Regeneration 
Strategic Planning & Development 
Environmental Health 
Economic Regeneration 
Tourism 
Tamworth Castle 
 

Executive Director Organisation 
Executive Director Organisation 
Legal Services 
Democratic Services 
Land Charges 
Mayoralty 
 
Assistant Director People 
Human Resources 
Payroll 
Customer Services 
Communications and Public Relations 
Information Technology 
 
Assistant Director Operations & Leisure 
Streetscene 
Arts & Events 
Community Leisure 
Environmental Management 
 

Executive Director Finance 

 
Executive Director Finance 

 
 
Assistant Director Finance 
Corporate Finance 

   Procurement 
   Corporate Risk 
   Revenue Services 
   Benefits 

  

  

  

 

 
 

Page 179



 
 

164 

 

 

Executive Director Communities 
Executive Director Communities 
 
Assistant Director Partnerships 
Partnerships 
Community Safety 
Safeguarding 
Private Sector Housing 
Strategic Housing 
 
Assistant Director Neighbourhoods – General Fund 
Civil Contingencies 
Street Wardens 
CCTV 
 
Assistant Director Neighbourhoods – HRA 
Landlord Services 
 
Assistant Director Assets – General Fund 
Commercial Property  
Facilities Management 
 
Assistant Director Assets - HRA 
Asset Management and Investment 
 

HRA Summary 
 

Housing Repairs 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 180



 
 

165 

 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Tamworth Borough Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 28th July 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR FINANCE 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE 

 
 
Purpose 
 
To report on the Risk Management process and progress for Quarter 1 of the 
2021/22 financial year. To present the revised report format, and a revised Risk 
policy document for approval. The report also includes comments and 
recommendations from a recent audit review of the risk process. 
  
Recommendations 
 

 That the Committee endorses the revised Corporate Risk Register.  

 That the Committee approves the revised Risk Policy document.  

 That the Committee notes the Audit recommendations.  
 

Executive Summary 
 
One of the functions of the Audit & Governance Committee is to monitor the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s Strategic risk management arrangements. The report 
includes the actions taken to manage those risks. Corporate risks are identified, 
managed and monitored by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
The previously reported review of the Strategic risk reporting structure is now 
completed and is attached as Appendix 1. The new format reflects the 
organisational structure and gives focus and clarity to the key areas of concern. It 
also introduces target risk positions along with direct links to the Corporate Strategic 
objectives. Responsibility for each area of Risk is allocated to an Executive Director 
and each control measure within that risk area is assigned to an Assistant Director. 
The top 4 to 6 causes, consequences and controls are included and these will 
change to reflect current circumstances.  
The report monitors the strategic risks and provides for key operational risks to be 
referenced for information as a note within the relevant risk area. 
 
This report also includes the revised Risk Policy as Appendix 2. The revised policy 
introduces a section on Risk Finance and develops the section on Risk Appetite. It 
also extends the responsibility for Risk management to all staff, and provides a 
mechanism for significant operational issues to be included in the quarterly strategic 
report.  
 
The Risk Management process was recently the subject of an audit report. The 
reports’ recommendations have largely been addressed by the ongoing review. 
The report recommends:  

Page 183

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 

 The updating of the Risk policy; this has been done see Appendix 2 attached. 

 A programme of risk management training; this commenced with a workshop 
for CMT and will be extended to operational managers.   

 The organisation should set the expectation regarding sub strategic and 
project risks; this is recognised and will be included in the next stage of the 
review as it moves to review the operational risks process. 

 The recommendation included in the report but which does not form part of the 
review was the review of risk comments on committee reports. No specific 
action was considered necessary at this time, as every committee report 
provides opportunity for a comment on risk and the reports are reviewed by 
senior managers and comments included. However, risk will be subject to a 
greater detail of scrutiny in the future to ensure consistency in reports to 
members 

 
To support risk management the Zurich Municipal risk consultant resource is still 
available and will provide a resource to support training and, as a critical friend, to 
review some contract/project work. 
 
The current major Risk items of note in the quarter period remain as; the continued 
and changing effect of Covid-19 on the operations of the Authority, and the impact it 
could have on income levels. 

 
Options Considered 
 
None. 
 
Resource Implications 
 
None.  
 
Legal / Risk Implications 
 
There are no direct legal implications from this report but failure to manage strategic 
risks could lead to issues in delivering strategic priorities. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
None 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
None 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
Roger Bennett ext. 246 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 New Corporate Risk Register 

Page 184



 3 

Appendix 2 Revised Risk policy 

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Corporate Risks Summary Page 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 
 

 

Corporate Risk Heading Status Status Current Risk Matrix Executive Leadership Team 

Finance/Financial stabilty 
 

Warning 

 

Stefan Garner 

Modernisation and commercial agenda 
 

OK 

 

Anica Goodwin 

Governance 
 

Warning 

 

Anica Goodwin 

Community Focus 
 

Warning 

 

Rob Barnes 

P
age 187



2 

Corporate Risk Heading Status Status Current Risk Matrix Executive Leadership Team 

Economic Growth and Sustainability 
 

Warning 

 

Stefan Garner 

Organisational Resilience 
 

Warning 

 

Rob Barnes 

 
 

P
age 188



3 

1. Finance/Financial Viability 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk To ensure that the Council is financially sustainable as an organisation 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 4 Severity 3 Severity 3 

Likelihood 4 Likelihood 3 Likelihood 2 

Risk Score 16 Risk Score 9 Risk Score 6 

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Austerity cuts/Major variances to the level of 
grant/subsidy  
* The uncertainty and financial disruption from External 
economic influences - mainly on income levels  
* Poor Procurement practices and weak or ineffective 
Contract Management meaning VFM not maximised and 
TBC exposed to unnecessary liabilities.   

Consequences * Inability to plan long term due to uncertainty over future 
Local Government funding arising from the Fair Funding 
Review  
* The planned business rates reset and the revised 
business rates retention scheme has been deferred 
again although no timescales have been released.  
* Authority taken over by Government appointed officers   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Manage impact of Welfare benefit reforms 31-Mar-2022 
  Tina Mustafa 

Maximise Business rate retention including equalisation 
reserves 

31-Mar-2022 
  Lynne Pugh 

Monthly budget management 31-Mar-2022 
  Lynne Pugh 

P
age 189



4 

Robust monitoring process for MTFS in place and 
Quarterley Healtcheck update to Members 

31-Mar-2022 
  Lynne Pugh 

            

Latest Note  
Announcements as part of Spending Round 2020 that the Review of the distribution methodology, the ‘Fair Funding Review’ as well as the 
planned Business Rates Reset will be now be deferred again although no timescales have been released.   

            

Corporate Priority affected To be financially stable   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   

To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity   
 
 P

age 190



5 

2. Modernisation and Commercialisation Agenda 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Failure to Develop and implement Continuous Service improvement and develop 
employees to perform the right work 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 2 Severity 2 Severity 1 

Likelihood 2 Likelihood 2 Likelihood 2 

Risk Score 4 Risk Score 4 Risk Score 2 

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Slow or no progress on commercial investment strategy  
* Under utilisation of Assets  
* The uncertainty and financial disruption from External 
Economic influences  
* Failure to have the organisational structure and a 
skilled and motivated workforce   

Consequences * Tamworth not seen as a positive place to live or invest 
in  
* Lack of economic and commercial growth  
* General community malaise  
* Unable to deliver agreed strategies   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Continue with channel shift to digital across all 
departments and Implement Corporate customer portals 

31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

Corporate Project Management 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

Delivery of the planned commercialisation strategy 31-Mar-2022 
  Lynne Pugh 

P
age 191



6 

Management of Assets - deliver Corporate Capital 
Strategy and Asset Management Strategy actions 

31-Dec-2021 
  Paul Weston 

Workforce Planning 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

            

Latest Note  

            

Corporate Priority affected To be financially stable   

To ensure our employees have the right skills and culture to help our residents, visitors and businesses   

To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and focused   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   

To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity   

To create a new and developing vision for the continued evolution of Tamworth, including a Town Centre fit for the 21st century   
 
 

P
age 192



7 

3. Governance 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Avoid bad practices and contravention of legislative requirements and ensure the 
authority is held to account 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 4 Severity 3 Severity   

Likelihood 3 Likelihood 3 Likelihood   

Risk Score 12 Risk Score 9 Risk Score  

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Failure of democratic process  
* Non-adherence to legislation - Ultra-vires actions and 
decisions  
* Cyber Attack due to lack of preparedness  
* No horizon scanning of legislative changes   

Consequences * Prosecution of individuals  
* Loss of reputation  
* Authority taken over by Government appointed officers  
* Increase in costs, Legal and settlement   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Audit and Scrutiny Committees 31-Mar-2022 
  Lynne Pugh 

Cyber Security 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

Data Protection 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

Policies and Procedures 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

P
age 193



8 

Undertake Peer review 31-Mar-2022 
  Anica Goodwin 

            

Latest Note  

            

Corporate Priority affected To ensure our employees have the right skills and culture to help our residents, visitors and businesses   

To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and focused   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   
 
 

P
age 194



9 

4. Community Focus 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Safety, health and wellbeing of the citizens of the borough 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 3 Severity 3 Severity 2 

Likelihood 4 Likelihood 3 Likelihood 2 

Risk Score 12 Risk Score 9 Risk Score 4 

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Lack of Community cohesion and engagement  
* Children & Adults at Risk of Abuse & Neglect  
* Modern Slavery  
* Lack of Affordable homes   

Consequences * Increase in crime and disorder  
* Increased tensions in the community  
* Death or serious injury  
* Poor and overcrowded housing  
* Increased demand for social housing   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Financial Inclusion policy 31-Mar-2022 
  Tina Mustafa 

Partnership Groups around Vulnerabilty 31-Mar-2022 
  Joanne Sands 

Partnership Working 31-Mar-2022 
  Joanne Sands 

Training for Staff and Members 31-Mar-2022 
  Zoe Wolicki 

            

P
age 195



10 

Latest Note  

            

Corporate Priority affected To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and focused   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   

To meet housing needs through a variety of approaches and interventions   

To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity   
 
 

P
age 196



11 

5. Economic Growth and Sustainability 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Lack of economic growth and sustainability in the Borough at the levels required 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 4 Severity 3 Severity 2 

Likelihood 3 Likelihood 3 Likelihood 2 

Risk Score 12 Risk Score 9 Risk Score 4 

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Lack of investment in the Borough  
* General downturn in the economy due to factors 
beyond our control  
* Failure to recognise economic changes   

Consequences * Economic prosperity declines  
* Deprivation   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Develop a Master plan for the Town Centre & delivery of 
a co-ordinated Town Centre Programme 

31-Mar-2022 
  Anna Miller 

Longterm Investment / Prepare a viable deliverable plan 
that delivers the regeneration of Gungate 

31-Mar-2022 
  Anna Miller 

Support to local business 31-Mar-2022 
  Anna Miller 

            

Latest Note The project for the town centre regeneration financed by the Future High street fund and being undertaken in conjunction with the Tamworth 

P
age 197



12 

College represents a major contribution to the town centre programme and therefore a high profile risk area  

            

Corporate Priority affected To be financially stable   

To ensure our employees have the right skills and culture to help our residents, visitors and businesses   

To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and focused   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   

To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity   

To create a new and developing vision for the continued evolution of Tamworth, including a Town Centre fit for the 21st century   
 
 

P
age 198



13 

6. Organisational Resilience 
 

Generated on: 19 July 2021 

 

 

 

Corporate Risk Failure to provide services or maintain the continued wellbeing and operations within the 
Borough 

            

Original Matrix 

 

Current Risk Matrix 

 

Target Risk Matrix 

 

Severity 3 Severity 3 Severity 1 

Likelihood 4 Likelihood 3 Likelihood 1 

Risk Score 12 Risk Score 9 Risk Score 1 

    Date Reviewed 08-Jul-2021 Target Date   

Causes * Significant event outside of our control e.g. major 
disaster, pandemic etc.  
* Staff not aware of action to be taken in the event of an 
emergency/disaster  
* Lack of sufficient agile operational options   

Consequences * Services not delivered  
* Life and property put in harms way  
* Reduced 'economic attractiveness'  
* Loss of reputation   

            

Risk Control Measure Risk Control Measure Due 
Date 

 Risk Control Measure 
Status 

Risk Control Measure Note Assistant Director 

Business Continuity Planning 31-Mar-2022 
  Paul Weston 

Emergency Planning 31-Mar-2022 
  Tina Mustafa 

            

Latest Note  

            

P
age 199



14 

Corporate Priority affected To be financially stable   

To ensure our employees have the right skills and culture to help our residents, visitors and businesses   

To ensure our service delivery is consistent, clear, and focused   

To ensure our decisions are driven by evidence and knowledge   

To meet housing needs through a variety of approaches and interventions   

To facilitate sustainable growth and economic prosperity   

To create a new and developing vision for the continued evolution of Tamworth, including a Town Centre fit for the 21st century   
 
  

P
age 200



Date 08th July 202126 October  2017 
 

Formatted: Superscript

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY 
 
 
 
 

Document Status: Final 
 
 
 

Originator: A Struthers 
 

Updated: A StruthersR Bennett 
 

Owner: Executive Assistant Director Corporate ServicesFinance 
 

Version: 01.01.06 
 

Date: 26/10/1701/07/21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by Audit & Governance Committee   

 

 

Page 201



Date 08th July 202126 October  2017 
 

Formatted: Superscript

 
 
 
 

Document Location 
 
This document is held by Tamworth Borough Council, and the document owner is John Wheatley, 
Corporate Director - Resources. 
 
Printed documents may be obsolete. An electronic copy will be available on Tamworth Borough 
Councils Intranet. Please check for current version before using.   
  
 

 
Revision History 
Revision Date Version Control Summary of changes 
April 2010 1.01.01  
18/09/12 1.01.02 Scheduled review 
30/03/14 1.01.03 Scheduled review 
03/09/15 1.01.04 Scheduled review 
03/08/16 1.01.05 Scheduled review 
24/08/17 1.01.06 Scheduled review 
 
 
 

Approvals 
Name Title Approved 
Audit & Governance 
Committee 

Committee Approval Yes 

CMT Group Approval Yes 

John WheatleyLynne 
Pugh 

Executive Assistant  Director Corporate 
ServicesFinance 

Yes 

Angela StruthersRoger 
Bennett 

Head of Internal Audit ServicesOperations Accountant Yes 

 
 
 

Document Review Plans 
 
This document is subject to a scheduled annual review. Updates shall be made in accordance 
with business requirements and changes and will be with agreement with the document owner. 
 
 

Distribution 
 
The document will be available on the Intranet and the website. 

Page 202



Date 08th July 202126 October  2017 
 

Formatted: Superscript

Contents 
 
 

 Page 
Number 

 
Risk Management Policy Statement 

 
1 

  
Policy Objectives 3 
  
Risk Management Strategy 3 
  
Risk Financing Strategy 
 
Risk Appetite 

4 
 

45 
  
Risk Management Roles and Responsibilities 5 
  
Arrangements 67 
  
Risk Management Process 67 
  
Performance Management 78 

Page 203



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 1 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

Risk Management Policy Statement 
 
Statement by the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive 
 
The Authority is committed to embedding the culture of Risk Management ensuring that its 
reputation is not tarnished by an unforeseen event nor is it financially or operationally affected 
by the occurrence. 
 
It recognises that: - 
 

 Management has the responsibility to plan and systematically 
approach, the identification, evaluation, and control of risk; 

 
 In order for the Authority to improve risks (opportunities and threats) 

need to be taken, but they need to be understood and appropriately 
managed ; 

 
 All Managers and TeamStaff Leaders have responsibility for the 

effective control of risk utilising the support training and resources 
provided by the Authority; 

 
 All Staff have theThe responsibility for to manage insurable losses is 

management's., not that of an insurance company. Insurance is not a 
substitute for the management of risk.; 

 
 There is a need to fully integrate Risk Management into the culture of 

the Authority. 
 
 
Risk Management objectives for Tamworth Borough Council are reviewed on a continual 
basis and reported to CMT and Audit and Governance committee on a quarterly basis. These 
objectives are designed to: 

 To safeguard the public, members and employees, 

  and Tto protect the Authority’s Rreputation, Physical Assets and assetsand Services it 

provides by minimising losses and associated insurance costs; 

 To manage risks in accordance with best practice and ensure risk management is 

integrated into the culture of Tamworth Borough Councilthe Authority and all those 

connected with it;  

 To identify and take advantage of available opportunities to improve service delivery 

and/or the Authority’s financial position;  

 To ensure the Authority delivers its commitments to stakeholders and to demonstrate 

transparency, accountability and equity in its efforts to do so;  

Formatted: Not Highlight

Page 204



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 2 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

 To anticipate and respond positively to changing social, environmental and legislative 

requirements;  and  

 To identify and manage partnership risks. 

 

The Audit & Governance Committee will regularly review the Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy to ensure their continued relevance to the Borough. They will also assess 
performance against the aims and objectives.  
 
We attach great significance to Risk Management and it is essential that the Protocol is 
known and understood by all staff within the Authority.  It will form part of the induction 
training and performance reviews for all staff and members and will be monitored as part of 
the performance review process utilising the corporate performance system 
CovalentPentana.  We will make adequate resources available to ensure that the 
commitments made in this statement are achieved. 
 
Risk Management has our total support – it needs yours too for us to succeed. 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed)                                                          (Signed) 
Head of Paid ServiceChief Executive                                               Leader of the Council  

Page 205



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 3 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

Policy Objectives 
 
In implementing this Policy the Authority will:  - 
 

 Adopt a strategic approach to risk management to make better 
informed decisions which is vital to successful transformational 
change 
 

 Identify those assets and exposures which have or may give rise to 
loss producing events;  

 
 Identify opportunity risks that may give rise to increased benefits 

 
 Maintain  detailed ‘Risk Registers’ of the risks identified as 

threatening the Authority’s operation and document their control on 
the Authority’s Corporate Performance system CovalentPentana; 
  

 Ensure Pentana is routinely reviewed and updated to reflect the 
Authority’s current Risk position 

 
 Assess Quantify  the impact of potential loss producing events; 

 
 Take reasonable physical or and financial steps to avoid and/or 

reduce the impact of potential losses and their impact on the 
Authority’s Business Plan; 

 
 Endeavour Work to reduce all serious (RED) risks to an acceptable 

level either by controls or ceasing the activity; 
 

 Ensure that all systems of work reflect the positive risk management 
culture of the Authority; 

 
 Establish a comprehensive information base of insurable and 

uninsurable losses; 
 

 Maintain a detailed understanding of insurance and purchase 
insurance for those financial risks which cannot be avoided or 
reduced further, always retaining risks where this is economically 
beneficial.; 

  
 Purchase insurance for those risks which cannot be avoided or 

reduced further, always retaining risks where this is economically 
attractive. 

 
 

Risk Management Strategy 
 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0 cm,  No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at  2.5 cm +  15.9 cm

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.63 cm + Tab
after:  1.27 cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Page 206



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 4 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

The Purpose of this Risk Management Strategy is to effectively manage potential 
opportunities and threats to support the organisation Authority in achieving its objectives.  The 
main objectives of the Authority's Risk Management Strategy are to: - 
 
 

 Achieve continuous improvement in the management of risk; 
 

 Develop a culture that integrates risk management into the day-to-day management 
process; 

 
 Continue to develop robust systems to identity and evaluate risk; 

 
 Develop reliable performance indicators for target-setting and for making appropriate 

comparisons; 
 

 Develop systems for performance monitoring to bring about continuous improvements; 
 

 Enabling the Organisation Authority to anticipate and respond to changing social, 
environmental and legislative conditions; 

 
 Reduce the total cost of risk and mitigate potential future increases in insurance 

premiums and self-insurance options. 
 
To help achieve these objectives it will be necessary to: - 
 

 Increase the profile of and commitment to embedding Risk Management throughout 
the Authority; 

 
 Ensure adequate resources (financial and time) are provided; 

 
 To make all partners, providers and delivery agents aware of the Organisation’s 

Authoritys expectations on risk, both generally as set out in its Risk Management 
Policy, and where necessary in particular areas of service delivery; 

 
 Develop arrangements to measure performance of Risk Management activities against 

the aims and objectives; 
 

 Establish clear accountabilities, roles and reporting lines across all services, 
departments, management and committees; 

 
 Provide for risk assessment in all decision-making processes of the Authority; 

 
 Develop training to build awareness across all levels of activity; 

 
 Performance manageMonitor the performance of risk management across the 

Authority. 
  Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering, Tab

stops: Not at  0 cm +  2.5 cm +  14.54 cm

Page 207



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 5 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

 Ensure the Pentana Risk system is the single repository for all managed risks identified 
across the Authority 

 
 
 
 
Risk Financing Strategy 
 
The Purpose of the Risk Financing Strategy is to effectively manage the financial implications 
of risk control measures and their impact to maximise the resources available for the 
provision of Services and the Authority achieving its objectives.  The main objectives of the 
Authority's Risk Management Strategy are to: - 
 
 

 Reduce the total cost of risk and mitigate potential future increases in insurance   
Premiums and self-insurance options. 
  

 To minimise costs by reducing risks 
 
  

 To utilize risk self-funding where financially advantageous 
 
 
Risk Appetite  
 
The risk appetite is “the amount of risk that an organisation Authority is prepared to accept, 
tolerate, or be exposed to at any point in time” (CIPFA).   
The Authority will manage the risks by one or more of the following ways: 

 Avoid reducing, preventing, transferring, eliminating or accepting the risk - A decision is 
made not to take a risk 

 Accept – A decision is taken to accept the risk 
 Transfer – All or part of the risk is transferred through insurance or to a third party often 

via a contractual arrangement. This is dependent on the correct use and application of 
the corporate procurement process 

 Reduce – specific actions taken to reduce the risk 
 Exploit – A decision is made to exploit opportunities as they arise or generated. 

 
Whilst the Authority acknowledges that it will have “severe” (red) risks from time to time, it will 
endeavour to reduce those to an acceptable level either through controls or ceasing the 
activity (if applicable).  Sometimes risks are identified and even though managed, may still 
remain “severe” (red risk).  For both Strategic and Operational risk the Authority has a Low 
appetite for risk. Despite the low appetite tolerance levels may be higher as it must be 
recognised that it is not possible to eliminate some of the inherent risks associated with the 
service delivery activities. 
 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Bold, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.27 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.63 cm +
Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: 14 pt, Bold, Font color: Dark Red, English
(United Kingdom)

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.63 cm +
Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.63 cm +
Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough

Page 208



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 6 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

Risk Registers must be maintained and managed in the following areas: 
 
Strategic Risks, 
Operational Risks, 
Project Risks, 
Partnership Risks, 
Opportunity Risks 
 
“Severe” risks can appear in any of the above risk registers.   
 
Operational risks will be reviewed by the Risk Champions group and Risks, if deemed 
appropriate, will be escalated and highlighted to CMT as a note on the strategic risk report. 
 
. 
 
Risk Management Roles and Responsibilities 
 
 
The importance of establishing roles and responsibilities within the risk management 
framework is pivotal to successful delivery.  Considering risks must be embedded into 
corporate policy approval and operational service delivery. 
 
The agreed roles and responsibilities within the risk management framework are outlined in 
the table below: 
 
Group /Individual Role 

 
Corporate 
Management Team 

 Provide leadership for the process to manage risks effectively. 
 Review and revise the Risk Management Policy and Strategy in 

accordance with the review period. 
 Monitor and review the Corporate Risk Register on a quarterly 

basis including the identification of trends, upcoming events and 
potential new corporate risks. 

 
Audit & 
Governance 
Committee 

 Monitor the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management 
arrangements, including the actions taken to manage risks and 
to receive regular reports on risk management. 

 To monitor the actions being taken to mitigate the impact of 
potentially serious risks  

 
Cabinet  To provide strategic direction with regard to risk management.  

 
Assistant Directors  To provide leadership for the process of managing risks within 

their directorate. 
 To ensure that risk management methodology is applied to all 

service plans, projects, partnerships and proposals within their 
directorate. 

Page 209



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 7 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

 To identify and manage business /operational risks. 
 To ensure that the management of risk is monitored as part of 

the performance management process.   
 

Heads of Service  To ensure that all risks are identified, recorded and effectively 
managed in their area or responsibility. 

 To review and update their risk register on at least an annual 
basis but appropriate to the risk. 

 To determine the method of controlling the risk.  
 To delegate responsibility if appropriate for the control of the risk.  
 To notify the Assistant Director of new risks identified for 

consideration for inclusion on the corporate risk register.  
  

All staff  To ensure that risk is effectively managed in their areas. 
 To ensure that they notify their managers of new and emerging 

risks. 
 

Head of Internal 
Audit 
ServicesAssistant 
Director Finance / 
Operations 
Accountant 

 To ensure that the Rrisk Mmanagement Sstrategy is regularly 
reviewed and updated. 

 Promote and support the risk management process throughout 
the Authority. 

 Advise and assist managers in the identification of risks. 
 

 
 
 
Arrangements 
 

   The Executive Assistant Director Finance Corporate Services will ensure that all 
Managers are aware of their responsibility for Risk Management. 

    The Head of Internal Audit Services Assistant Director Finance will be responsible for 
ensuring that the Rrisk Sstrategy of the Authority is achieved. 

   The Operations Accountant will be responsible for the administration of risk  
insuranceand insurance and the co-ordination of advice and support. 

 
Risk Management Process 
 
Risk Identification 
 
The identification of risks is completed at various levels and primarily, risks (and 
opportunities) relate to the achievement of the Authority’s objectives.  The objectives can be 
Strategic, Operational, Project or Opportunity level.  This stage can be repeated regularly to 
ensure that new risks arising are identified and recorded on the risk register as appropriate.  
 
The Authority acknowledges that no one person is responsible for identifying key risks and 
that they are identified at various levels and various ways.   

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.63 cm + Tab
after:  1.27 cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Page 210



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 8 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

 
As a basis, the following risks must be identified: 
 
Those that affect: 
 
1 the delivery of the Strategic Plan; 

2 the operational issues i.e. the delivery of a service; 

3 the delivery of a project; 

4 the delivery of a Ppartnership arrangement. 

 
 
 
 
 
Recording Risks 
 
A Risk Register is the primary tool to administer the risks identified.  The Covalent Pentana 
system must be used to record all corporate, directorate, serviceStrategic and Operational, 
project and partnership risk registers.   
 
As part of business planning, risks are identified and.  Business plan actions are recorded on 
the Covalent system under Action Central.  Managers should ensure that the associated risks 
are recorded on the risk register held within the Pentana system and linked to the appropriate 
business plan action.   
 
All risks recorded on the risk register should identify the: 
 

 Gross risk, 

 Vulnerabilities/causes of the risk, 

 Potential effect/consequences of the risk happening, 

 Controls in place to reduce the risk, or action plan with to introduce control these items 
to carry specific completion dates 

 Net risk, 

 Risk review period.   

 Target risk, to reflect the acceptable level of risk for the issue identified. 

 
Reporting Risks 
 
The Corporate Risk Register will be reviewed and updated by the Corporate Management 
Team on a quarterly basis and then reported to the Audit & Governance Committee.   
 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Page 211



Tamworth Borough Council –  – 8th July 2021September 2015October 2017 
 
 

 
Page Number 9 of 8 

Formatted: Superscript

All reports to any Committee of the Authority require that risks are identified.  The Committee 
report template is set up so that this is completed.  It is the duty of the report writer to ensure 
that the relevant risk register on Covalent Pentana is updated to take account of these risks.   
 
 
Performance Management 
 
The following key performance indicators for the risk management process will be completed.   
 

 The Risk Management Policy and Strategy to be reviewed and updated on an annual 
basis; 

 Corporate Management Team to review and update the Ccorporate Rrisk register 
taking into account emerging and changing risks on a quarterly basis;  

 Risks to be reviewed appropriately to the severity /changing nature of the risk; 

 Staff to be appropriately trained in Risk Management and the use of the Covalent 
Pentana system.   

 

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Page 212



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

WEDNESDAY, 28 JULY 2021 
 
 

REPORT OF THE  AUDIT MANAGER 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE REPORT 2021/22 (QUARTER 1) 
 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To provide Audit & Governance Committee with internal audit’s progress report for the period 
to 30 June 2021 (Quarter1). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That the Committee endorse the attached report. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations require councils to undertake an effective internal audit 
to evaluate the effectiveness of their risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards or guidance. 
 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
Failure to report would lead to non-compliance with the requirements of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 
 
EQUALITIES IMPLICATION 
 
None. 
 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 8



 
REPORT AUTHOR 
Andrew Wood – Audit Manager 
andrew-wood@tamworth.gov.uk  
Ext 234 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 (Quarter 1) 

Page 214



Appendix 1  

 

 
Internal Audit Progress Report (Quarter 1)  

 July 2021 

 

 
 

P
age 215



 
 

Contents  
 
01 Introduction  
02 Internal Audit Work Undertaken  
03 Opinion  
04 Follow Up 
05 Performance of Internal Audit  
 
Appendices  
01 Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken 
02 Assurance and Recommendation Classifications  
 
 
In the event of any questions arising from this report please contact Andrew Wood, Audit Manager andrew-wood@tamworth.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work. Whilst every care has been 
taken to ensure that the information provided in this report is as accurate as possible, Internal Audit have only been able to base 
findings on the information and documentation provided and consequently no complete guarantee can be given that this report is 
necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all the improvements that may be required. This report 
was produced solely for the use and benefit of Tamworth Borough Council. The Council accepts no responsibility and disclaims all 
liability to any third party who purports to use or rely for any reason whatsoever on the report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, 
reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification. 
 

P
age 216

mailto:andrew-wood@tamworth.gov.uk


01 INTRODUCTION   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This report summarises internal audit activity and performance for 
the period to 30 June 2021.  
 
SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
  
The Accounts and Audit Regulations require councils to undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of their risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards or guidance.  
 
This progress report and opinion forms part of the framework of 
assurances that is received by the Council and is used to help 
inform the annual governance statement. Internal audit also has an 
independent and objective consultancy role to help managers 
improve risk management, governance and control.  
 
Internal Audit’s professional responsibilities as auditors are set out 
within Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) produced by 
the Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board. 
  
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Internal audit is grateful to the directors, heads of service, service 
managers and other staff throughout the council for their help 
during the period.   
 
02 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK UNDERTAKEN  
  
The internal audit plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Audit & 
Governance Committee at its meeting in March 2021. The plan was 
for a total of 17 audits. 
 
Much of quarter one work has been centred on completing annual 
reports, compliance statements (including the Annual Governance 
Statement) and supporting counter fraud checks on Coronavirus 

business grants. Planned audit work was continued following the 
departure of the former Head of Audit & Governance and 
Monitoring Officer and the appointment of the Audit Manager who 
took up post in June 2021.  The current Audit Manager is reviewing 
the Audit Plan, in terms of resource available to ensure coverage 
during 2021/2022. 
 
The audit findings of each review, together with recommendations 
for action and the management response are set out in our detailed 
reports. Committee should note that the report issued during 
2021/2022 is still in draft and has not been finalised with 
management and we are awaiting agreement to the 
recommendations raised.  A summary of the reports we have 
issued this year is included at Appendix 01.  
 
03 OPINION  
 
SCOPE OF THE OPINION 
 
In giving an opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be 
absolute. The most that the internal audit service can provide to the 
Council is a reasonable assurance that there are no major 
weaknesses in risk management, governance and control 
processes.  
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our 
attention during our internal audit work and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist, or of all 
the improvements that may be required.  
 
In arriving at an opinion, the following matters have been taken into 
account:  
 

• The outcomes of all audit activity undertaken during the 
period. 

• The effects of any material changes in the organisation’s 
objectives or activities.  

• Whether or not any limitations have been placed on the 
scope of internal audit. 

P
age 217



• Whether there have been any resource constraints imposed 
upon us which may have impinged on our ability to meet the 
full internal audit needs of the organisation. 

• What proportion of the organisation’s internal audit needs 
have been covered to date. 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 
 
 
 
Specific Issues  
 
No specific issues have been highlighted through the work 

undertaken by Internal Audit during the second quarter of 
2019/20. 
 
04 Follow Up  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Specific Issues 
 
No specific issues have been highlighted through the work 
undertaken by internal audit during the period. 
 
Fraud & Irregularity  
 
No matters of fraud or irregularity have been reported during the 
period. Also see the fraud update on this Committee’s agenda. 

 
Consultancy & Advice  
 
The audit team may be requested by managers to undertake 
consultancy and advice on governance, risk management and 

internal control matters from time to time. No additional pieces of 
work were identified during Quarter 1 of 2021/22 
 

 
04 Follow Up    
 
As previously agreed by the Committee for 2021/2022, all high 
priority actions and those arising from no and limited overall 
assurance reports are followed up by audit, managers confirmation 
applies to the rest. 
 
The total outstanding actions at the end of quarter four are 130 (34 
high, 74 medium, 22 low).  The Audit Manager is currently 
reviewing the outstanding recommendations and is following up the 
outstanding recommendations with Service Managers. 
 

 
 
 
Of those audits receiving a no or limited assurance opinion which 
require follow up, a summary of progress to date is given at 
Appendix 01.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

100

Outstanding Recommendations 

Outstanding
Recs

On the basis of audit work completed, the Audit 

Manager’s opinion on the council’s framework of 

governance, risk management and internal control is 

reasonable in its overall design and effectiveness. Certain 

weaknesses and exceptions were highlighted by audit 

work. These matters have been discussed with 

management, to whom recommendations have been 

made. All of these have been, or are in the process of 

being addressed. 

 

P
age 218



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

06 PERFORMANCE OF INTERNAL AUDIT  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance with professional 
standards 
  
We employ a risk-based approach in 

planning and conducting our audit 

assignments. Internal audit work has been 

performed in accordance with PSIAS. 

Conflicts of interest  
 
There have been no instances during the year 

which have impacted on internal audit’s 

independence that have led to any declarations 

of interest. 

 
Internal audit quality 
assurance  
 
To ensure the quality of the work 
internal audit performs, there is a 
programme of quality measures 
which includes:  

 Supervision of staff 
conducting audit work. 

 Review of files of working 
papers and reports by 
managers. 

 Regular meetings of our 
networking groups, which 
issue technical and sector 
updates.  

 

 

 
Performance Measures  

 Complete 90% of the audit plan -  6% 

 100% Draft reports issued within 6 weeks of 
start date  - 100% 

 100% Closure meetings conducted within 5 
days of completion of audit work – 100% 

 100% draft reports to be issued within 10 
working days of closure meeting –  100% 

 100% of all high priority actions are 
implemented at follow up – 83% 

 All no and limited assurance reports have a 
revised assurance rating of substantial or 
reasonable on follow up – 100% 

 Achieve an average customer satisfaction 
score of 4 or more – 4.75 

 Added value – Annual measure 
 
   

 
  

   
 

  

Performance of 

Internal Audit 

P
age 219



Appendix 01: Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken  
 

 
Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 

Quarter 
Assurance Summary Assurance 

Opinion  

Core 
Financial 
Systems  

Assets and 
Inventory 

Risk based review covering the 
adequacy and effectiveness of 
controls regarding the Council’s 
assets and inventory. 

Q2   

NNDR Risk based review of NNDR 
including assurance over the 
adequacy of controls around the 
maintenance of systems recording 
taxable properties and liable 
persons, billing, discounts and 
reliefs, collection, refunds and write 
offs. 

Q3   

Procurement Risk based review of strategic 
procurement including policy and 
procedural review (including 
changes arising from Exit from the 
European Union), planning, high 
level spend and compliance with 
contract rules, contract 
management.   

Q3   

Creditors Standard risk based review of 
creditors, including controls 
surrounding supplier set up, 
ordering, goods receipting, payment 
systems   

Q4   

Strategic & 
Operational 
Risks 

Pandemic Risks ‘Flash’ audits of dynamic risks 
arising from the Council’s pandemic 
response. To include, for example, 
thematic reviews over continuity and 
recovery arrangements, business 
grants, productivity and 
performance. 

Q1-Q4 Governance 
Control measures to mitigate against the risk of 
potential governance failings arising from the 
Covid-19 crisis a year on from the start of the 
pandemic, were found to be adequate and 
effective.  A number of good practice areas were 
noted: 
 

 

 
 

Substantial 
Assurance 

 

P
age 220



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

 The system implemented by the Authority 
for remote governance was in accordance 
with the Local Authorities and Police and 
crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local authority and Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020.   

 Remote meetings were set up quickly and 
effectively using Microsoft Teams Live.   

 Internal and external training was provided 
to staff and members providing an 
understanding of the system e.g. logging 
on, microphones etc. as well as etiquette 
during live meetings.  The first live remote 
meeting took place on 9th June 2020 
(Planning Committee). 

 Urgent decision arrangements are in place 
managed in line with the Constitution with 
further information provided on the 
Authorities website. There have been no 
urgent decisions between 1 April 2020 and 
28 April 2021. 

 ‘Remote Meetings Best Practice 
Procedures’ were created setting out 
meeting procedures (before and during), 
exclusion of public and press, technical 
failures, etc.  Additionally, reminder 
guidance is sent out to all Councillors prior 
to a meeting. 

 From the 7th May 2021 traditional face to 
face meetings will resume.  This has been 
reflected in the work currently been 
undertaken by Health & Safety to ensure 
updated Government guidance is being 
met. E.g. Risk Assessments for all venues 
including space requirements, desk layout, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 221



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

plastic screens etc.   

 The Authorities website makes reference to 
‘provisional’ meetings earmarked after 7th 
May with proposed venues e.g. Tamworth 
Assembly Rooms and Council Chambers.  
Hybrid meetings (live streaming of face to 
face meetings) are not yet set up but 
members of the public will be able to attend 
in person.   

 The Communications Team is on ‘stand by’ 
to release a statement on the Authorities 
Website and to Local Press once all details 
have been confirmed.  Guidance notes are 
also being prepared for Councillors and 
Officers for the new arrangements.   

 
With the continuation of Council meetings occurring 
albeit in a pre-Covid format the following areas are 
suggested as a forward focus: 
 

 Covid specific risk assessments should be 
regularly reviewed and amended where 
new hazards are identified to ensure they 
are in line with Government Legislation.   

 As the Government is encouraging local 
authorities to provide remote access to the 
public until 21st June 2021, further 
investigation into the technology required to 
implement Hybrid Meetings will help reduce 
numbers attending meetings and ensure 
members and the public’s safety.   

 
Productivity 

 
Control measures to mitigate against the risk of 
productivity being adversely impacted by the Covid-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Substantial 
Assurance 

 
 

P
age 222



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

19 crisis were found to be adequate and effective. 
A number of good practice areas were noted: 

 Staff within Customer Services, Revenues 
and Housing adapted to remote working, 
with productivity being managed via 1-2-1’s 
and weekly Teams meetings.  Areas are 
informed of changes and staff encouraged 
to develop new ways of delivering their 
service. The website and phone messages 
have been updated, to provide customers 
with current information. 

 Performance monitoring has continued with 
monthly meetings held between 
management and higher management to 
discuss ‘Monthly Performance Updates’. 
The introduction of new work streams such 
as grant / support payments, meant the 
Revenues Team were tasked with 
additional pressures to ensure businesses 
and the general public were supported 
quickly.  Covid-19 grant schemes have 
been and continue to be administered 
effectively.  KPI’s are being monitored 
closely and data will help determine the 
direction of travel once the restrictions of 
the pandemic are lifted. 

 Where required, processes were amended 
i.e. daily lists for sheltered accommodation 
to ensure they were in line with Government 
guidelines as well as setting up a ‘Tenant 
Working Group’, which provided additional 
support whilst Tenant Regulations were 
placed on hold.   

 An ‘Activity App’ has been rolled out in 
Customer Services which provides ‘real-
time’ statistics and makes call handling 

P
age 223



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

simpler.  Additionally, the implementation of 
a ‘Self-Service Portal’ is nearing completion, 
giving customers the opportunity to access 
information independently i.e. council tax 
balances etc. with the aim to reduce 
telephone traffic. 

 A suite of KPI’s for each service area is 
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis 
by managers and assistant directors.  
During the peak of the first lockdown some 
KPI’s for Revenues fell below target due to 
national government restrictions.  Recovery 
action was placed on hold from March 20 
resuming in August 20 and despite the 
initial backlog, target values are returning 
back to normal.  KPI’s for Customer 
Services and Housing show no concern 
even though there has been an increase in 
the demand for webchats, emails and 
telephone calls. 

 As part of the Authorities ‘Reset and 
Recovery’ arrangements, service areas 
have demonstrated the ability to deliver 
services remotely and continue to adapt 
and monitor their processes and 
procedures. 

 
As the Covid Pandemic is still continuing, a forward 
focus is suggested on lessons learned to ensure 
service delivery is maintained with KPI’s continuing 
to be reviewed.  Additionally, 1-2-1’s and weekly 
Teams meetings will ensure productivity is 
maintained and staff have a good level of 
preparedness for additional pressures following the 
Governments ‘Road Map out of Lockdown’. Service 
delivery will be discussed at Cabinet in July to 

P
age 224



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

ascertain the direction of travel. 
 

Recovery and 
Reset 

Programme assurance based review 
of Recovery and Reset programme. 
Programme assurance includes 
programme planning, governance 
structure and controls, delivery, 
change management, RAIDD 
management (Risk, Action, Issue, 
Decision, Dependency), testing and 
reporting. 

TBC   

Future High 
Street 

Programme assurance review (as 
recovery and rest above) of 
progression towards transformation 
of the town centre following the 
£21.65m allocation of Future High 
Street Funding. 

TBC   

Preparedness 
for regulatory 
compliance 
arising from 
Housing White 
Paper 

Risk based review of organisation 
preparedness for new regulatory 
inspection regime.   

TBC   

Climate Change Risk based review looking at the 
Council’s preparation to de-
carbonisation / climate change 
agenda. 

Q2   

Partnerships Risk based review of the Council’s 
controls around strategic 
partnerships. 

Q2 DRAFT 
The system has some good controls in place to 
mitigate against key risks. There is a Partnership 
Coordination Group which is the accountable body 
for the delivery of all key partnership plans, all 
responsible bodies attend. For the partnerships 
reviewed as part of the audit, Terms of Reference 
were in place, which documented the roles and 
responsibilities of the partners and the aims, 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 
 

P
age 225



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

objectives and purpose of the partnerships. 
Regular meetings are held and adequate records 
retained. The work of the partnerships is reported 
to other groups/organisations for oversight.  
The weaknesses found within the partnership 
system include the lack of an up to date, central 
record of all partnerships across the council and 
the partnership policy being out of date. 
Implementation of the recommendations in the 
action plan will enhance arrangements and address 
these risks. 
 

Shared Service Risk based review of controls in 
place for effective delivery of shared 
services e.g. waste management, 
CCTV, legal services, building 
control, internal audit. 

Q2 Audit in progress  

Assembly 
Rooms 

Risk based review looking at key 
aspects of the Assembly Room’s 
operations e.g. income, asset 
management, marketing, stock and 
inventory management, 
procurement, security and agility of 
operations on recovery. Audit carried 
forward from 2020/21. 

Q3   

 Castle Risk based review looking at key 
aspects of the Castle’s operations 
e.g. income, asset management, 
marketing, stock and inventory 
management, procurement, security 
and agility of operations on recovery. 
Audit carried forward from 2020/21. 

Q3   

ICT  TBC TBC Q2-Q4   
 Disabled 

Facilities Grant   
Assurance statements to Staffordshire 
County Council / accounts preparation. 

Q4   

Municipal 
Charities  

Q4   

P
age 226



Assurance  Audit  Scope  Planned 
Quarter 

Assurance Summary Assurance 
Opinion  

Counter Fraud  Work to support the mitigation of fraud 
risk, the provision of fraud awareness 
training, pro-active fraud exercises and 
reactive investigations. 

Q1-Q4  N/A 

Annual 
Governance 
Statement  

Production of the AGS.  Q1-Q2 Complete N/A 

Annual Audit 
Opinion  

Production of the Annual Audit Opinion  Q1-Q2  N/A 

Management 
and Planning  

Management, planning and assurance 
reporting to CMT and Audit & 
Governance Committee  

Q1-Q4 Ongoing N/A 

Ad hoc / 
Contingency / 
Consultancy  

Contingency allocation to be utilised 
upon agreement of the Chief Finance 
Officer 

Q1-Q4 Ongoing   N/A 

Follow Up of 
No and 
Limited 
Assurance 
Opinion 
Audits  

Housing 
Contracts 

Limited Assurance follow up.  Q1 Originally 8 recommendations were made, and 
agreed to be implemented by management. The 
findings of the follow up review show 7 of the 
recommendations have been implemented and 1 
has been superseded by a recommendation made 
in the 20/21 audit review of Planned Maintenance 

 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

Property 
Contracts - DFA 

Limited Assurance follow up.  Q1 Originally 11 recommendations were made, and 
agreed to be implemented by management. The 
findings of the follow up review show 3 of the 
recommendations have been implemented, 1 has 
not been implemented and 7 are no longer 
applicable. 
 

 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

 
 
Appendix 02: Assurance and Recommendation Classifications  
 

Overall Assurance Opinion  Definition  

Substantial  There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the organisation’s objectives. The control processes 

P
age 227



tested are being consistently applied.  

Reasonable  While there is a basically sound system of internal control, there are some weaknesses which may put the 

organisation’s objectives in this area at risk. There is a low level of non-compliance with some of the control 

processes applied. 

Limited  Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such as to put the organisation’s objectives in this area at risk. 

There is a moderate level of non-compliance with some of the control processes applied.  

No Significant weakness in the design and application of controls mean that no assurance can be given that the 

organisation will meet its objectives in this area. 

 

Recommendation Priority  Definition  

High High priority recommendation representing a fundamental control weakness which exposes the organisation to a 

high degree of unnecessary risk.  

Medium  Medium priority recommendation representing a significant control weakness which exposes the organisation to a 

moderate degree of unnecessary risk.  

Low (Housekeeping) Low priority (housekeeping) recommendation highlighted opportunities to implement a good or better practice, to 

add value, improve efficiency of further reduce the organisation’s exposure to risk.  

 

P
age 228



PLANNED REPORTS TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 2021-2022 

 

 

 Report Committee Date Report Of Comments 

1 Role of the Audit Committee June  

 

Grant Thornton Presentation/training  

2 RIPA Annual Report & Review of the 
RIPA Policy 

June Assistant Director - 
Partnerships 

 
 

3 Internal Audit Annual and Quarterly 
Update 

June Principal Auditor 
 

4 Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards/Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme 

June Principal Auditor 
 
 

5 Annual Governance Statement and Code 
of Corporate Governance 

June   

     

1 Audit Findings Report July  Grant Thornton  

2 Management Representation Letter July  Grant Thornton  

3 Annual Statement of Accounts July  Executive Director  

P
age 229

A
genda Item

 9



Finance 

4 Risk Management Quarterly Update July  

 

Assistant Director – 
Finance  

 

5 Internal Audit Quarterly Update July  Audit Manager   

6 Update on Risk Based Verification Policy July  Assistant Director, 
Finance 

 

 Private meeting of Internal and External 
Auditors and Committee members 

July   

     

1 Audit & Governance Committee update October Grant Thornton  

2 Fee Increase Letter October  Grant Thornton Moved from March meeting 

3 Annual Audit Letter October Grant Thornton  

3 Internal Audit Quarterly Update 
October 

Audit Manager  

4 Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking 
Statement 

October  Assistant Director – 
Partnerships 

 

5 Risk Management Quarterly Update 
October 

Assistant Director – 
Finance   

 

6 Annual Treasury Outturn 
October 

Executive Director  

P
age 230



Finance 

7 Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual 
Review and Report 2020/21 

October  
Assistant Director – 
People 

 

8 Review of the Constitution & Scheme of 
Delegation  

October Monitoring Officer  

9 Councillor Code of Conduct – following 
finalisation of LGA new Model Code  

October Monitoring Officer  

10 Counter Fraud Update 
October 

Audit Manager Annual report in October  

 Private meeting of Internal and External 
Auditors and Committee members  

October 
  

     

1 Audit & Governance Committee update February Grant Thornton  

2 Fee Increase Letter February Grant Thornton  

3 Internal Audit Quarterly Update 
February 

Audit Manager  

4 Risk Management Quarterly Update 
February 

Assistant Director – 
Finance   

 

5 Audit Committee Effectiveness 
February 

Audit Manager  

     

P
age 231



  
1 Audit and Governance Committee update March Grant Thornton  

2 Audit Plan 
March 

Grant Thornton  

3 Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 
March 

Grant Thornton  

4 Review of the Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Statement and the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy Mid-Year 
Review Report 

 
 
March 

Executive Director 
Finance 

 

5 Final Accounts – Accounting Policies and 
Action Plan 

 
March Assistant Director of 

Finance 
 

6 Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan 
 
March  Audit Manager  

7 Review of the Constitution and Scheme of 
Delegation for Officers 

 
March  Monitoring Officer 

 

8 Review of Financial Guidance 
 
March Assistant Director 

Finance 

 
 
 

9 Annual Report of the Chair of A&G 
 
March Audit Manager / 

Chair 

 

 Private meeting of Internal and External 
Auditors and Committee members 

March   

P
age 232



 

 

 

The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance 

P
age 233



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 235

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Annual Statement of Accounts & Report 2020/21
	202021 Audited Statement of Accounts v2 A&G Cttee 280721.docx

	7 Risk Management quarterly update
	Appendix 1 Risk Management quarterly update
	Appendix 2 Risk Management Policy

	8 Internal Audit Progress Update Report 2021/22 (Quarter 1)
	Appendix 1 Internal Audit Progress Update Report 2021/22 (Quarter 1)

	9 Audit and Governance Committee Timetable
	11 Removal of Risk Based Verification in the Administration of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support

